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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 4" Annual General Meeting of Members of M/s. KFin
Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) will be
held on Thursday, September 30, 2021, at 10.00 a.m. through Video Conferencing / Other
Audio-Visual Means facility to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including Consolidated Financial
Statements) for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and the Auditors thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

2. To appoint Mr. Srinivas Peddada (DIN-08755240) as a Non-Executive Director and in this
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152, 160 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force), Mr. Srinivas Peddada (DIN-08755240) who was appointed as an Additional
Director with effect from 07" July 2020 in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby appointed as a Director
of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company of the Company be and
are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

3. To approve the alteration of the Articles of Association of the Company and in this regard,
to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in
force), the draft regulations contained in the Articles of Association submitted to this
meeting be and are hereby approved and adopted in substitution, and to the entire
exclusion, of the regulations contained in the existing Articles of Association of the
Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”
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4. To approve the reclassification of the authorised share capital of the company and
consequent amendment of the memorandum of association of the company and in this
regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 13, 61 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable rules made
thereunder the approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for cancellation of
unissued equity shares to the extent of 20,000 (Twenty Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10
each and simultaneous creation of 1000 (One Thousand) preference shares of Rs. 200
(Two Hundred) each aggregating to Rs. 2,00,000/-(Rs. Two Lakhs only).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the memorandum of association of the Company be and is
hereby altered by substituting the existing Clause 5 thereof by the following new Clause 5
as under:

5. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.1,76,00,00,000/- (Rupees One
Hundred Seventy Six Crore only) consisting of 17,59,80,000 (Seventeen Crore Fifty
Nine Laklis Eighty Thousand only) equity shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten) each and
1,000 (One Thousand) preference shares of Rs. 200 (Rupees two Hundred) eacl.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient
to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Alpana Kundu
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
M.No. F10191

Date: September 06, 2021
Place: Thane
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NOTES:

1. Considering the present Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA")
has vide its circular dated January 13, 2021, read together with circulars dated April 8,
2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”)
permitted convening the Annual General Meeting (“AGM"/ “Meeting”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC") or Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM"), without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. In accordance with MCA Circulars and
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the AGM of the Company is being
held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be the Registered Office
of the Company.

2. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act, relating to the Special Business to be
transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto.

3. Generally, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitied to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM pursuant to
the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed hereto.

4. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the route map of the venue of the
Meeting is not annexed hereto.

5.  Corporate members intending to authorise their representative(s) to attend the Meeting
are requested to send to the Company vide an email at alpana.kundu@kfintech.com, a
certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution authorising their representative(s) to
attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting, before the commencement of the
Meeting.

6. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

7.  In compliance with the MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report is
being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose email address are
registered with the Company / Depositories.

8. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements
in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act and the
relevant documents referred to in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection
by the members during the AGM.

9.  All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection
without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date
of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to
alpana.kundu@kfintech.com.
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10. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed
at the AGM are requested to write to the Company on or before 11.00 am on September
29, 2021 through e-mail on alpana.kundu@kfintech.com.The same will be replied by the
Company suitably.

11. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

12. Members can cast their vote by a show of hands during the AGM or by sending an e-mail
on alpana.kundu@kfintech.com in case of a poll.

13. The facility to join the AGM shall be kept open 15 minutes before and after the AGM
14. Instructions for Joining the AGM through VC/OAVM:

In case you already have Microsoft Teams installed on your Laptop / Computer / iPad /
Mobile Phone, click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” option from the invitation.

You will be connected to the meeting.

In case you do not have Microsoft Teams installed on your Laptop / Computer / iPad /
Mobile Phone, please follow the below given procedure to participate.

Option 1: For participating through Windows / Mac Book/ Com puter devices:

¢ Open the email invitation using preferably Google Chrome browser.

e Click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” option from the email invitation / your
calendar events.

e A new Browser window would open. Select “Join on the web instead”. Once you
reach to the “Enter Name” prompt, enter your name and click “Join as a Guest".

e You have entered in the Meeting. Make sure you start your camera and keep the
microphone “Mute” when not speaking.

Option 2: For installing Microsoft Teams on your Android / iOS / Microsoft Windows
devices:

e Click on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting” from the email invitation/calendar
events.
e System will prompt you to download Microsoft Teams.
* Download and Install Microsoft teams. Please do not try to login.
e Once installed, click on invitation once again on “Join Microsoft Teams Meeting”
from the email invitation/calendar events.
e You will be prompted to Microsoft Teams Application.
e Click on “Join as a Guest” option.
e Type your Name and once again click on “Join as a Guest”
e You have entered in the Meeting. Make sure you start your camera and keep the
microphone “Mute” when not speaking.
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Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in
the Notice:

Item No. 2:

The Board of Directors of the Company appointed, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1)
of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Srinivas Peddada (DIN
08755240) as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 7th July 2020.

In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Srinivas Peddada would hold office
up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. It is propose to appoint Mr. Srinivas
Peddada for the office of Director of the Company.

Mr. Srinivas Peddada is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section
164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a Director.

Brief profile of Mr. Srinivas Peddada and other requisite details pursuant to the provisions of the
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2"), issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India are as under: -

Profile:

Mr. Srinivas Peddada is a Senior Advisor at General Atlantic, drawing on more than 25 years of
experience in IT applications and infrastructure to provide strategic support and advice to the
firm’s investment teams and portfolio companies in the Technology sector in India & Southeast
Asia. Before joining General Atlantic in 2020, Mr. Srinivas Peddada was Executive Vice
President and Chief Information Officer at Bharat Financial Inclusion Limited, where he led a
team of 300+ professionals and oversaw technology strategy as part of the firm's broader
turnaround effort. Prior to that, Mr. Srinivas Peddada served as Chief Information Officer at Dun
& Bradstreet in its South Asia, Middle East & North Africa Group. He has also served as Chief
Technology Officer at AIG and GE Money (India Region), in addition to working as a Certified
Architect at IBM Albany NY.

Other requisite details:

Sr. | Particulars Details of the
No. Appointee
1. Age 54 Years
2. Qualifications B Tech
3. Experience 25 Years
4. Terms and conditions of appointment along with details of remuneration NA
sought to be paid and the remuneration last drawn by such person, if
applicable
5. Date of first appointment on the 02 July
Board 2020
6. Shareholding in the Company -

KFin Technologles Prwate lelted

(Formerly known as "Ka teck e Limiled")
Registered & Corporate Office
Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India, 500032.
Ph : +91 40 6716 2222, 7961 1000 | https://www.kfintech.com | CIN : U72400TG2017PTC117649



KFINTECH

nspired By Passion. Driven By Techne

7. Relationship with other Directors/Manager or Key Managerial -
Personnel

8. Number of Board Meetings attended during the year 6

9. Other Directorships and Memberships/Chairmanship of Committees of Nil
other Boards

Save and except Mr. Srinivas Peddada and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding
interest, if any, in the Company, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in
the resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval
by the shareholders.

Item No. 3:

Members will note that the shareholders’' agreement dated August 3, 2017 executed amongst
the Company and its shareholders, as amended from time to time, is terminated and the
Company is required to make certain amendments to its Articles of Association in order to
delete the provisions of the said agreement and incorporate certain provisions agreed between
the shareholders of the Company. Given this position, it is considered expedient to wholly
replace the existing Articles of Association by a new set of Articles.

Under Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, a special resolution is required to be passed at a
general meeting to alter the articles of association of the Company.

Relevant documents (including copies of the articles (current and proposed) of association of
the Company and the register of directors, including their shareholding) are open for inspection
by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, during business
hours up to the date of the Meeting.

None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in
any way, concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3
of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval
by the shareholders.

Item No. 4:

The existing authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 1,76,00,00,000 (One Hundred and
Seventy Six Crores only) divided into 17,60,00,000 (Seventeen Crores and Sixty Lakhs only)
equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 each.

It is proposed to cancel the unissued equity shares to the extent of 20,000 (Twenty Thousand)
equity shares of Rs. 10 each and simultaneous creation of 1000 (One Thousand) preference
shares of Rs. 200 (Two Hundred) each aggregating to Rs. 2,00,000/-(Rs. Two Lakhs only).
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Further, under Section 61 of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the members is required
to alter the authorised share capital of the Company. The reclassification of the authorised
share capital of the Company also requires relevant amendments to be made to the
memorandum of association of the Company, which requires approval of the members of the
Company by way of an ordinary resolution.

None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in
any way, concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4
of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval
by the shareholders

By Order of the Board of Directors
For KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

odl

Alpana Kundu
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
M.No. F10191

Date: September 06, 2021
Place: Thane
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known
as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31
March 2021, and the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and in the context of the overriding effect of the provision in the scheme of arrangement
as approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT"), regarding accounting of the amalgamation
of Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the ‘RTA Undertaking’ of Karvy Consultants Limited
(KCL) into the Company, give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to owr audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 45 of the standalone financial statements, regarding the amalgamation of Karvy
Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the ‘RTA Undertaking’ of Karvy Consultants Limited (KCL)
into the Company accounted for in financial year 2018-2019 with effect from 17 November 2018. In
accordance with the scheme approved by NCLT the amalgamation had been accounted for as per Accounting
Standard 14 - Accounting for Amalgamations’. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of KCPL and of the
RTA Undertaking of KCL had been recorded at their respective existing book values. The difference between
the book values of the net assets so recorded and the consideration (being the face value of equity shares
issued by the Company to the shareholders of KCL and cost of investment in equity shares of KCPL)
amounting to INR 67,491.55 lakhs had been debited to Goodwill. This Goodwill is being amoitised over a
period of ten years as per the terms of the Scheme and is also tested for impairment every year. Such
accounting treatment of this transaction is different from that prescribed under Ind AS 103 — ‘Business
Combinations’ which became applicable to the Company from the year ended 31 March 2019 and which
Principal Office:
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report of the standalone financial statements (continued)

Emphasis of matter (continued)

requires assets, liabilities and consideration to be measured at fair value and goodwill to be tested only for
impairment. Since no evaluation of the fair value of assets, liabilities and consideration as at the date of the
aforesaid amalgamation has been made by the management in view of the NCL T order referred to above, the
impact of this deviation cannot be determined. The effect of the aforesaid deviation in the accounting
treatment continues in the financial statements of the cuurent year.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key aundit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

I) Revenue recognition

Refer Note 2(M) and 28 to the standalone
financial statements.

Revenue is a key performance measure for the
Company. Revenue is generated from two key
services namely registry services and data
processing services. Revenue is recognised as
per the terms of the contract with the respective
customers and when it meets the recognition
criteria as per Ind AS 115 on “Revenue from
contracts with customers”.

There exists a nisk of revenue not being
recognised in proportion to the service
performed by the Company. Futher, revenue
may also be recorded in an incorrect period or on
a basis which is inconsistent with the contractual
terms agreed with the client.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following key audit procedures in this area:

» Performing the comparison of revenue recognition
accounting policies with applicable accounting
standards;

» Evaluating the design of controls and operating
effectiveness of the relevant key controls with
respect to revenue recognition;

» Performing substantive testing on samples selected
using statistical sampling method for revenue
transactions recorded during the year by testing the
underlying documentation/ records;

» Involving our information technology specialists to
test the general information technology controls
and key application controls sumrounding revenue
recognition;

» Testing on a sample basis using statistical sampling
method, specific revenue transactions recorded
before and after the financial year end date to check
revenue recognition in the correct financial period;
and

» Canrying out year on year variance analysis on
revemue recognised during the year to identify
unusual variances
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

(IT) Valuation of Trade receivable

Refer Note 2 (N & Q), Note 13 and Note 17 to
the Standalone financial statements.

As at 31 March 2021, gross trade receivables of
the Company amounted to INR 11,436.82 lakhs
(31 March 2020: INR 9,801.55 lakhs) (including
retention money receivable). The details of trade
receivables and their credit 1rsk have been
disclosed in Note 41 to the Standalone financial
statements.

The Company has created a provision on the
basis of Expected Credit L.oss model (ECL). The
Company has measured the lifetime expected
credit loss by using practical expedients. It has
accordingly used a provision matrix derived by
using a flow rate model to measure the expected
credit losses for trade receivables. It has also
considered time value of money in arriving at the
loss allowance. Fuither, need for incremental
provisions have been evaluated on a case to case
basis where forward looking information on the
financial health of a customer is available.

The provision for impairment of trade
receivables amounted to INR 1,443.19 lakhs as
at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: INR 1,409.40
lakhs).

The determination of recoverability of trade
receivables involves significant judgment and
inherent subjectivity given uncertainty regarding
the ability of the customer to settle their debts.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following key audit procedures in this area:

» Evaluating the design of controls and operating
effectiveness of the relevant key controls with
respect to Trade receivables;

» Testing the methodology used in the expected
credit 1oss provision workings by comparing it to
the requirements of Ind AS 109 on Financial
Instruments. Testing the mathematical accuracy of
the model used for impairment provision;

» Circulating trade receivable confirmations on a
sample basis using statistical sampling method
and also testing underlying invoices where
confirmations were not received;

» Assessing collections subsequent to the balance
sheet date; and

» We challenged the management on the
collectability of trade receivables, adequacy of
loss allowance for doubtful debts and for any
known credit losses on account of the financial
health of customers.
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Independent Auditor’s Report of the standalone financial statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(IIT) Impairment test of goodwill

Refer Notes 2(I), Note 4 and Note 43 to the
Standalone financial statements

As at 31 March 2021, the camying value of
Goodwill in the books of the Company is INR
51,625.60 lakhs (31 March 2020: INR 58,369.21
lakhs)

The Company performs an impairment test of
Goodwill under Ind AS 36 “Impairment of
Assets” on an annual basis and whenever there is
an indication of impairment.

In performing the impairment test of goodwill,
the Company has made several key assumptions,
such as growth rates, discount rates and
forecasted cash flows.

There is a risk of use of inappropriate judgment
in making these assumptions.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following key audit procedures in this area:

» involving our valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating the discount rates used, which included
comparison with the weighted average cost of
capital with sector averages for the relevant
markets in which the Company operates;

» evaluating the assumptions applied to key inputs
such as sales, operating costs and long-term growth
rates;

» performing sensitivity analysis, which included
assessing the effect of possible reductions in
growth rates and forecast cash flows to evaluate the
impact on the currently estimated headroom; and

» evaluating the adequacy of the standalone financial
statement disclosures, including disclosures of key
assumptions, judgments and sensitivities.

(IV) Unauthorised transfer by a Third Party
of shares issued by Client lying in an Escrow
account

Refer Note 36(B)(e) to the Standalone financial
statements

During the year, reconciliation was performed of
shares issued by Client held in an Escrow
Account  with Benpos. Through this
reconciliation, the Company identified certain
shares had been transferred (in 2011 and 2020)
from the said Escrow Account without any
authorisation from the Client and without
knowledge of the Company.

The Depository Patticipant (‘DP’) of the Client
had transferred the shares to its own Demat
account and to a Third Party’s Demat account
through an off-market transaction. The
Company has sought clarification/ details
through legal notice to the Parties involved to
verify the ownership of these shares.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following key audit procedures in this area:

» Understood the matter from the Chief Financial
Officer, Audit Committee Chairman and made
necessary enquiries

» Underlying documentation such as Benpos reports,
Escrow Accounts statements, legal opinion, report
issued by an independent expe1t were tested forthe
positions taken by the management and read the
minutes of Board meetings.

» Involved our intemal specialists to challenge the
scope and finding of the independent expert
engaged by the Company to review Escrow
Accounts reconciliation of other clients

» Read the extemal legal opinion sought by the
Company on the matter

» Communicated the matter to those charged with
governance
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

» Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made in

Further the Company has intimated this incident the standalone financial statements

to the Client, the DP and SEBI. The Company
also engaged an independent expert to cairy out
comprehensive exercise related to other clients.
This comprised reconciliation of Escrow
Accounts related to other clients where Demat
account is being maintained with the aforesaid
DP to identify differences in the shareholding
compared to Benpos.

Considering significant time spent during audit,
we have considered aforesaid matter as a key
audit matter.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Director’s Repoit, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ repoit thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we donot express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to repoit that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and B oard of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and mainfenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report of the standalone financial statements (continued)

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
(continued)

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s repoit. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report of the standalone financial statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ repoit unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Repoit) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement
of cash flows dealt with by this Repoit are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements, read with the matter referred to in the
Emphasis of Matter section above, comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 1 April 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors” Report in accordance with Rule 11

iii.

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 36(B) to the standalone financial
statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report of the standalone financial statements (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

iv. The disclosures in the standalone financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been

made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2021.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16):

The Company is a Private Limited Company; accordingly, the matter to be included in the Auditor’s
Report under Section 197(16) is not applicable to the Company.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231W/W- 100024

Digitally signed by
ARPAN ARPAN SHANTILAL JAIN

SHANTILAL JAIN Date: 2021.06.2¢

8:19:59 40530
Arpan Jain
Partner

Membership number: 125710
UDIN: 21125710AAAABI1042

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements

Withreference tothe Annexure A referred toin our Repoit of even date to the Members of KFin Technologies
Private Limited (“the Company”) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021,
we report that:

i

iii.

1v.

Vii.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a significant
portion of the fixed assets had been physically verified by the Management during the year.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable properties. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (i)
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is engaged in the business of rendering services and it does not hold any physical
inventories. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made. The Company has not
given any loans, guarantees and security to any person, body corporate or parties covered under the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (iv) of the Order to
this extent are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and
the rules framed there under to the extent notified. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (v) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess, Goods and
Service Tax and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the
year by the Company with the appropriate authorities though there have been delays ranging from
1 to 30 days in case of Provident Fund and Professional tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues were
in armrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs and Duty
of excise.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no dues of Sales tax and Goods and Service Tax which have
not been deposited with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute other than the dues of
Income tax and Service tax as set out below:

Name of statue | Nature of dues Amount Period to which Forum where
(INR in lakhs) the amount dispute is
relates pending
Finance Act, Service tax 1,146.11 | September 2004 | Customs, Excise
1994 (excluding | to January 2007 | and Service Tax
interest and Appellate
penalty) Tribunal
Income tax Act, | Income taxes 47.51 | 2007-08 High Cowt of
1961 Telangana
Income tax Act, | Income taxes 9.09 | 2015-16 The
1961 Commissioner of
Income Tax
(Appeal)
Income tax Act, | Income taxes 10.89 | 2016-17 The Deputy
1961 Commissioner of
Income Tax
Income tax Act, | Income taxes 31.06 | 2018-19 The Deputy
1961 Commissioner of
Income Tax

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of duty of Customs and duty of
Excise.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date. Further, the Company
does not have any outstanding loans or borrowings to any financial institutions, banks or Govermnment
during the year.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (ix) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public companies.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,

the provisions of Clause (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

Xiv.

records of the Company, the Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance
with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act,
Read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or paitly paid debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered info any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause (xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

for BS R & Associates LLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231W/W-100024

ARPAN Digitally signed by
SHANTILAL  §scrirmn
JAIN 18:2020 +05'30"
Arpan Jain
Partner

Membership number: 125710
UDIN: 21125710AAAABI1042

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of KFin
Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Opinion

‘We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of KFin Technologies
Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such intemal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the infemal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safegnarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls withreference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.



B S R & Associates LLP
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31 March 2021 (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fai1ly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have amaterial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231W/W- 100024

ARPAN Digitally signed by
SHANTILAL  fosioiartzon
JA'N 182042 +05'30
Arpan Jain

Partner

Membership number: 125710
UDIN: 21125710AAAABI1042

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Standalone Balance Sheet
(All amonnts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Asat Asat
Particulars Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
I. ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 284308 343224
Right-of-use assets 46 3317.27 3,547 32
Goodwill 4 51,625.60 58,369.21
Other intangible assets 5 428021 280251
Intangible assets under development 5 251.15 8.30
Financial assets
(1) Investments in subsidianies i 152206 1,522.06
(ii) Loans 7 457.15 450.68
(i1f) Other non-current financial assets 8 63.04 88.31
Deferred taxassets (net) 0 - 481.44
MNon-current tax assets 10 339566 3,309.67
Other non-current assets 11 21847 3643
Total non-cwrrent assets 67974.59 74,139.07
(2) Current assets
Financial assets
(1) Investments 12 0400.02 1,354 38
(ii) Trade receivables 13 000343 7,668.06
(i1i) Cashand cash equivalents 14 147144 833.00
(1v) Bank balances other than cashand cash equivalents 15 5434 28348
(v) Loans 16 26.88 3446
(wi) Other current financial assets 17 2019.37 1,667.47
Other current assets 18 87217 78575
Total current assets 23928.75 12,626 .69
TOTAL ASSETS 91903.34 86,765.76
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
Equity share capital 19 15,084.36 15,084 .36
Other equity 20 10,272.08 25,846.28
Total equity 34356.44 40,930 64
(2) Non-cwrrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) B orrowings 21 20,388.97 34,331.17
(ii) Lease liabilities 46 2,603.83 2,761 .82
Provisions 22 749.27 517.19
Deferred tax liabilities 0 12,405 81 -
Total non-current liabilities 4523788 37,610.18
(3) Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Trade payables 23
- Total dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3050 1.99
- Total dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 241000 2.030.78
(i1) Lease liabilities 46 081.38 011.99
(i1f) Other current financial liabilities 24 7,186.87 3,746.58
Other curent liabilities 25 1,265.79 111545
Provisions 26 180.54 33102
Current tax liabilities 27 135.85 86.23
Total current liabilities 12,309.02 8,224.94
Total liabilities 57,546.90 4583512
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 0190334 86,765.76
Significant accounting policies 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our Report of even dateattached

fr B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered Acconntants

ICATFirm Registration No.: 116231 WAV-100024 CIN: U72400TG2017PTC 117649

Digitally signed by VISHWANAT Dot sanedsy ey,
ARPAN ARPAN SHANTILAL JAIN HAN MAVILA Maveasa  SATOANAG
Date: 2021 0624 D201 06 24 SREEKANT
SHANTILAL JAIN 133501 40540 NAIR 1:.':901 "05'30 NADELLA
Arpan Jain Vishwanathan M Nair Sreekanth Nadella
Fartner Chairman Whole time Director &

Membership Mo 125710 DIN: 02284165

Jor and on behalfofBoard of Directors of
KFin Technologies Private Limited

Chief Executive Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 June 2021

DIN: 08659728

Place: Hydembad
Date: 24 June 2021
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MATHUR

Vivek Narayan Mathur
Chief Financial Cfficer
Membership No.: A080454

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24 June 2021
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UTTAM KUNDU

Datec2021.0624

KUNDU 144217 +0530°
Alpama Uttam Kundu

Company Secretary

Membership Mo.: F10191
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(ALl amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income
I Revenue from operations 28 47,178.96 44.057.60
I Otherincome 29 469.12 T764.13
III. Total Income (I+II) 47,648.08 44821.73
IV. Expenses
Employee benefits expense 30 18,358 .64 18,740.43
Finance cost 31 5,191.27 5,324 18
Depreciation and amort sation expense 32 9,791.28 9,215.86
Other expenses 33 7,866.01 0.583.88
Total expenses (IV) 41,207.20 42 864.40
V. Profit before tax ( II-IV ) 6,440.88 1,957.33
VI. Tax expense:
Current tax 35 207.00 -
Deferred tax expenses 35 12,965.28 1,369.95
13,172.28 1,369.95
VII (Loss)/ profit for the year (V-VI) (6,731.40) S87.38
VIII. Other comprehensive income
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 4757 (169.05)
Income tax rel ating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans (11.97) 4255
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VIII) 35.60 (126.50)
IX. Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year (VII+VIII) (6,695.80) 460.88
X Earmngs per equity share (face value of INR 10 each, fully paid-up) 34
Basic (4.46) 0.37
Diluted (4.46) 0.37
Sigm ficant accounting policies 1 &2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standal one financial statements

Asper our Report of even date attached

jor BS R & Associates LLP

Jor and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants KFin Technologies Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Mo 116231 W/W-100024 CIN: U72400TG2017PTC117649

ARPAN Digitally signd by VISHWANAT 5 smed oy
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JA'N aa MAIR 15:4%49 +05 30 NADELLA MATHUR
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Membership No.: 125710

Flace: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Standalone Statement of changes in equity
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital and other equity

Particulars E quity share Other equity Total other equity
capital Securities Capital Capital redemption Debenture Retained earnings| Sharebased Other
preanium reseve reserve redemption reserve payment comprehensive
reserve income
Opening Balanceas at 1 April 2019 16,583.14 34,302.52 1.00 - 750.00 01.27 - 51.92 35,286.71
Created dunng the year (Refer Note 19 and 20) - - - 1,498.78 - - - - 1,498.78
Profit for the year - - - - - 587.38 - - 58738
Utilised towards buy back of equity shares and creation of - (11,12847) - - - - - - (11,128.47)
Capital redemption reserve (Refer Note 19 and 20)
Share based payments (Fefer Note 49) - - - - - - 163.10 - 163.10
Buy-back of equity shares (Refer Note 19) (1,498.78) - - - - - - - -
Taxes paid on buy back of equity shares - (439.72) - - - - - - (439.72)
Femeasurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) - - - - - - - (126.50) (126.50)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 15,084.36 22,824.33 1.00 1,408.78 750.00 678.65 168.10 (74.58) 25,846.28
Opening Balanceas at 1 April 2020 15,084.36 22,824.33 1.00 1498.78 750.00 678.65 168.10 (74.58) 25,846.28
Loss for the year - - - - - (6,731.40) - - -6,731.40
Share based payments (Fefer Note 49) - - - - - - 121.60 - 121.60
Femeasurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) - - - - - - - 35.60 35.60
Balance as at 31 March 2021 15,084.36 22,824.33 1.00 1,498.78 750.00 (6,052.75) 289.70 (38.98) 19,272.08
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements
As per our Report on standalone financial statements of even date attached
Jjor BS R & Associates LLP Jor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants KFin Technologies Private Limited
ICAI Firm Regstration Moo 116231 W/W-100024 CIN: U72400TG2017PTC117649 VIVEK ALPANA | Dty signed
ARPAN oA AN VISHWANATHA St gy o NARAYAN UTTAM E%‘;ﬁ‘.?'&.w
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KFin Techmologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

A. Cash flows from operating ac tivities
Net profit before tax
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Amortisation expense on Right-ofuse asset
Profit on sale of property plant & equipment, net
Interest income on deposits
Dividend income from current investments and subsidiary
Unwinding of discount on deposits
Liabilities no longer required written back
Rent concession
Income on derecognition of ROU and lease liability
Foreign exchange loss/ (gain) (net)
Interest expense
Allowance for credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets
Credit impaired trade receivables written-off
Share based payment
Operating profit before working capital changes

Worki g C@fﬂ!fﬂu‘_' TUS:

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in other current financial assets

Decrease/ (increase) inloans

Increase in other non- current financial assets
Increase in other assets

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables

Increase/ (decrease) in other current financial labilities
Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase in current provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (including tax deducted at source)
Net cash generated from operating ac tivities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing ac tivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets
(including capital and intangible worl-inprogress, capital advances and capital creditors)
Acguisiion ofbusiness (Refer MNote 45)
Investment in subsidianes
Purchase of other intangible assets
Fized deposits redeemed/ (placed) with banls
(Investments i)/ proceeds from redemption of mutual funds
Interest income
Dividend income from mutual funds and subsidiary
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing ac tivities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing ac tivities
Payment of lease liabilities
Buy-back of equity shares including tazes paid
Repaymert of debentures
Interest paid on debentures
Net cash used in financing ac tivities (C)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the standalone balance sheet (Refer Note 14)

Cash on hand
Balance with banks:
(1) in current accounts

6,440 88 195733
8,734.21 8421.24
1,057.07 794.62

(9.86) (13.01)
(10.05) (94.17)
(199.03) (575.81)
(24.57) (15.85)

- (29.85)
(118.03) -

(8.84) -

47.06 (35.44)
5,101.27 5318.66

80.02 486.60

3844 -
121,60 168.10

21,350.07 16,382.42
(2,562.04) (194.42)
(289.04) (61.30)
217 (135.40)

(0.05) (0.09)
(268.46) (361.89)
416.82 (94.27)
1,373.85 (2,277.21)
150.34 (147.56)
237.27 102.54

20,409.13 13,212.64
(24337 (2,076.35)
20,165.76 10,236.29
(2,067.53) (740.06)
- (2,653.35)

- (1.00)

254 46 2,803.15
(8,136.54) 0.696.28

10.05 04.17
109.03 575.81

(10,640.53) 9,775.00

(1,124.71) (857.77)

- (11,568.19)
(3,200.00) (1,600.00)
(4,562.17) (6,525.04)
(3,886 38) (20,551.00)

638.35 (539.71)
833.00 1,372.80
1,471.44 833.00

- 0.84
1471 44 832.25
147144 833.00




KFin Techmologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes
1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared wnder the 'Indirect Method' as set outin the Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statements".

Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original matwrity of three months or less from the
date ofacquisition), highly iquid investments that are readily conwvertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

7y Refer Mote 21 for reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets arising from financing activities.
A per our Report on standalone financial statements of even date attached
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Computers and  Fumnitureand Office equipment Plant and Vehicles Total Capital
improvements other related fixtures Machinery work-in-
assets progress
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 Apnil 2019 1,592.44 1,944.56 196.17 374.59 70,82 118.90 4,297.48 3561
Acquisition through business combinations (Refer Note 44) - 20838 3.24 2.17 0.26 - 311.05 -
Additions 2331 544.55 1.50 27.04 1.61 15.00 613.01 -
Re-classifications® 0.31) (82.33) 13.69 (31.16) 0.34 - ©2.77) -
Disposals - (1.54) - 0210 - (20.19) 21.94) -
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - - - - - - - (35.61)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,615.44 2,703.62 214.60 379.43 73.03 113.71 5,099.83 -
Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,615.44 2,703.62 214.60 379.43 73.03 113.71 5,099.83 -
Additions 156.94 43081 - 3870 - 54.89 681.34 -
Disposals - - (1.23) (3.66) (1.61) (20.47) (26.97) -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,772.38 3,134.43 213.37 414.47 71.42 78.13 5,684.20 -
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 Apnil 2019 129.45 26148 12.10 71.05 238 10.20 486.66 -
Depreciation for the year 352.06 67898 36.04 127.40 7.64 31.59 1,23371 -
ERe-classifications® - (21.60) 010 2647) 033 - “7.64) -
Disposals - (0.29) - (0.02) - (4.83) (5.14) -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 481.51 918.57 48.24 171.96 10.35 36.96 1,667.59 -
Balance as at 1 April 2020 481.51 91857 48.24 171.96 10.35 36.96 1,667.59 -
Depreciation for the year 370.09 71263 33.92 78.69 7.54 1269 1,215.56 -
Disposals - - (0.53) (3.00) (1.29) (37.21) (42.03) -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 851.60 1,631.20 81.63 247.65 16.60 12.44 2,841.12 -
As at 31 March 2021 920.78 1,503.23 131.74 166.82 54.82 65.69 2,843.08 -
As at 31 March 2020 1,133.93 1,785.05 166.36 207.47 62.68 7675 3,432.24 -

*Durmg FY 19-20, the management has reclassified certain assets between various asset categories to ensure consistent classification.

Note:
Refer note 21 forthe details of property, plant and equipment that has been pledged as security



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Goodwill
Amount
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 67,491.55
Acquisitions through business combmations (Refer MNote 44) 136.01
Additions -
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 67,627.56
Balance as at 1 April 2020 67,627.56
Additions -
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 67,627.56
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2019 2,496.26
Amortisation for the year 6,762.09
Balance as at 31 March 2020 9,258.35
Balance as at 1 April 2020 9,258.35
Amortisation for the year 6,743.61
Balance as at 31 March 2021 16,001.96
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2021 51,625.60
At 31 March 2020 58,369.21
5 Other intangible assets
Computer Customer Total Intangible
Software relationships assets under
development
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 361.91 - 361.91 0.95
Acquisitions through business combmations (Refer MNote 44) 1651 2,189.78 2,206.29 -
Re-classifications™® 99.77 - 99.77 -
Additions 25822 - 25822 110.45
Transfer to ntangible assets - - - (103.10)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,236.41 2,189.78 3,426.19 8.30
Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,236.41 2,189.78 342619 830
Additions 2,162.74 - 2,162.74 479.93
Transfer to ntangible assets - - - (237.08)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,399.15 2,189.78 5,588.93 251.15
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2019 60.60 - 60.60 -
Amortisation for the year 255.24 170.20 42544 -
Re-classifications™® 47.64 - 47.64 -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 363.48 170.20 533.68 -
Balance as at 1 April 2020 363.48 170.20 533.68 -
Amortisation for the year 337.56 437.48 775.04 -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 701.04 607.68 1,308.72 -
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2021 2,698.11 1,582.10 4,280.21 251.15
At 31 March 2020 872.93 2,019.58 2,89251 330

*During FY 19-20, the management has reclassified certain assets between various asset categories to ensure consistent classification.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10

11

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in equity instruments - unguoted- at cost less provision for other than temporary impairment

800 (31 March 2020: 800) equity shares of KFin Technologies (Bahrain) WL.L
[fommerly lmownas Karvy Fintech (Bahrain) W.L.L], of BHD 50 each fully paid-up

100,000 (31 March 2020: 100,000) equity shares of KFin Technologies (Malaysia) SDIM.BHD.
[fommerly lmown as Karvy Fintech (Malaysia) SDMBHD], MYR 1 each fully paid-up

10,000 (31 March 2020: Nil) equity shares of KFin Services Private Limited, INR 10 each fully paid-up

Aggregate amount of un-quoted non-current inve stments
Aggregate amount of provision for impairment in value of non-curent investments

Non-current loans
Uhsecured considered good

Rental deposits

The Company’s exposure to credit nsksare disclosed in Note 41

Break up of security details

(a) Loans considered good - Secured

(b) Loans considered good - Unsecured

(c) Loans which have significant increase in credit rislk
() Loans - credit impaired

Total

Allowance for credit loss

Total loans

Other non-current financial assets

Electricity deposits
Telephone deposits
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from balance sheet date)*

1,354.61 1,354.61
167.35 167.35
1.00 1.00
1522.96 1522.96
1,522.96 1,522.96
45715 450.68
457.15 450.68
45715 37258
457.15 372.58
457.15 372.58
5247 5243
1.05 1.04
0.52 3484
63.04 88.31

* represents fized deposits amounting to INR. 9.52 (31 March 2020: INR. 34 84) whichis not freely remissible because of contractual restrictions.

The Company’s exposure to credit nsksare disclosedin Note 41

There are no debts due to Company by Directors either individually, severally or jointly with another person, by firms or private companies in which any director is a partner

or director or member .

Deferred tax (liability)/ assets (net)

Deferred tax assets

Provision for employee benefits and certain other liabilities

Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets
Carry forward losses

Others

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and other intangible assets
Others

Total deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax (liability)/ assets (net)

Non-current tax assets

Advance income-taz including tax deducted at sowrce

(net of provision for tax INR. 4,643.00; 31 March 2020: INR. 782.58)
Other non-current assets

Capital advances
Prepayments

30470 276.65
377.35 3547
- 3,114.07
78.90 415.77
761.04 416124
(12,800.50) (3,463.88)
(366.26) (215.92)
(13,256.85) (3,679.80)
(12,495.81) 48144
3,305.66 3,300.67
3395.66 3300.67
3.00 -
214.48 36.43
218.47 36.43




KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2020

12 Current investments

13

14

15

Investments in equity instruments - quoted - at FVTPL
1,204480 (31 March 2020: Nil) equity shares of Petronet LNG Limited of INR 10 each, fully paid-up

Investments in mutual funds - quoted - at FVTPL

63,611 (31 March 2020: 12,128) units of D SP Blackrock Liguidity Fund - Regular Plan -Daily Dividend

53,014 (31 March 2020: 22,310) units of L &T Liquid Fund - Regular Liquid Daily Dividend Reinvestment Plan
114,164 (31 March 2020: 8,387) units of TATA Liguid Fund Regular Plan - Daily Dividend

02,540 (31 March 2020: 8,193) units of Kotak Liquid Regular Plan Daily Dividend

03,156 (31 March 2020: 11,603) units of HDFC Liguid Fund-Regular Plan Daily Dividend Reinvestment
1,027,300 (31 March 2020: 193,041 units of ICICT Prudential Liguid Fund - Daily Dividend

MNil (31 March 2020: 23,957) units of Franklin India Liquid Fund - Super Institutional Plan, Daily Dividend Plan
111,271 (31 March 2020: 27,097) units of SBI Liguid Fund - Regular Daily Dividend

Aggregate amount of quoted current investments and market value thereof
Agpgregate market value of quoted curent inve stments

2,008.07 -
2908.07 -
636.71 121.39
536.38 22715
1,143.38 84.00
1,131.70 100.18
050.02 118.33
1,028.83 193.33
- 130.57
1,155.83 270.43
6,582.85 1,354.38
9,490.92 1,354.38
0.400.02 1,354.38
0.40002 1,35438

Note: The Company has held certain shares of its customer as a trustee. The Compary is in process of transfemring those shares to the relevant accownt based of the instruction

to be received from respective customers.

Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)

Trade recervables
Receivables from related parties (Refer MNote 40)

Less: Allowance for credit loss

Break up of security details

(a) Tradereceivables considered good - Secured

(b) Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured

(c) Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
() Tradereceivables - credit impaired

Total

Allowance for credit loss

Total trade receivables

Movements in the provision for credit impaired trade receivables are as follows:

Opening balance

Balance transferred to trade receivables from retention money (Refer Note 17)
Allowance for credit loss created during the year

Closing balance

The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to tradereceivables are disclosed in Note 41

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balance with banles:
(1) in cwrent accounts

Bankb alances other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank balance in deposit accounts (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12
months from reporting date)*

11353.04 8794.13
8378 165.25
11,436.82 8959.38
(1443.19) (1,201.32)
9993.63 7,668.06
827046 671158
2,17813 1,530.65
979.23 71715
11,436.82 8959.38
(1443.19) (1,201.32)
999363 766806
129132 804.72
118.08 -
3379 486.60
144319 1,201.32

- 0.84

147144 83225
147144 833.00
5434 28348
5434 28348

* Includes fized deposits amounting to INR.46.13 (31 March 2020: INR 271.64) which is not freely remissible because of contractual restrictions.

The Company's exposure to credit risks are disclosed in Note 41



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

16 Current loans
Loans to employees 26.88 3446
26.88 34.46

Break up of security details

(a) Loans considered good - Secured - -
(b) Loans considered good - Unsecured 26.88 2211
(c) Loans which have significant increase in Credit Risk -

() Loans - credit impaired - -
Total current loans 26.88 2211

The Company's exposure to credit risk are disclosed in Note 41.
There are no debts due to Company by Directors either individually, severally or jointly with another person, by firms or private companies in which any director is a partner
or director or member .

17 Other cuwrrent financial assets

Unsecured, Considered good

Retention money receivable - 72400
Contract assets - unbilled revenue 79333 886.70
Stamp duty receivables 08518 -
Other receivables 190.96 -
Others 40.90 56.59
2019.37 1667.47
Unsecured, Considered doub tful
Retention money receivable - 118.08
Other receivables 56.13 -
56.13 118.08
Less: Allowance for credit loss
Retention money receivable - (118.08)
Other receivables (56.13) -
(5613) (118.08)
2019.37 1667.47
Movements in allowance for credit loss of other cunrent financial assets are as follows:
Opening balance 118.08 118.08
Balance transferred to Allowance for creditloss on trade receivables (Refer Note 13) (118.08) -
Allowance for credit loss created during the year 56.13 -
Closing balance 56.13 118.08
The Company's exposure to credit rislks are disclosed in MNote 41,
18 Other current assets
Advancesto vendors for supply of goods/ services 236.96 15740
Balance with govemment authorities 12587 268092
Prepaid expenses 457.89 20887
Advancesto employees 51.45 6047

87217 785.75



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19 Share capital

h.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Authorised

176,000,000 (previous year 176,000,000) equity shares of IINR 10 each 17,600.00 17,600.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
150,843,583 (previous year 150,84 3,583) equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up 15,084.36 15,084.36

15,084 36 15,084.36

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per equity share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and in the Company's residual
assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. In the event of iquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the
residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the munber of equity shares held.

One ofthe shareholders ofthe Company has been granted call options which can be exercised upon meeting various performance and other parameters as defined in the Shareholders A greement.
Considering that these are derivatives on the Company's own equity, there is no accounting necessary in respect of these call options.

Employee Stock options:
The Company has granted certain stock options to their employees, the details of which are included in Note 48.

Reconciliation of shares outstand ing at the becinning and end of the period:

Particulars No. of shares Amount
Asatl April 2019 16,58,31,420 16,583.14
Shares issued during the year - -
Buy back of equity shares during the year® (Refer Note 20) 1409,87,846 1,498.78
Asat3]1 March2020 15,08,43,583 15,084.36
Shares issued during the year - -
Asat3]1 March2021 15,08,43,583 15,084.36

* The Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company, vide their meetings held on 27 September 2019 and 30 September 2019 respectively, have approved the buy back of 14,987,846
equity shares of the Company at a price of INR 74.25 per equity share (including share premiwm of INR. 64.25 per equity share). The buy back process was completed by the Company in
October 2019, Accordingly, the Company has extinguished 14,987,846 equity shares for an aggregate purchase price of INR 11,128 48 lakhs. The aggregate face value of the equity shares
bought back was INR 1,498.78 lalkhs. Accordingly, the Company has reduced share capital by INR 1 498.78 lalkhs and the balance amount of INR 9,629.70 lalhs has been debited to Securities
Premium Account. As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has created a Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR) equal to INR 1,498 78 lakhs. The CRR has been created
out ofthe balance in the Securities Premivm The buy back taxz amounting to INR 43972 lakhs paid by the Company has also been debited to Secunities Premiwm

Details of shares held by holding company

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Number of shares Percentag Number of shares Percentag)

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up, held by:

General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd 12,55,80,400 83.25% 12,55,80,400 83.25%

Total 12,55,80 400 83.25% 12,55,80,400 83.25%

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Number of Shares Percentag Nurb er of Shares Percentag)

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up, held by:

General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd 12,55,80,400 83.25% 12,55.80,400 83.25%

Compar Estates and Agencies Pyt Ltd 1,84,14 206 12.21% 1.84,14,206 12.21%

Total 14,39,94 696 95.46% 14,39,94,696 95.46%

During the five year ended on 31 March 2021, no shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.
The Company has not allotted any shares as filly paid by way of boms shares during the five year period ended on 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: Mil).
Shares reserved for issue under Option: For details of shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company, Refer Note 49,

During the five year ended on 31 March 2021, the Company has bought back 14,987 846 equity shares under Buy-back Plan 2019,
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Notes to standalone financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

20

(a)

(®)

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

Particulars Note Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Other equity
Capital reserve a
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.00 100
Addition dunng the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 1.00 1.00
Securities premium b
Balance at the beginning of the year 22,824 33 34,392.52
Less: Utilized towards buy back of equity shares and creation of Capital redemption reserve (Eefer Note 19) - (11,128.47T)
Less: Taxes pad on buy back of shares (Fefer MNote 19) - (439.77)
Balance at the end of the year 22,824.33 22,824.33
Debenture redemption reserve (DRR) c
Balance at the beginning of the year T50.00 75000
Add: Transfer from surplus in profit andless - -
Balance at the end of the year 750.00 750.00
Retained earnings d
Balance at the beginning of the year 67865 9127
Add: (Loss)/ Profit for the year (6,731.40) 587 38
Balance at the end of the year (6,052.75) 678.65
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Other comprehensive income) e
Balance at the beginning of the year (74.58) 5192
Add: Prefit/ (loss) for the year 35.60 (126.50)
Balance at the end of the year (38.98) (74.58)
Share based payment reserve f
Balance at the beginning of the year 168.10 -
Add: Charge for the year 121.60 168.10
Balance at the end of the year 289.70 168.10
Capital redemption reserve g
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,49878 -
Add: Transferred during the year (Fefer MNote 19) - 1,498.78
Balance at the end of the year 1,498.78 1,498.78
Total other equity (atb+ctd+etf+g) 19,272.08 25,846.28

Natur e and purpose of other reserves

Capital reserve

Feserve created was on cancellation of equity shares pursuant to Scheme of amalgamation approved by MNational Company Law Tribunal dunng the previous year.

Securities premium

The amount recetved in excess of face value of the equity shares 15 recognised in Securities Premium Feserve It can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, to 1ssue beonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentures, write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs etc. Durning the
previcus year, the Company has utilised a portion of amount for buy back of shares (including taxes paid) and creation of capital redemption reserve.

Debenture redemption reserve

According to Section 71 of the Companies Act 2013, where a company 1ssues debentures, it1s required to create a debenture redemption reserve for the redemption of
such debentures.

The Central Government on 16 August 2019 has amended the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Fules 2014 to exclude listed companies having privately
placed debentures from the requirement of mantaining DRE. Accordingly, the Company has not transferred any amount to DEE for the year ended 31 March 2021

Retained earnings
Fetained earnings represents the net profits after all distributions and transfers to other reserves.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Femeasurement of defined benefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits:

(a) actuarial gans and losses

(b) the retumn on plan assets, excluding amounts included in netinterest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

(c) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included 1n net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)

Share-based paym ent reserve
The Company has established vanous equity-settled share based payments plans for certain categones of employees of the Company and its subsidianies. Befer MNote
49 for further details on these plans.

Capital redemption reserve
Fepresents reserve created for cancellation of 14,987 847 equity shares bought back under buy back plan (Fefer MNete 19).
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Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Non-cmrent borrowings
Mon-convertible Debentures (secured) 34,588.97 37.531.17
Less: Current matunities of long term debt (Refer note 24) (5,200.00) (3,200.00)
20,38807 34331.17

During the FY 18-19, the Company had issued 4,000 non-convertible debentures (NCDs) of IINR 1,000,000 each to Momwra Singapore Limited and Standard Chartered Bank,
Singapore for an amount of MR 40,000 lakhs. Transaction costs amounting to INR. 1,198.69 lalkhs had been netted off against the amount of Debentures. The NCDs are listed on the
Bombay Stock Exchange, India with effect from 29 Movember 2018, The NCDs are repayable in 10 half yearly instalments commencing from 30 September 2019 to 16 November

2023 and carry an interest rate of 11.5% per annum due half yearly beginning fom 31 March 2020

Particulars Non-current Accrued interest Total
borr 12 (Refer Note 24)
Net debt as at 01 April 2019 38.886.71 1,713.97 40,600.68
Loan drawls (in cash)/ interest accrued during the year - 5,061.04 5,061.04
Loan repayments/ interest payment during the year (in cash) (1,600.00) (6,517.95) (8,117.95)
Amortisation as per effective interest mte 244 46 (244 46) -
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 37,53117 12.60 37,543.77
Netdebt as at1 April 2020 37,53117 12.60 37543.77
Interest accrued dunng the year - 4831.79 4831.79
Loan repayments/ interest payment during the year (in cash) (3,200.00) (4,562.17) (7,762.17)
Amortisation as per effective interest mte 25780 (257.80) -
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 34,588.97 2442 34,613.39
Security
The debentures are secured by :
(i) a first ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Account Assets under the IPA Deed of Hypothecation,
(i1) a first ranking charge by way of hypothecation onall the Company Assets under the Company Deed of Hypothecation
Non-cmrent provisions
FProvision for employee benefits
Gratuity 613.47 30112
Compensated absences 135.80 126.07
74927 51719
Refer Mote 39(i) for disclosure related to employee benefits.
Tradepayables
Total dues of micro enterprisesand small enterprises * 30.50 1.99
Total dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 241000 203078
2449.59 2,032.77
* Refer MNote 38 for disclosure relating to Micro enterprises and small enterprises
For details regarding trade payables due to related parties, Refer Note 40.
Other cwrrent financial liabilities
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer MNote 21) 5,200.00 3,200.00
Interest accrued and not due on non-convertible debentures (Refer Note 21) 2442 12.60
Security deposit payable 32.87 3201
Employee payables 200.08 167.65
Capital creditors 139.87 8525
Other liabilities 1,580.63 24007
7,18687 3,746.58
The Company’s exposure to liquidity risks related to above financal liabilities is disclosed inNote 41,
Other cwrrent liabilities
Contract liabilities (Advance from customers) 200.63 261.05
Statutory dues payable 849.60 77258
Contract liabilities (Uneamed income) 125.56 8182
1,265.79 111545
Cwrent provisions
FProvision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 17.09 112.29
Compensated absences 7245 219.63
28054 331.92
Refer Note 39 for disclosure related to provisions for employee benefits.
Cwrent tax liability (net)
Provision for tazation 135.85 86.23
(MNet of advance taz INR. 9,278.38; 31 March 2020: 5,937.32)
13585 86.23
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Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from operations
Sale of services 45,416.53 41,171.89
Total (A) 45,416.53 41,171.89
Other operating revenues
Fecoverable expenses 1,762.43 288571
Total (B) 1,762.43 2,885.71
Total (A+B)* 47,178.96 44,057.60
*Refer Note 50
Other income
Interest income from:
-Bank deposits (camried at amortised cost) 10.05 9417
-Unwinding of discount on deposits 24.57 1585
-Income-tax refund 81.97 -
Dividend income from:
- Investment in subsidianes - 254.84
- Investments in mutual funds 199.03 320.97
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipm ent (net) 9.86 1301
Liabilities no longer required written back - 29.85
Foreign exchange gain (net) - 3544
Income on derecogmition of REOU and lease hakility 384 -
Eent concession 118.03 -
Miscellaneous income 16.77 -
469.12 764.13
Employee benefits exp ense
Salanes and wages 16,555.49 16,790.32
Contribution to provident and other funds [Fefer Mote 39(1)] 1,365.94 1,267.56
Share based payment expenses (Fefer MNote 49) 121.60 168.10
Staft welfare expenses 31561 514.50
18,358.64 18,740.48
Finance cost
Interest on debentures (at amortised cost) 483179 5,068.13
Unwinding of interest on lease liabilities (Refer Mote 46) 35948 250.53
Other interest costs - 552
5191.27 5,324.18
Depreciation and am ortisation expense
Depreciaton on property, plant and equipm ent 1,215.56 1,23371
Amortization of goodwmll 6,743.61 6,762.09
Amortization of other intangible assets T75.04 42544
Amortization of nght of use asset (Refer MNote 46) 1,057.07 794.62
9,791.28 9,215.86
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

33 Other expenses

Power and fuel 48296 59478
Eent 598.68 499.24
Fepairs and maintenan ce:

- Others 111.87 145.68
Fates and taxes 2256 40.21
Legal and professional fee® 202022 1,390.61
Consultancy T04.04 85755
Cffice maintenance 357.00 446.18
Securnity services 109.47 12410
Computer and software maintenance 656.79 169.50
Corporate social responsibility ** 3352 2719
Allowance for credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets 8992 486.60
Credit impatred trade recervable s written-off 3844 -
Printing and stationery 468.90 99522
Postage, courter and communication 1,764.73 267324
Travelling and conveyance 12265 662.57
Shared services cost 1879 22114
Insurance 3478 3168
Staff recrutment 3919 8132
Sales promotion and advertisement 36.56 78.20
Depository charges 227 711
Claims paid 758 6.84
“Water charges 9.00 1564
Fair value loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and less, net 72.08 -
Bank charges 463 392
Foreign exchange loss (net) 47.06 -
Mlizcellanecus 12.32 1736

7,866.01 9,583.88

* Payment to aunditors (included in legal and professional expenses above)

As auditor
Statutory audit 27.00 26.00
Limitedreview 4.00 4.00
Certification 2.00 7.50
Others 9.00 3.00
Cut of pocket expenses 1.00 2.89
43.00 43.39
**Corporate social r esponsibility
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company dunng the year 33.07 2461
b)) Amount spent dunng the year (in cash) :
1) Constructon/ acquisition of any asset - -
11) On purpeses other than (i) above 3352 2719
34 Earning per share (EPS)
(Loss)/ profit attnbutable to equity shareholders (4) (6,731.40) 58738
Shares
Mumber of shares at the beginning of the year 15,08,43,583 16,58,31,429
Add: Ecquity shares 1ssued dunng the year - -
Less: Shares cancelled dunng the year - (1,49 87,846)
Number of shares at the end of the year 15,08,43,583 15,08,43,583
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (B) 15,08,43,583 15,87,68,663
Effect of potential equity shares on employee stock ophons outstanding 71,065 80,375
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EFS () 15,0914 652 15,88,49,038
Basic EFS - par value of INE. 10 per share (A/B) (in INE) (4.46) 0.37
Diluted EFS - par value of IME. 10 per share (A/C) (in INE) (4.48) * 0.37

* Since the Company has losses in the current year, the Dilutive EFPS 15 considered to be Basic EPS on account of anti-dilutive effect
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35 Income tax

A. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

C.

D.

Cwrrent tax expense

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Current year 207.00 -
207.00 -
Deferred tax charge/ (credit)
Change inrecognised temporary differences 12,065.28 1,369.95
12,965.28 1369.95
Total tax expense 13,172.28 1.369.95
Amounts recognised in Other comprel income
Particular For the year ended 31 March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2020
Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax
Income Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit iability 47.57 (11.97) 35.60 (169.05) 42,55 (126.50)
4757 11.97) 35.60 (169 05) 42.55 (126.50)

Reconciliation of effec tive tax rate

Profitbefore tax
Enacted tax rate in India*
Tazx using the Company’s domestic tax mte

Tax effect of:

Impact of change in tax rate*

Impact of change in Finance Act, 2021 **

Impact of differencial tax mte

Impact of tax exempt income

Permanent differences

Reversal of Minimmun altemative credit entitlement™
Others

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

6,440.88 1,057.33
25.168% 25.168%
1,621.04 492,62

- 42005

11,192.85 -

(6.90) -
- (80.78)
377.20 13258
- 27155
(11.91) 124 03
13,172.28 1360.95

* The Tazation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (*Ordinance’) was promulgated on 20 September 2019, The Ordinance has amended the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
Finance Act, 2019 to inter-alia provide an option to domestic companies to pay income tax at a reduced tax of 22 percent plus applicable surcharge and cess with certain

conditions to be met. The Company has opted for this amendment and tax rate is calculate

entitlement of INR 271.55 as at 31 March 2019 was charged to the statement of profit and loss account as the Company is no longer entitled to it.

22 plus applicable surcharge and cess Accordingly, the unused MAT credit

** The Finance Act, 2021 has introduced an amendment to Section 32 ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961, whereby goodwill ofa business will not be considered as a depredable
asset and depreciation on goodwill will not be allowed as deductible expenditure effective April 1, 2020, In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 12 Income Tazes,
the Company has recognised one time tax expense as the outcome on the difference between Goodwill as per the boolks of accownt and its updated tax base of Mil resulting

from the aforementioned amendment.

Movement in deferred taxbalances

As at Recognised in Recognised in Recognised in As at
1 April 2020 Statement of other Other equity 31 March 2021
profit and loss comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and other imtangible (3,463.88) (9,426.71) - - (12,890.59)
assets
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and other 35475 2260 - - 377.35
financial assets
Provision for employee benefits and certain other liabilities 276.65 4011 (11.97) - 304.79
Canry forward losses 3,114.07 (3,114.07) - - -
Others 109.85 (487.21) - - (287.36)
Net deferred tax assets 481.44 (12,965.28) 11.97) - (12,495.81)
As at Recognised in Recognised in Recognised in As at
1 April 2019 Statement of other Other equity 31 March 2020
profit and loss comprehensive
income
Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and other imtangible (1,926.49) (1,537.39) - - (3,463.88)
assets
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and other 32246 3220 - - 35475
financial assets
Provision for employee benefits and certain other liabilities 50427 (360.17) 42,55 - 276.65
Canry forward losses 233845 T75.62 - - 3,114.07
Minimumn Altermate Tax credit entitlement 271.55 (271.55) - - -
Others 208.60 (8.75) - - 109.85
Net deferred tax assets 1,508.84 (1,369 95) 4255 48144
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Commitments, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A. Commitments
Capital commitments 306.19 -
B. Contingent liabilities Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(a) Income-tax matters 08.56 67.50
() Service tax matters™® 02046 02046

* During the financial year 2011-12, the Karvy Computershare Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the " Transferor Company") had received an order from the Comunissioner
of the Customs, Central Excise and Service Taxz under Section 73(1) of the Finance Act, 1994 demanding service tax of Rs 1,146.11 lakhs on reimbursement of expenses and penalty
and interest thereon, pertaining to period fom 10 September 2004 to 31 January 2007. The Service tax on Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent services was introduced
vide Finance Act 2006 and the notification 15/2006 dated 25 April 2006 with effect from 1 May 2006. The rles for determination of value of taxzable service was notified vide
Motification No 12/2006 dated 19 April 2006, wherein Rule 5 presciibes for the inclusion of expenditure or cost incurred in the course of providing "tazable service", hence such
inclusion was prescribed only for the "tazable service” which in this case, 15 applicable with effect from | May 2006. The Transferor Company, by way of abundant caution, had
deposited an amount of INR. 216.65 and interest thereon, pertaining to period from 1 May 2006 to 31 January 2007. The Transferor Company preferred an appeal to the Customs,
Ezcise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT), Bangalore and obtained stay order on the above order and the matter is pending disposal. The Company has evaluated the
claim and based on its evaluation, the Management is confident that the demand is not tenable and the possitility of any future financial impact is remote. As per the above
mentioned notification, the Service Tax on Regstrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent was made applicable only wath effect from | May 2006.

(c) In addition to the above, the Compaty 15 a party to certain pending cases with regulatory authonties relating to the initial public offerings that have taken place in earlier years.
These cases are pending at variouslevels oflegal disposition. In the assessment of the management and as legally advised, these matters are unlikely to have a material impact on the
standalone financial statements of the Company.

(d) The Hon'ble Supreme Cowt of India (“SC™) by their order dated 28 February 2019, in the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others /s EPFO, set out the principles based on
which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. The company has started
complying with this prospectively from the month of March 2019, In respect of the past period there are significant implementation and interpretative challenges that the
management 15 facing and is awaiting for clarity to emerge in this regard, pending wiich, this matter has been disclosed under the contingent liability section in the financal
statements. The impact of the sameis not ascertainable.

(&) During the year, while performing reconciliation of shares held in an Escrow Account of a Client, the Company identified that certain shares were transferred (in 2011 and 2020)
from the said Escrow Account without any authorisation from the Client and without lmowledge of the Company. On further inquiry, it was identified that the Depository Participant
(‘DP") of the Client transferred the shares to its own Demat account and to a Third Party’s Demat account through an off-mariket transaction. The Company has sought clanfication/
details through legal notices to the parties involved to verify if the DP and Third Party are valid owners of the shares. Further, the Company has intimated this incident to the Client,
the DP and SEBI. The Company has not received any response from these parties. The Company also engaged an independent expert to carry out comprehensive review including
reconciliation of Escrow Accounts related to other clients where Demat account is being maintained with the aforesaid DP to identify differences, if any, in the shareholding
compared to B enpos. Based on the above review, no significant deviations/ findings were identified. As per management’s assessment, supported by legal consultation, the Company
believes that it does not have any obligations/ lability due to aforesaid transfer of shares.

(D In September 2018, the Company las received show-cause notice from PFRDA letter alleging the Company for undertaling regulatory activity of Point of Presence (POP) —
Service establishment and serviced UTI POP without any approval from PFRDA to act in that capacity. Duning the year, the Company has submitted its responses to PFRDA and all
the hearing are completed. Management believes that the possible inpact of the aforesaid notice is not expected to have matenal impact on the financial statement of the Company.

(g) The Company has gven letter of support to its wholly-owned subsidiary company, namely KFin Services Private Limited ("KFin Services"). Under the letter of support, the
Company is comumitted to provide operational and financial assistance as is necessary for the KFin Services to enable it to operate as going concern for a period of at least one year
from the balance sheet date i.e. till 31 March 2022.

(W) The Company is party to certain cases relating to customer complaints which are at various levels of resolution and litigations. The management is confident of resolution of
these cases in its favour and does not expect any material impact on the standalone financial statements.

The Comparny is contesting the above mentioned demands and the Management believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process and accordingly no expense has
been accrued in the standalone financial statements for the demand mised/ show cause notice received as the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a matenal adverse
effect onthe Company’s standalone finandial statements.

Segment information

Inaccordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, segment infonmation is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of the Company and accordingly no sepamate segment
disclosures have been furnished in these standalone financial statements of the Company.

Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("'the MSMED Act') based on the information available with the

The Management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as
defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act"). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31
March 2021 has been made in the standalone financial statements based oninformation received and available with the Company. Further in the view of the management, the impact
of mterest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The Company las not received any claim for interest fom any
supplier under the said Act.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year 30.50 1.99

Inferest due thereon remaining outstanding as at the end of the year - -
Theamount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act, 2006. - -
The amount of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed date during each period. - -

The amount of interest due and payable for the periodfyear of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the - -
appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remmaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - -
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance ofa deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MEMED Act, 2008.

Note: Theabove information has been determined to the extent such parties have beenidentified on the basis of information available with the Company.
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Emplyee benefits
The C ompany contributes to the following post employment defined benefit contributionin India

Defined contrbution plans:

Em & State Insurance
The C ompany makes contribution tow ards Employee state insurance for its employees. The Company's contributionto the Employees State Insurance is depositedwith the govermment.

Provident fund:

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund for employees. The Company’ s contribution to the Employees Provident Fund is deposited with the Government under the
Employees Provident Fund and Miscellansous Provisions Act, 1952, The contribution paid under the plan by the Company is at the rate specified under the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,

Duing the year, the Companyhas recogrised foll owing amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss (included in note 30 Employee benefits expense):

Particulars Forthe year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Contribution to provident fund 1,03520 1,002.40
Contribution to employee state insurance 15594 178.81
(ii) Defined b enefit plan:

The Company makes ammial contibution to a gratuity fund administered by trustees and managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Every employee is entitled to a benefit
ecuivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service inline with the Payment of Gratuity Act1972. The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or
refirement whichever is earlier.

Based onthe actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company s financial statements as at
balance sheet date:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net defined benefit liability 630.56 503.41
Current (Fefer Note 26) 17.09 112.29
NonCurent (Refer Note 22) 613.47 391.12
Movement in net defined b enefit liability/ (asset)
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability andits components:
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Particulars Defined benefit  Fairvalue of plan Netdefined benefit  Defined benefit Fairvalie of phnassets Netdefined benefit
ob liga tion assets liah ility/ (asset) ob liga tion liahility/ (asset)
Balance as at beginning of the year 1,40576 (902 35) 503.41 1,001.77 (82021 271.55
Included in Standalone statement of profit or
bss
Current service cost 146 42 - 146.42 15461 - 154.61
Interest cost 90.17 (61.88) 2829 7005 (66.87) 318
23659 (61.88) 174.71 22466 (66 87) 157.79
Included in Other comprehensi e income
Femeaswement loss/ (gain)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions (5563 560 (50.02) 176.26 - 176.26
- on plan assets - 2.45 2.45 - 721 (7.21)
(5562) 805 (47.57) 176.26 (7.21) 169 .05
Others
Amount transfery ed pursuant to business - - - (94.98) (94.98)
combination (Fefer Note 44
Benefits paid (197.71) 197.71 - (36.93) 8603 -
(197.71) 197.7 - (86.93) (8.05) (94 98)
Balance as at end of the year 1,389.03 (758.47) 630.56 1,405.76 (90235) 503.41
Phn assets
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Inwvestment with Life Insurance C orporation of India 100% 100%

On an anual basis, an asset-liability matching study is done by the Company where by the C ompany contributes the net increase in the actuarial liability to the plan manager (insurer) in order to
manage the liability risk.
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39 Employee benefits (continued)
D. Actuarial assump tions

a) Economic assump tions

The principal assumptons are the discount rate, expected rate of retun on plan assets and salary growth rate. Financial and demographic valuation assumptions are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate (p.a.) 6.30% 6.90%
Salaryincrease (p.a) 400% 400%
Expected rate of retin on plan assets 300% 3.00%

b) Demographic assump tions
i) Retirement age (years) 58 years 58 years
i) Mortality table IALM (2006-08) TALM (2006-08)
iif) Withcrawal rates (p.a) 1.00% 1.00%

E. Sensitiity analysis
Feasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below.

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (118.00) 13637 (11634 13462
Futwe salary growth (1% movem ent) 169.77 (146 .04y 167.60 (14427
Mortality rate (1% movem enf) 1409 (2.62) (9847 (265
Aftrition rate (1% movemenf) 8075 (99.22) 02.59 (102 .60y
F. Expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted gratuity benefit is as follow s

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Duration of defined benefitpayments
Less thanl year - 0402
Between2 - 5 years 24049 21006
Between5- 10 years 36841 34172
Orver 10 years 771.11 75095
Total 1,380.01 1405.75

The weighted average curation of the defined benefit plan obligation as at 31 March2021: 11 85 years (31 March2020: 11.70 years)
Expected contribution to the post employee benefit plan during the next financial yearis expected to be INR 173.92

G. Discount rate: The discount rate is based onthe prevailing market yields of Indian government secwrities as at the balance sheet date for the estimatedterm of the obligations.

Expected rate of retwrn on phn assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long-term rate of retwn expected on investments of the fund duning the estimated term of the
obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, semionity, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

Other bng-term emp byee benefits:

The C ompany provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the C ompany which can be camied forward to futwre years. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly
within twelve months after the end of the period inwlich the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such
period, the benefit is classified as a long term employee benefit. Dwing the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has incurred an expense on compensated absences amounting to INR
139.49 (31 March 2020: INE. 188.35). The Company determines the expense for compensated absences basis the actuarial valuation of the present value of the obligation, using the Projected
Unit Crecit Method.
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40 Relted parties

A. Names of related party and nature of rel tionship

i Holding company :
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd

ii. Key Management personnel (KMP)
a) V Ganesh , Chief Ex ecutive Officer and Managing Director (up to 12 June 2020)

1) Venkata Satya Sreclkanth N adella, Chief Executive Officer and Whale ime Director (w.e.£12 June 2020)

¢) Kaushik Mazumdar, Independent Director

d) Sonu Halan Bhasin, Independent Director

) Sandeep Achyut Naik, Director

f) Vishrwanathan Mavila N air, Director

g Shantamu Rastog, Director

H) Vishesh Tayal, Divector (w.e.f 24 Mearch 2020 and upto 26 May 2020)
1) Prashant 3 aran, Independent Divector (w.e.f 26 May 2020)

1 C Parthasarathy, Director (up to 23 November 2019)

¥) Rajath Sood, Director (up to 16 March 2020)

iii. KMP and their relatives (upto 23 M ovember 2019)
d) Fajat Parthasaratly
L) Adhiraj P arthasarathy

# . Enterprises where KMP exercise significant influence (Upto 23 November 2019)
d) KarvyStock Broking Limited

L) KavyData Management Services Limited

¢) Compar Estates and Agencies Private Limited

d) Parthasar atlyy C omancuy HUF

v. Wholly owned subsidiaries

d) IKFin Technologies (Bahwain) WL L. (formesly known as Karvy Fintech (B alwair) WL.L)

t) KFin Technologes (Malaysid) SDN.BHD (formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Malaysia) SDN .BHD)
¢) KFin Services Private Limited (w.e.f. 6 Janmary 2020)

. Post-employmentb enefit plan
) KFin Technologies Private Limited Employees Group Gratuity Assurance scheme

. Transactions with the relted parties

Particulars Forthe year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
i) Holding company
General Athntic Singap ore Fund Pte Ltd
Buy back of equity shares (including tax es) - 027021
ii) Enterprises contiolled ox jointly contiolled by KMP
Karvy Stock Broking Limited
Internet bandwidth - 41 94
Shared service charges - 163.79
Fee from investor services - (7.98)
Feimbursement of expenses - 10.66
Karvy Data Management Sewvices Limited
Fent expenses - 168.53
Professional charges - 1732
Fee from investor services - (587
Feimbursement of expenses - (1281)
ComparEstates and Agencies Private Limited
Buy back of equity shares (including tax es) - 1,67499
Parthasarathy Comandur HUF
Buy back of equity shares (including tax es) - 180.74
iii) Wholly owned subsidiaries
KFin Teclmobgies (Makhysia) SDN. BHD
Fee from investor services (1,00422 (64225
KFin Technokbgies (Bahrain) WL L.
Dividend income received - (25484
KFin Sewvices Private Limited
Inwvestment in ecquity shares - 1.00
Feimbursement of expenses 54.45 092
#) Key Management Personnel *
Shott-term employee benefits
- Femuneration paid 426.25 2500
- Incentives/B oms paid 147 51 686.52
- Professional fee paid - 16101
- Buy back of ecuity shares (including taxes) - 149 52
Share-based payment 11562 12115
v) Rehtives of KMP
Buyback of equity shares - 20262

* The managerial persommel are covered by the Company's gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of the Company. The proportionate amownt of
gratuity and leave encashment pertaining to the managerial persommel has not been included in the aforementioned disclosures as these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as

awhaole.
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40 Rehted parties (continued)

C.

Rehted partybaknces

Particulars

i) Ente1prises controlled or jointly controlled by KMP

Karvy Stock Broking Limited *

Trade payables

Karvy Data Management Sewvices Limited *
Trade payables

*These parties are considered asrelated parties upto 23 November 2019,

ii) WhoIly owned subsidiaries
KFin Teclmobgies (Makhysia) SDN. BHD
Trade receivables

KFin Sewices Private Limited
Other receivables

#) Key Management Personnel
Femunerat on payable
Other liabilities

Notes:

a Al related party transactions entered duing the year were in ordinary cowrse of business and are on arm's length basis.
b.
c.

For investment in subsidiaries, Refer Note 6

Also Fefer note 36(B)(g inrespect of letter of support to its wholly-owned subsidiary company, Efin Services Private Limited

As at
31 March 2021

83.78

54.45

As at
31 March 2020

992

62028

165.25

0.92

100.00
1614
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41 Financial inetruments — Fair vahes and riskmanagement

L Fair vahe measnurements

A. Fiancial i by categ
The folloering table showrs the canying amouts and fair valies of financial assets and fimancial liabilities, e hiding their levels in the fair valie Ierawly. Itdoes not inchude fhe fair valie Dfbnmation for financial assets and
fmancial labilities not measured at fair value if the canying amount is a reasonable a pproximation of fair vahie.

Az at31 March2021 Carrying anwumt Fair vahwe
Fairvahe Fairvale through Amortived cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
1 Thoraf other Tares
aned Joxz inco e
Fimncial awets
Nomncurrent assets
Loams - - 45715 45715 - - - -
Other ronrounent financial assets - - 63.04 63.04 - - - -
Cnrent assets
Crrent investments 949092 - - 940092 290807 638285 - 949092
Trade 1eceivables - - 9993 63 9993 63 - - - -
Cashand cash equivalents - - 147144 147144 - - - -
Bank balaces other than cash and cash equivalent - - 5434 5434 - - - -
Loams - - 2658 2658 - - - -
Other ewmrent finanvial assets - - 201937 201937 - - - -
9.490.92 - 14,085 85 23576.77 2903.07 6,582 85 - 9.490.92
Fimancial lisbilities
Bonowings - - 3,588.97 3,588.97 - - - -
Lease lLiabilities - - 358521 358521 - - - -
Trade payables - - 2449 59 2449 59 - - - -
Other ewrrent finaneial liabilities - - 198587 198587 - - - -

- - 42,610.64 42,610.64 - - - -

Az at 31 March2020 Carrying ameount Fair vahue

Fair valwe Fair vahe through Amwrtived Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
1 Thorafs other T
and Jozz income
Fimncial awets
Nomncurrent assets
Loams - - 43088 43088 - - - -
Other ronrounent financial assets - - |3l |3l - - - -
Cnrent assets
Crrent investments 135438 - - 135438 - 135438 - 135438
Trade 1eceivables - - 7568.06 7568.06 - - - -
Cashand cash equivalents - - 83mw 83mw - - - -
Bank balaces other than cash and cash equivalent - - 28348 28348 - - - -
Cwrrent loams - - 346 346 - - - -
Other ewmrent finanvial assets - - 156747 166747 - - - -
135438 - 11,025.55 12,379.93 - 135438 - 135438
Fimancial lisbilities
Bonowings - - 37,531.17 37,531.17 - - - -
Lease lLiabilities - - 367381 367381 - - - -
Trade payables - - 20327 20327 - - - -
Other fivancial liabilities - - 546 .58 546 .58 - - - -

- - 43.784.33 43.784.33 - - - -

B. Fair vahe lderarchy
Tlus section explais the udgments and estimates made in deterrmiing the fair values of the fivancial i tmments that are:
(a) recogised and measued at fair valie and
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair walues are disclosed in the fivancial statemends .

To movide an indication about the weliability of the inpats used in determmimng fair vahie, the Conpay has classified its finaneial 1 o thoee levels prescubed wder the Indian Acconnting Standard 113, An
explanation of each level followrs undemeath the table.
Level 1: Level 1 hisrarcly inchudes fivancial istuments meanured using quoted prices

Level 20 The fair valie of financial ishwmerds that ae mot taded in an active mwarket (for exanple, taded bonds, over-the canter derivatives) 15 detenrined using vahation teclmiques wlich maxinse the use of dbservable
market data and =ly as little as possible onentity-specific estiumates. Ifall significant iput equied fo fair valie an instmment are dhservable, the shument 1s inehaded inlevel 2.

Level 3: If e cr mone of the sigiificant inputs is not based oncbhservable marketdata, the ivhument is ichided i level 3.
There ae 10 hasfers betreenlevel 1 and level 2 during the year.
Vahntionprocess

The finance department of the Conpaiy pafoes fhe valation of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting prrposes, mchiding level 3 fair valies. This team reports directly to the Clief Financial Officer.
Discus siows of valiation piocesses and esults ae leld between the fivance conhioller and the fivance teamat least once every quarter.
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41 Fimacial inetruments — Fair vahes and riskmamge ment (comtimed )

C. Fair vahe of fimancial aszets and habilitier me amumed at amwrtived cost

Az at 31 March 2021 Az at 31 Maxch2020
Carrying Fair vahe Carrying amount Fair value
Aot
Fimncial awets
Loam 48403 48403 48514 48514
Other non cunert financial assets 6304 63.04 |31 |31
Trade receivab les 999363 999363 7,668 06 7,668.06
Cashand cash equivalents 1471.44 147144 83309 83309
Bank balaces other than cash and cash equivalent 5434 34 28348 28348
Other emrent francial assets 208937 20937 166747 166747
14,085.85 1408585 1102555 1L025.55
Fimncial babilities
Bonowings 34,58897 3458897 3753117 3433117
Trade payables 2,449.59 244958 203277 208277
Lease liabilities 3,552 338521 367381 367381
Other current financial liab ilities 1,986.87 198687 546 58 3,746.58
42,610.64 42610.64 43,784.33 43,78433

The canying amounts of hade eceivables, tade payables, capital creditoas, cash and cash equivalents and other payable for capital goods are considered tobe the same as their fair values due fo their short-term matare.
IL Fimncial risk management

Risk mamgement framework:

The Company’s Board of Divectors has overall res pows thility for the establis loveit and oversight of the Commpany’s 1isk management famewoik. The Board of Directors has cors tihuted an Audit Cormmttes which is res ponsible
for motoring the Company’s 1sk management policies. The Conrpany’s 15k mamagement policies awe established to identify and amalys e the 1isks faced by the Conpaiy, to set appiopiate risk luvits and controls and to monttor
1isks and adl to limats. Risk it policies and systens are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market comditions and the Compay’s activities. The Companry, flooughits baimng and mamagement standards
and procedures, aims fo mantain a disciplived and conshuctive conbiol exriioinrent inwhich all employees wndestand their roles and ob ligations.

The Compaiy has expomue fo the following nsls arising from financial nshuwmends
a) Ciedit 1isk ;

b) Liguidity risk ; and

e) Market1isk

i Creditrisk
Credit 115k 1s the 1isk of firancial loss to the Compaiy if a customer or counterparty to a fivancial s tament fails to meet its conhactial obligations resulting ina financal loss to the Company. Credit sk encomnpasses both the
divect 1isk of default and the 1sk of deterioiation of credit wortlines s as well as concentration 1isks. Credit 1isk aises pincipally fiom trade 1eceivables, alvances, secunty deposits, cashand cashequivalents and deposits with
banks.

a Loans
Itconsists of secwity deposit. The seauity deposit pertains to rentdeposit given fo lessos . The C onpaiy does mot expect awy losses fom non-perfomance by these canter-paities. It ako casists of loans given to employees for
wlich the C orvpanry does not expect aiy losses as the said loans are only given to carfinred enployees of the organisation

b. Trade receiables
The Compaiy’s exponue to credit 1isk is iflienced mainly by the individual characteristics of each ostorer. However, management also considers the factos that may influence the credit 1isk of its cus tomerbase, inchading the
defaultrisk of the indus by and cownthy inwlich oastomers operate.

The Company establishes an allowance for inpainment that represerts its expected credit losses inrespect of hade and other eceivables. The management uses a simplified approach for the pupose of congutation of expected
ciedit loss for trade 1ecetvables. Aninpainment amalysis is perfonned at sach reporting date.

The management has established a ciedit policyunderwlich each rew custommer is amalys ed individually for cieditwortlines s befomr the standard payments and delivery €1 and conditions are offered. The average credit period
proviled to cus fomes 1s arannd 40 days. The Company review ichides external ratings, custorer's ciedit worthiness, if they are available, and in some cases bank references.

A deflt ona financial assetis when comterparty faik o malke paymets within 355 days when they falldue.

The customer base of the Company compuises of varions carponate, state govenmrents and mitial find hauses all having soand firancial condition and mone of these balances are ciedit inpaned. An inpainment analysis is
perfnimed at each reporting date on iiroice wise 1ecervables balamces .

Cazhand cashequiralents and depogits with banks
Cash and cash equivalents of fhe Conpany are held with bands wlich lave ligh ciedit ating. The Company considers that its cash and cash equivalents have lowr credit 15k based on the extermal eredit ratings of the
counkerpartes.

Retention morey receiable
Dhoig FY 2019-20, the Conpay had retention morey receivable fiom the state govenuments pertaimng to the services wndered by the Compay towards e-goverance pmojects. The same las been hasfened to hade
receivables i FY 2020-21 basis the tenms of the contract. The Conpaiy foresees no credit sk pertaining to these receivables @ fhe same are sovereignbacked, but assesses the same forloss in time value of morey.

I I ity B of other companies anwd rashual fund =
The eredit1isk for the trents in equity 1 of other comparies and nutual finds is comsidered as reglighble as the canter parties are lepatable Companies and rmutual find agencies with high external credit 1atings.

Fimicial aszete for which kozs allwance i measured uring hifetime expecied credit lozses

Particulars Az at Az at

31 March2021 31 March2020
Trade receivables 999353 766806
Fetertion meney receivable - 72409

Dhoivg the year, the Conpay has credit inpaired hrade receivables as disclosed inMote 33 as it does 1ot expect to receive fiuhire cash flowrs fiom them The Compaiy's manageiment also pusue all legal optioms for recovery of
dues, wherever necessary, based onits inferml & sessment.

Fefer note 13 and 17 for Reconciliation of allowance for credi loss on Trade receivables and Fetention money receivable.
Liquidity 1isk 15 the nsk that the Conpary will encamter difficulty in meeting the dbligations associated with its financial labilities that are settled by delivering cash or amother financial asset. The Company’s appoach o

managmg hiquidity is to ermue, as far as possible, fhat it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they ae due, underb oth nonmal and stressed conditions, without inouning wacceptadhle losses o 1islang damage
to the Company’s e tation

Prudent liquidity risk managemment inplies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the cash flows gensrated fiom operations to meet chligations when due and o close oat market positions. Due fo the dyramie
matiie of the wderlying bus inesses, the Compaiy's teasway maintais fexibility in fding by 1 ilability wider commtied cvedit lines .

Managemment momitors 1olling forecas ts of the Compay’s liquidity pos ition commprising cas h and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows . This is generally canded oatin accordance with practice and limits setby the
Compary. In addition, the Commpary’s liquidity management policy ivolves projecting cash flows in major armencies and cosidering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, momtoring balance sheet liguidity 1atios
agais tinternal and external regulatory I and mantaining debt firancing plans. As at 31 Mareh 2021, fle Compaiy has a et curent assets of ITE. 11,619.73 lalds (31 Mareh 2020: INE. 4 401 .75 lakdhs)




KFin Tecloologies Private Limdted (formerly known az Kanvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to standalone financial trued )
(Al amounts are i INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

41 Fimacial inetruments — Fair vahes and riskmamge ment (comtimed )

Maturities of financial linbilities
The followring ae the remainng conbractial matinties of fineneial labilities at the reporting date. The amowds are gross and undiscomted, and exchide conbrachal tiderest payments and exchide the inpact of retting
agrecmelts .
Particulars Carrying amount Contractinlcazh flows
ax at Total Up to lyear Betweenl-2 Between-Syears More dhans year

31 March2021 years
Nonderirative financial habilities
Trade payables 2,449.59 2,449.59 2,449 59 - - -
Bonowings (inchding cunent matity of loog-termdes t and inderes tacemed)® B339 4438570 932408 11,406.63 2365499 -
Other firaneial liabilities (exchuling ouwent matwity of long-teumn deb tand inteiest accrued) 1962 45 1962 45 195245 - - -
Total 39.025.43 48, 797.74 13.736.12 1140663 2365499 -
* The camtractual Cash flows inelades iiterest chligation on'b onownings
Particulars Carrying amount Comntrac tual cach flows

ax at Total Uptolyear Beiweenl-2 Betweenl-Syears More than 5 year

31 March2020 years
Nonderirative financial habilities
Trade payables 208277 208277 203277 - - -
Bonowings (inchding cunent matity of loog-termdes t and inderes tacemed)® 37543 4741294 1,77399 1040595 2923200 -
Other fivancial liabilities (exchuling cuwent watuity of long-tenm deb tand iterest acaued) 53398 53398 53398 - - -
Total 40,110.52 4,979.69 10,340.74 10,406.95 .2132.00 -

* The camtractual Cash flows inelades iiterest chligation on'b onownings

#i Marketrisk
Maket 1isk 15 the 115k that changes in market prices —smuch as foreign exchange rates and intevest rates —will affect fhe Conpany’s Feveme fiom operations or the vahe of its holdings of financial istnuments . The dbjective of
market sk wanagementis to manage and control market risk expomures within acceptab le parameters, wlile optimising the etum

Interest rate rivk
The Compaiy does not have any bonoerings with vanable rates. C onpany has all of its bonowrings at fixed rate. The C ornpauy has issued Nem convertible bonvowings at fixed mitelest rate.

Exposure to interestrate rish

The inkrest wate pofile of the C ommpaiyy s inferest-bearing firancial 1 as reported b the management of the C onpany & as follows:
Az at 31 Az at
Mach2021 31 March2020
Fixed rate instruments
Fimancial assets 6386 31832
Firancial liabilities H.61339 3754377

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate 3
There ae 10 variable rate bonroerings of fhe conpaiy. Hence, change in iiteiest rates would not have an iimpact on cash flows of the Conpany

Fair value sensitivity analysis for ficed-rate i
The Compaiy does not aceannt for any fixed-1ate fivancial asets or fivancal liabilites at far valie tloough profit or loss. Theiefore, a change in inteiest rates atthe reporting date would motaffect pofit ar loss.

Currency rick.
The Compaiy 1s exposed to foieign cwnrency sk on cartain harsactions that ae denoiinated ina cunency other than extitys finetiomal erency, hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises.

Exposure to currency rish
The surmmary quantitative data ab ot the Commpany's unhedged exposure to sigiuficant currency risk in foreign cunency and domestic currency as reported fo the management of the Company is as follows:
Fimncial awets Az at 31 Maxch 2021 Az at 31 March 2020

AmoumtinFC Amoumt in Amoumt in FC Amoumt in INE
INE

Trade receivables :
usD 13 9543 949 71528
CAD 02z 1297 065 3535
ATD 221 12291 0351 358
GEP 013 1318 0® 2.5
MYR 474 8378 563 98.28
Sensifivity analysis
A 1easonably possible shengthening (weakeiing) of the INF. against all other cunrencies at year-end waould have affected the of financial i demomnated I a foeign erency and affected equity and mofit
or loss for the year by the amounts showrnbelow. This analysis assumes that all other vaiab les, in particular iideiest rates, remain comstant.
Particulars Profit ox Josz Equity (net of tax)
For the year ended 31 March2021
TSD (1% movement) 0.95) 095 (0.71) 071
CAD (5% movement) (0.65) 065 (0.49) 049
ATUD (1% movement) (1.23) 123 (092) 0s92
GBP (10% movement) 1.3 132 (0.59) 099
MYE (10% movement) (8.38) 83 (6.27) 627
For the year ended 31 March2020
TSD (1% movement) (7.15) 7.15 (535) 535
CAD (5% movement) 1.7mn 17 (1.32) 132
ATD (1% movement) 024 024 (0.18) 018
GBP (10% movement) (2.75) 275 (208) 208

MYE (10% movement) (9.83) 983 (7.35) 735
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42 Capital management
The Compair's objectives when managing capital are o
a) safegnand their ability fo contiime as a going concem so fhat it can cortiime o provide ehun for sharholders and berefits for other s takelolders;
b)) maitain an optimal capital shuchue to educe the costofcapital, and

i with regulatory mang retworth required to be mantained in accordance with SEBI gnidelines.

) erne oo
In ooder to maitain or adustthe capital shuchue, the Company way adjus tthe amonit of dividends paid to shaeholders, rehumn capital to s hareholders, 15 ue new shaes or sell to educe debt.

Cosistert with others in the industy, the Conpany moittors capital on fle basis of the followmg gearng 1atio for the objectives stated na) and b) above:

Wet debt {total bonomrings net of cash and cas h equivalents, crent veshrent in equity 1 of other companies and twestment in rmtual finds) divided by total “equity” (as shown in the balance sheet exchuding Capital
reserve, Capital redenption res erve, Deb et d 1om 1eserve and 5 hare based payment reserve). The gearing ratios were as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Wet debt 3,651.03 3535%.30
Total equity 31.816.96 3}/S512.76
Net debt to equity ratio T433% 9L80%
Debt covenaniz

TUnder fhe terms of the debertuies agreement, the Conpaiy is required to conply with the follosring financial covenants:
a) DSCEA not less than 1.1 times during the temie of the debertuzes .

b) MaxmmmmNet Débt/ EBITDA 1ot fo exceed 3.75 times.

The Compaiy has conplied with these covenants as at reporting period.

Further, fhe SEBI (Fegishars to anlsme and Share Trams for Ageits), Fules and Fegulatioms, 1993 equire the company to maintain a nuirmm ret weorth of ITE. 50 lakls at all times. Such retweorth is congted based ona
formmila given in the SEBI guidelives as per which Networth = 5lare capital + Free 1eserves and swiphis - debitbalance in the PEL - Preliminary expeises motwiiten off - htangible assets - Defened Tax assets. For compuimg
this networth, the canying vahie of goodwill amoumting o INE. 51,625 560 lakds that as arisen onaccont of the business conb matios is not deducted by the mamagement. Tlis 15 cawistert with the methodobgy followred by
the Comparry in the submissions made earlier to SEBI and 15 based on legal advice dbtained by the Conpany. Basis such congutation, the Conpany is in conrpliance with the miinmm net worth eniteria as per aforementioned
SEBI guidelives.
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44

Inpairment test of goodwill

Agat 31 March 2021 the Company has goodwill aggregating to INR. 51,625.60 lakhs (31 March 2020: INR. 58,369.21 lakhs) referred to in MNote 4. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the
goodwill impairment has been assessed at the Company level. The recoverable amount of the Goodwill has been determined as per value in use method using discounted cash flows.
Management has tested goodwill for impainment even though there are no ndicators of impairment.

The values assigned to the key asswnptions represent management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been assigned based on historical data both from extemal
and intemal sources.

The projections cover a period of five years, as the Company believes this to be the most appropriate timescale over which to review and consider annual performances before applying a fixed
terminal value multiple to the final year cash flows. The growth rates used to estimmate future perfonmance are based on the conservative estimmates from past perfonmance

The Company has performed sensitivity analysis around the base assunptions and have concluded that no reasonable changes in key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the
CGU to be less than the carrying value.

The following growth and discount rates have been considered for the purpose of the impainment testing

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate 14% 16%
Terminal value rate 5% 5%
Budgeted EB ITDA growth rate for various revenue stream 26.6% to 35.9% 5% - 20%

- The discount rate is a post-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average weighted-average cost of capital

- The cash flow projections include specific estimates for five years and a tenminal growth rate thereafter. The tenminal growth mte has been determined based on management’s estimate of
the long-term compound amal EB ITDA growth rate, consistent with the assumptions that a market participant would male.

- Budgeted EB ITDA has been estimated taldng into account past experience and expected growth in the next five years.

Based on the test performed, no impainment has been identified.

During the previous year, the Company entered into a "Business Transfer Agreement” (B TA") dated 7th August 2019 with Sundaram Fund Services Limited (fonmerly known as 'Sundaram
BMP Paribas Fund Services Limited' ('SBFS") to acquire the business of Registrar to an issue and share transfer agent for secunities (including mutual find units), back office services to
alternative investment funds or private equity clients of SBFS on a slump sale basis. The business purchase was effective from 11 Movember 2019, Such business combination has been
accounted for by the company in accordance with Ind AS 103 as follows:

a) all assets and liabilities pertaining to business transferred to the Company have been recorded at their fair values as at 11 November 2019,
b) Certain assets not recorded by SBFS such as customer confracts have been recorded by the company at their fair walues,

c) the purchase consideration has been recorded at fair value; and

d) the difference between the purchase consideration and the net book value of assets as per (3) and (b) above has beenrecorded as Goodwill

The details of the same are given in the table below:

Particulars Amount
Purchase consideration (A) 2,653.35
Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 311.05
Intangible assets
a) Customer contracts 218078
b) Computer software 16.51
Total assets (B) 2517.34

Total liabilities (C) -
Net assets (D=B-C) 2517.34
Goodwill (A-D) 136.01

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the strong customer base and the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating the target into the Comparny’s existing Standard business.

Measurement of fair values
The valuation tecluigues used for measuring the fair value of material assets acquired were as follows.

Assets acquired Valuation technique

Property, plant and equipment and computer Cost teclmigue: The valuation model considers depreciated replacement cost when appropriate.

software

Customer contracts Income based approach method: This typically aims to capture the future earnings of a potential of an intangible and are used to estimate

the value based on projected future cash flows over the assets economic life. This method considers the discounted estimated income from
the customer contracts that transferred. The resulting net cash flows are also tenmed as multl period excess earnings. The multi-period
excess earnings method considers the present value of net cash flows expected to be generated by excluding any cash flows related to
contributory assets. The cashinflows and outflows are in general derived from projected financial information.

The fair value of assets and liabilities have been computed by a third party valuer vide their report dated 15 May 2020

Pursuant to the BTA, 190 employees has been transferred from SBFS to the Company. Accordingly, compensated absences aggregating to INR. 28 48 lakhs and gratuity liability INR il (net
of fund value of assets transferred — INR 94.08 lalhs) has been transferred to the Company. The net impact on Goodwill is Mil as these labilities are adjusted against the purchase
considemtion.

The business rationale of this business combination was to enable the Company to increase the market share through new customers.

The acquired business contributed revenues of INR 1,055.04 lakhs and profit before tax of INR 167.35 lalths to the Company for the period 11 November 2019 to 31 March 2020. If the
acquisitions had occurred on 1 April 2019, pro-forma revenue and profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 would have been INR 45,534.56 lalkhs and INR 2,306.98 lakhs
respectively.
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45 Business combination

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 2 August 2017 approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation between Karvy Consultants Limited (K.CL),
Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL), the Company and their respective shareholders under the relevant provisions of the Compamies Act, 2013 (“the Scheme’). The Scheme has been
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal vide their order dated 23 October 2018 which has been filed with the Registrar of Compamies on 17 November 2018, Therefore the Scheme
has become effective on 17 November 2018.

Ag per the Scheme, the RTA undertaking' of KCL (as explained below) and KCPL were amalgamated into the Company with effect from 17 November 2018, the details of which are given
below:

Amalgamation of the 'RTA undertaking' of K CL into the Company

In the Scheme, the RTA undertaking' of KCL is defined as the assets and liabilities relating to the Registrar and Transfer A gent (RTA) business of KCL including the mvestment held by KCL
(50% equity stake) in KCPL. In accordance with the Scheme, this RTA Undertaking of KCL has been amalgamated into the Company with effect from 17 November 2018 i consideration of
igsue 0f 110,000,015 equity shares of INR 10 each of the Company to the shareholders of KCL (as per the share swap mtio approved inthe Scheme).

Ag specified in the Scheme, this amalgamation has accounted for in accordance with the Purchase method ofaccounting as per Accounting Standard 14 - on “Accounting for Amalgamations’.
Accordingly:

a) all assets and liabilities of the RTA Undertaldng of KCL including the investmernt held by KCL in KCPL have been recorded at their existing book values as at November 16, 2018 (as
certified by the independent auditors of KCL),

b) the consideration, being the face value ofthe said equity shares issued by the Company to the shareholders of KCL has been recorded at par value, and

c) the difference between a) and b) above amowmting to INR 10,937 .50 lalhs has been recorded as Goodwill.

Amalgamation of K CPL into the Company

On 17th November 2018, the Company acquired a 50% stake in KCPL from an existing shareholder. The remaining 50% stake in KCPL got vested in the Company on 17th November 2018
upon the RTA Undertaking of KCL getting amalgamated into the Company. Accordingly, on 17th Movember 2018, KCPL became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. However, the
amalgamation of KCPL into the Company also became effective on the same day, and hence, KCPL got merged into KFPL on 17th November 2018,

Ag specified in the Scheme, the Company has accounted for the amalgamation as follows:

a) all agsets and liabilities o fKX.CPL have been recorded at their existing book values as at Movember 16, 2018,

b) the difference between the cost of investment in KCPL as appearing in the boolks of KFPL and the net book value of assets as per a) above amounting to INR 56,554 .04 lalhs has been
recorded as Goodwill

Ag per the Scheme, the cnulative goodwill arising on the transaction amounting to INR. 67,491 .55 lakhs is being amortised over a period of 10 years. Goodwill generated on this transaction
largely represents the value of the businesses acquired by the Company as reduced by the boolk values of the assets and liabilities ofthe acquired businesses.
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46 Leases

A Transition Note
In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting 5tandards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second
Amendment Rules, 2019, notifying Ind A5 116 “Leasss’ and amencments to certain Ind A5 The Standard/ amencdments are applicable to the Cormpany with effect from 01 Ayl 2019.

Effectrve 1 Apnil 2019, the Companyadopted Ind A5 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified 12 trospective method and has measwed
the Right of Uss Asset at an amount equal to the Leass Liability acjusted for accruals and pre payme nts recognised in the balance sheet irme diatelybefore the date of initial application.

Consequently, the Company recorded the lease lialulityat the pressnt value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental bonowing rate and the right of use asset at its canying amount as if the
standard had been applied since the date of trarsition (ie. 1 Apnil 2019).

B Following ars the changes in the canying values of right of uss assets:

Following a1 the changes in the leass liabilities:

Particulars Category o f ROU Assets
Builling p remises
Bahmnce as at 1 April 2019 2,742.70
Prepayments 60.89
Additions 1,538.35
Deletions -
Baknce as at 31 March 2020 4,341.94
Bahmnee as at 01 April 2020 4,341.94
Prepayments 23.51
Additions 90058
Deletions (23084
Bahnce as at 31 Maxch 2021 5,075.19
Accumulated amortisation
Amortisation for the war 794.62
Deletions -
Baknce as at 31 March 2020 79462
Balnce as at 01 April 2020 794.62
Amortisation for the war 1,057.07
Deletions (93.77)
Bahnce as at 31 March 2021 1,757.92
Carrying amounts
Bahnce as at 31 March 2021 3i3 17.27
Bahnce as at 31 Maxch 2020 3,547.32
The aggregate depreciation expense for the year on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss.
C The following is the rental expense recorded for shorttenm leases, variable leases and low value leass.
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Short- term lease expense 59868 49024
Low value lease expenss - -
Vanable lease expense - -
Total 598.68 499.24

Partic ulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Opening Bahnce 3,673.81 2,742.70
Additions 90058 1,538.35
Finance cost accrued during the year 359.438 250.53
Deletions (19502 -
Payment of leass liabilities (1,12471) (857.77)
Rent concession (118.03) -
Closingbakhnce 3,585.21 3,673.81
Current lease Liabilities 08138 91199
Mon-cwrent lease Labilities 2,603.83 2,761 82
The following are the amounts 1ecognised in standalone stat t of profit and Ioss
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Demeciation on Right-of-use assets 1,05707 794462
Interest expenses 359.48 250.53
1,416.55 1.045.15
The following is the cash outflow on leases:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Payment of leass liabilities 76523 634.59
Interest on lease linbilities 359.43 22318
Total cash o uiflow on leases 1,124.71 857.77
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:
Partic ulars As at As at
31 Maxch 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Less than 1 year 1,261.96 1,177.78
1o 5 jears 2,556.38 2,823.20
Owver 5 wars 548,50 445 53

The Company does not face a significant liquiclity risk with 1egard to its leass liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations 1elated to leass liabilities as and when they fall due.
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47 Impactof COVID-19

The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these standalone financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liguidity and going
concem assumption, 1ecoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets. The Company has canied out this assessment based on available interral and extemal sowees of infonmation upto the
date of approval of these standalone financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not matenial to thess financial statements and expects to 1ecover the carrying amount of its assets.
The impact of COVID-19 on the standalone financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements owing to the nature and duration of
COVID-19.

48 Transfer pricing
The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of mfbrmation and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1951,
Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the domestic and
international transactions entered info with the assochted enterprises during the cwrent period. The Management is of the opinion that its domestic and interrational transactions are at amm’s length so
that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the standalbne financial staterments, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for taxation.
49 Share Based Payments
The shareholders of the Companyvide their meeting held on 31 July 2019 have authorised the Board of Directors to intioduce, offer and provide share-bassd incentrves to eligible employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries under FFPL Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 ('ESOP Plan 2019"). Subsequently, the Board and Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NEC) of the Company
hawve notified thiee schemes under the ESOF Plan 2019, The mazximurmn number of shares that the Company can issue under the ESOP Plan 2019 are 9,593,839 equity shares. Subssquently 2,500,000
options cancelld by the Company with approval taken in EGIM held on 20th October 2020. The revised number of Equity shared under ESOP plan 2019 are 7,093,339 equity shares as at 31 March
2021. The options under these schemes vest to the employees based on vanous peiformance and other parameters. As at 31 March 2021, the Company has granted 2,671,991 (net) [31 March 2020:
2,735,038 (net)] options to eligihle employees as identified by the NEC. Thess options vests between a minimwn of 1 to 3.65 years fiom the date of grant.
& Descrip tion of share based payment arra it
Partic ulars Scheme A Scheme B Scheme C
Date of Grant 8-Aug-19 8-Aug-19 8-Aug-19
13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20
8-Sept-20 8-Sept-20 8-Sept-20
29-Dec-20 29-Dec-20 29-Dec-20
Number of options in pool 28,37,536 21,28,152 21,28,152
Total number of options granted 1,066,691 (31 March| 200,019 (31 March 2020: 800,018 (31 March
2020:1,094,016) 820,511) 2020: 320,511)
Exercise period 7 years fiom the date of listing of shares on the stock exchange for continuing
employee or deceased employee and a period of 3 years from the date of listing
of shares on the stock exchange for ex-employees
Vesting condition Time bassd vesting|Achievement of|] Achievernent of non-
condition performance condition and| marketbased condition
non-marketbased condition
Vesting period 15% - end of year 1|50%  or  100%  on| 100% on achievement of]
15% - end of year 2|achievement of  tmget| condition specified in the
35%- end of year 3|specified in the scheme or] scheme or 100% on non-
35% - end of year 4{100% nomwmarket based| marketbased condition
condition
Exercise price 7036 7036 7036
0193 0193 0193
11000 11000 11000
B Measurement of fair v ahies

The fair value of the options granted during the peniod and the inputs used in the measwement of the grant-date fair values of the equity-settled share bassd payment plans measwed bassd on the
Black Scholes valuation mode] are as follows:

Partic ulars Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Scheme A Scheme B Scheme C Scheme A Scheme B Scheme C

Date of grant 8-Aug-19 8-Aug-19 8-Aug-19 03-Aug-19 03- Aug-19 03- Aug-19

13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20
8-Sept-20 8-Sept-20 8-Sept-20
29-Dec-20 29-Dec-20 29-Dec-20

Fair Vale of option (In INE) 335713352 335713352 335713352 33573352 33.5713352 335713352
3573 3573 3578

Exercise pice 7036 7036 7036 7036 70.36 70.36
0193 0193 0193
11000 11000 11000

Risk fiee interest rate 6.47%/ 6.88% G6.47%/ 6.38% 6.47%/6.33% 6.47%/6.33% 6.47%/ 6.33% 6.47%/ 6.33%
6.40% 6.40% 6.40%

Remaining contractual life 713 years 713 years 71 3 years 71 3 wars 71 3 years 71 3 years

Expected life of share options (years) 8.15/1.72 wears 8.15/7.72 years 8.1517.72 years 8.15/71.72 wars 8.15/1.72 years 8.15/7.72 years
7.06 years 7.06 years 7.06 years

Expected volatility ( weighted average valatility %) 14.61%/ 14.61%/ 14.61%/ 13 96% 14.61%/ 13 96% 1461%/ 1396% 14.61%/ 1396%
13.96% 13.96% 16.16%

Expected divide nd yields (%) - - -

The expected life of the share options is based on cunent expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise pattems that may occwr. The expected volatility reflects the asswmption that the
historical volatility over a penod similar to the life of the options is indicatrve of futwe trends, which may not necessarilybe the actual outcome. The average remainng contactual life for the stock
options outstanding 15 7.06 years post lock in period of 3.5 years and average lift of 3.5 years fiom the date of listing (31 March 2020: 8.15 sears post lock in period of 465 years and average life of
3.5 years from the date of listing).
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49 Share Based Payments (continued)

C Reconciliation of share op tions

Number of op tions Number of op tions
as at as at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Outstanding at beginming of the year 27,35,038 -
Granted during the year 18,15,586 30,14,698
Forfeited dwing the year (18,33,896) (2,79,660)
Exercised during the war - -
Outstanding at end of the year 26,66,728 27,35,038

Exercisable at the end of the vear

Duwring the cwrrent year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has granted 1,815,586 options under ESCP Plan 2019 to eligible employees as identified by the Nomination and Femuneration

Comumittee (NRC).

50 Revemue from contract with customers

(a) Type of Service Timing of recognition For the year ended For the year ended
31 Maxch 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Fee from registrars and investor services Crer the period 40,457.87 3593001
Fee from registrars to the issue services Crer the period 430931 1,440.58
Income from data processing Crer the period 4,201.82 3,616.28
Income from pension fund solutions Crer the period 267.53 135.02
Recoverable expenses Crer the period 1,762.43 2,385.71
Total 47.178.96 44.057.60
(b) _Contracthahnces:
As at As at
31 Maxch 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Trade recervables, net 0,993 63 7,668.06
Contract assets - unbilled revenue 79333 886.79
Retention mone yrecervables, net - 72400
Contract Liabilities ({Uneamed income ) 12556 8182
Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and generally on termns of payment of 40 days.
(c) Reconciliation of revenue with contract price
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Contract price 46,385.63 43,371.39
Less: Adjustments for price concessions - (200.58)
Add: Unbilled revenue 793.33 836.79
Revemue from operations 47,178.96 44057.60

51 Dwring the year, the Company vide letter dated 02 March 2021 submitted to Central De pository Services Limited (CSDL) and National Depository Services Limited (NSDL), has sunendered its

wn
X3

license for operating as a Depositor Participant (DF) as i does not plan to launch the DP operations due to change in the business plans/ strateg v

Subsecuent to the balance sheet date, the shareholders of the Company have exscuted an agreement to tenminate the amended and restated shareholder agreement dated 28 May 2021. The Company
has also entered into a subsciiption agreement with a sharelolder for subscription to redeemable preference shares. Both thess agreements shall come into effect at a futwre date depending on the
happening or non-happening of certain futwe uncertain events.

Subsecuent to the balance sheet date, the Company has subscribed to 4,500,000 equity shaes at Rs. 10 each on Rights Basis issued by the IFin Services Private Limited. The aforesaid equity shares
weie allotted on 6 April 2021.

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contilbutions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effectrve date from which the
changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are yet to be framed. In view of this, impact if any, of the change wil be assessed and accounted in the
period of notification of the relevant provisons.
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

1. Reporting entity

KFin Technologies Private Limited ("the Company”) was incorporated on 08 June 2017 at
Hyderabad, India. The Company’s registered office is at Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally Hyderabad, Rangareddi Telangana 500032. The
Company is engaged in providing service of Registrar to the Public Issue of Securities, Registrar to
the Securities Transfers, and back office operations to mutual fund houses and data processing
activities.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
A. Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”), as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

These standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June
2021.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’), which is the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
stated.

C. Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on

accrual basis except for the following items:

* Defined benefit liability/ (assets): fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligation

» Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value or amortised value

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received from sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either —

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole-

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

For changes that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy during the period the Company re-
assesses categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
D. Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these standalone financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the standalone financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

a) Judgements

Information about the judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant

effects on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements have been given below:

* Note M - revenue recognition

* Note Q - classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets
the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment in the standalone financial statements for every period ended is included below:

*  Employee benefit plans
The cost of defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may
differ from actual developments in the future. These includes the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates However, any changes in these assumptions may
have impact on the reported amount of obligation and expenses. (Refer note L)

* Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. The Company establishes provisions,
based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of assessment by the tax authorities of
the jurisdiction in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors,
such as experience of previous tax assessment and differing interpretations of tax laws by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. The Company assesses the probability for
litigation and subsequent cash outflow with respect to taxes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. (Refer note R)

*  Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after estimating the asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The depreciation method, useful
lives and residual values of Company’s assets are estimated by Management at the time the asset
is acquired and reviewed during each financial year. (Refer note G, H and I)
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2.

D.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of judgments and estimates (continued)

b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties (continued)

E.

Impairment of financial assets

Analysis of historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and
current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional
allowances may be required. (Refer note Q)

Provisions and contingencies
Assessments undertaken in recognizing the provisions and contingencies have been made as per
the best judgment of the management based on the current available information (Refer note Q)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgments is required in
establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. (Refer note Q)

Impairment of non-financial assets: Key assumptions for discount rate, growth rate, etc.

The determination of recoverable amounts of the CGUs assessed in the annual impairment test
requires the Company to estimate their fair value net of disposal costs as well as their value-in-
use. The assessment of value-in-use requires assumptions to be made with respect to the operating
cash flows of the CGUs as well as the discount rates. (Refer note J).

Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets are classified as non-cuirent assets.

A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating

cycle.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

F. Leases

i. As alessee

As a lessee, the Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases —i.e. these
leases are on-balance sheet. The Company decided to apply recognition exemptions to short-term
leases.

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116. At inception
or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Company has elected not to
separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses,
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

a. Fixed payments including in-substance fixed payments

b. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

c. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.

The Company presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the balance sheet and lease liabilities in
‘Financial liabilities’ in the Balance sheet.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

F. Leases (continued)
ii. As a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment,
the Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-
lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-
lease as an operating lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of ‘other income’.

G. Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as a separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain
or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit and loss.

Capital work-in-progress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-
progress. Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date are disclosed as other non-current assets.

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
G. Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress

Depreciation

The Company provides depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, other than vehicles and
leasehold improvements based on the useful life specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act,
2013.

The depreciation is provided under straight-line method. The management based on the actual usage
of vehicles has provided depreciation at the estimated useful life of 5 years as against the useful life
of 8 years as specified under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of the lease or the estimated useful
life of the assets, whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management
believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Asset category Estimated useful
life (Years)

Plant and machinery 5-15
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Vehicles 5
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

H. Intangible assets
Internally generated: Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the
expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible,
future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to
complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in statement of profit
and loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Others

Intangible Assets acquired separately are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
loss, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful lives
from the date they are available for use based on the expected pattern of economic benefits of the
asset. Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset category Estimated useful life (Years)
Computer software 3-6
Internally generated software 5-10
Customer relationships 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

I.  Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of businesses is reported separately from intangible assets.

i) As stated in the approved scheme of amalgamation and arrangement approved by National
Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad goodwill is being amortised over period of 10 years. Further

this Goodwill is also tested for impairment at each reporting period and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

ii) Goodwill generated through Business Transfer Agreement (Refer Note 44) is tested for annual
impairment at each reporting period and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

J. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication on impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates the
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a Cash generating unit (CGU) (or an individual asset) is the higher of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of individual asset, the company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment loss in respect of assets is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

K. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the company at the exchange rates prevailing at the
date when the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date of initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis in the statement of profit and loss.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

L. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident
fund scheme is considered as a defined contribution plan and are charged as an expense based on the
amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

A defined confribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
confributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
Provident Fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

Gratuity

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. The contributions made to the fund are recognised as plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation as reduced by fair value of plan assets is recognised in the balance Sheet. Re-
measurements are recognised in the other comprehensive income, net of tax in the year in which they
arise.

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the company, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. Net interest expense (income) on the net
defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined
liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into
account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. The company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

L. Employee benefits (employee benefit)

Other long terin employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets,
if any out of which the obligations are expected to be settled. The cost of providing benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they occur.

M. Revenue

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind
ASs. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or
services. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue from registry and related services and communication services is recognised on the basis of
services rendered to customers, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contracts entered
into by the Company with each customer provided, the revenue is reliably determinable and no
significant uncertainty exist regarding the collection.

Income from pension fund solutions represents services which are recognised as per the terms of the
contract with customers, when such related services are rendered.

Revenue from data processing services is recognised based on the services rendered, in accordance
with the terms of the contract, either on a time cost basis.

Recoverable expenses represents expenses incurred in relation to service performed and are
recognised on the basis of billing to customers, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
agreements entered into by the Company with each customer.

Work-in-progress (unbilled revenue) represents revenue from services rendered, recognised based on
services performed in advance of billing based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the
agreements with the customers.

Income from interest on deposits and interest bearing securities is recognised on a time proportion
basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate.

Dividends are recognised in statement of profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

N. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Company holds trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost, less provision for expected credit loss.
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0. Investment in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at amortised cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the
difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

P. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable (“more likely than not”) that it is required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly
within the control of the entity. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the standalone financial statements but disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the confract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision
is established, the company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract.
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Q. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign currency forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the host confract, etc.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company initially recognise financial assets on the date on which they are originated. The
company recognises the financial assets on the trade date, which is the date on which the company
becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset except assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Classifications and subsequent measurement

Classifications

The company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value depending on the company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Debt instrument at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at Fair value though profit and loss (FVTPL):

a) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Q. Financial instrument (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if both of the following conditions are met:

a) it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income is recognised basis
EIR method and the losses arising from ECL impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as
FVO(], is classified as at FVTPL.

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

e abreach of contract;

e it isprobable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
¢ the disappearance of an active market for security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
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Q. Financial instrument (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Company’s historical experience and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the standalone balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due.
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Q. Financial instrument (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Classification and subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the standalone statement of profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains and losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains and losses are not subsequently transferred to
profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the standalone statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).
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R. Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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R. Income taxes (continued)

The Company has adopted the standard on 01 April 2019 by using the modified retrospective
approach and accordingly comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2019 will not be retrospectively
adjusted. The Company applied the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on
transition.

S. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

The Board of directors of the company have been identified as being the Chief operating decision
maker by the management of the company.

In accordance with Ind AS 108- “Operating Segment”, segment information has been furnished in the
consolidated financial statements. Hence, no disclosure is included in this regard in these standalone
financial statements

T. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
cash with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of
cash and deposits with banks and interest accrued on deposits.

U. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the company are segregated.

V. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax for the
year and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be
converted as of the beginning of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date.
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W. Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of
Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the
assets transferred, equity instruments issued/ consideration paid and liabilities incurred or assumed at
the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the company. The cost of
acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values on the date of acquisition. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

In case of business combinations taking place under a scheme of amalgamation approved by the
Hon’ble Courts in India or the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), the accounting treatment as
specified in the Court order or NCLT order is followed for recording such business combination.

X. Employee Stock option plan (ESOP)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in ‘Share based payment’ reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding
options isreflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Y. Recent accounting pronouncements

On 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended
Schedule IIT of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, IT and IIT of Schedule
III and are applicable from 01 April 2021. Key amendments relating to Division I which relate to
companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:
- Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly
distinguished as current or non-current.

- Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share
capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period

- Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

- Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress
and intangible asset under development

- If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

- Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement” such as compliance with approved
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable
property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and
crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part
of the standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as
required by law.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kfin Technologies Private Limited (formeily
known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its
subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of repoits of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were
audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) in the manner so required and in the context of the overriding effect of
the provision in the scheme of arrangement as approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT"),
regarding accounting of the amalgamation of Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the ‘RTA
Undertaking’ of Karvy Consultants Limited (KCL) into the Company, give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group,
as at 31 March 2021, ofits consolidated loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports
of the other auditors referred to in sub paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Office:
14th Floor, Central B Wing and Morth ©Wing, Mesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Center, Westarn Express Highway, Gomgaon (East), Mumbai - 400063

B S R & Associates (a partnership firmowith Registration Mo. BABSZ26) converted into B S R & Associates
LLF (a Lirmited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration Mo. AAB8182) with effect from October 14, 2013
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Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 45 of the consolidated financial statements regarding the amalgamation of Karvy
Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the ‘RTA Undertaking’ of Karvy Consultants Limited (KCL)
into the Holding Company accounted for in financial year 2018-2019 with effect from 17 November 2018.
In accordance with the scheme approved by NCLT, the amalgamation had been accounted for as per
Accounting Standard 14 — “ Accounting for Amalgamations’. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of KCPL
and of the RTA Undertaking of KCL had been recorded at their respective existing book values. The
difference between the book values of the net assets so recorded and the consideration (being the face value
of equity shares issued by the Holding Company to the shareholders of KCL and cost of investment in equity
shares of KCPL) amounting to INR 66,940.98 lakhs had been debited to Goodwill. This Goodwill is being
amortised over a period of 10 years as per the terms of the Scheme and is also tested for impairment every
year. Such accounting treatment of this transaction is different from that prescribed under Ind AS 103 —
‘Business Combinations’ which became applicable to the Holding Company from the year ended 31 March
2019 and which requires assets, liabilities and consideration to be measured at fair value and goodwill to be
tested only for impairment. Since no evaluation of the fair value of assets, liabilities and consideration as at
the date of the aforesaid amalgamation has been made by the management in view of the NCL T order referred
to above, the impact of this deviation cannot be determined. The effect of the aforesaid deviation in the
accounting treatment continues in the consolidated financial statements of the curent year.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key aundit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the curent period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



B S R & Associates LLP

KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key Audit Matter (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(I) Revenue recognition

Refer Note 2(N) and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue is a key performance measure for the
Group. Revenue is generated from two key
services namely registty services and data
processing services. Revenue is recognised as per
the terms of the contract with the respective
customers and when it meets the recognition
criteria as per Ind AS 115 on ‘Revenue from
contracts with customers’.

There exists a risk of revenue not being recognised
in proportion to the service performed by the
Group. Further, revenue may also be recorded in an
incorrect period or on a basis which is inconsistent
with the contractual terms agreed with the client.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following key audit procedures in this area:

» Performing the comparison of revenue recognition
accounting policies with applicable accounting
standards;

» Evaluating the design of controls and operating
effectiveness of the relevant key controls with
Tespect to revenue recognition;

» Performing substantive testing on samples selected
using statistical sampling method for revenue
transactions recorded during the year by testing the
underlying documentation/ records;

» Involving our information technology specialists to
test the general information technology controls
and key application controls surrounding revenue
recognition;

» Testing on a sample basis using statistical sampling
method, specific revenue transactions recorded
before and after the financial year end date to check
revenue recognition in the correct financial period;
and

» Carrying out year on year variance analysis on
revenue recognized during the year to identify
unusual variances
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Key Audit Matter (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(IT) Valuation of Trade receivable

Refer Note 2 (O & Q) and Note 13 and 17 to the
Consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2021, gross trade receivables of the
Group amounted to INR. 11,703.40 lakhs (31
March 2020: INR 10,01741 lakhs) (including
retention receivable). The details of trade
receivables and their credit risk have been
disclosed in Note 41 to the Consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has created a provision on the basis of
Expected Credit Loss model (ECL). The Group has
measured the lifetime expected credit loss by using
practical expedients. It has accordingly used a
provision matrix derived by using a flow rate
model to measure the expected credit losses for
trade receivables. It has also considered time value
of money in arriving at the loss allowance. Further,
need for incremental provisions have been
evaluated on a case to case basis where forward
looking information on the financial health of a
customer is available.

The provision for impairment of trade receivables
amounted to INR. 1,443.19 lakhs as at 31 March
2021 (31 March 2020: INR 1,409.40 lakhs).

The determination of recoverability of trade
receivables involves significant judgment and
inherent subjectivity given uncertainty regarding
the ability of the customer to settle their debts.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following key audit procedures in this area:

» Evaluating the design of controls and operating
effectiveness of the relevant key controls with
respect to Trade receivables;

» Testing the methodology used in the expected
credit loss provision workings by comparing it to
the requirements of Ind AS 109 on Financial
Instruments. Testing the mathematical accuracy of
the model used for impairment provision;

» Circulating trade receivable balance
confirmations request on a sample basis using
statistical sampling method and also testing
undeirlying invoices where response to balance
confirmations request were not received,

» Assessing collections subsequent to the balance
sheet date; and

» We challenged on the collectability of trade
receivables, adequacy of loss allowance for
doubtful debts and for any known credit losses on
account of the financial health of customers.




B S R & Associates LLP

KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Key Audit Matter (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(I1IT) Impairment test of goodwill

Refer Notes 2(J) and Note 4 and 43 to the
Consolidated financial statements

As at March 31, 2021, the carrying value of
Goodwill in the books of the Group is INR
52,455.44 lakhs (31 March 2020: INR 59,147.59
lakhs)

The Group performs an impairment test of
Goodwill under Ind AS 36 “Impairment of
Assets” on an annual basis and whenever there is
an indication of impairment.

In performing the impairment test of goodwill,
the Group has made several key assumptions,
such as growth rates, discount rates and
forecasted cash flows.

There is a risk of use of inappropriate judgment
in making these assumptions.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following key audit procedures in this area:

» Involving our valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating the discount rates used, which included
comparison with the weighted average cost of
capital with sector averages for the relevant
markets in which the Group operates;

» Evaluating the assumptions applied to key inputs
such as sales, operating costs and long-term growth
rates;

» Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing
the effect of possible reductions in growth rates and
forecast cash flows to assess the impact on the
currently estimated headroom; and

» Evaluating the adequacy of the consolidated
financial  statement  disclosures, including
disclosures of key assumptions, judgments and
sensitivities.

(IV) Unauthorised transfer by a Third Party
of shares issued by Client lying in an Escrow
account

Refer Note 36(B)(e) to the Consolidated
financial statements

During the year, reconciliation was performed of
shares issued by Client held in an Escrow
Account with  Benpos. Through this
reconciliation, the Company identified certain
shares had been transferred (in 2011 and 2020)
from the said Escrow Account without any
authorisation from the Client and without
knowledge of the Company.

The Depository Participant (‘DP’) of the Client
had transferred the shares to its own Demat
account and to a Third Party’s Demat account
through an off-market transaction. The
Company has sought clarification/ details
through legal notice to the Parties involved to
verify the ownership of these shares.

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following key audit procedures in this area:

» Understood the matter from the Chief Financial
Officer, Audit Committee Chairman and made
necessary enquiries

» Underlying documentation such as Benpos reports,
Escrow Accounts statements, legal opinion, repoit
issued by an independent expert were tested for the
positions taken by the management and read the
minutes of Board meetings.

» Involved our internal specialists to challenge the
scope and finding of the independent expert
engaged by the Company to review Escrow
Accounts reconciliation of other clients

» Read the external legal opinion sought by the
Company on the matter

» Communicated the matter to those charged with
governance

» Evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements
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Key Audit Matter (continued)

Further the Company has intimated this incident
to the Client, the DP and SEBI. The Company
also engaged an independent expert to camry out
comprehensive exercise related to other clients.
This comprised reconciliation of Escrow
Accounts related to other clients where Demat
account is being maintained with the aforesaid
DP to identify differences in the shareholding
compared to Benpos.

Considering significant time spent during audit,
we have considered aforesaid matter as a key
audit matter.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the holding Company’s Directors repoit, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditors’ repoit thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to repoit that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company. and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls based on our audit.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncetainty exists, we are required to
draw attenfion in our auditor’s repoit to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repo1t. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
and its associates and joint ventures and joint operations to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this
regard are further described in para (a) of the section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this audit repoit.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other
auditors referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance inthe audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ repoit unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets
of INR 1,264.36 lakhs as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of INR 2,028.73 lakhs and net cash inflows
amounting to INR 50.13 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
farnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based
solely on the audit repoits of the other auditors.

These subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial information
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective
countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards
applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has converted the financial
statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in
their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these
conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates
to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors
and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.
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Other Matters (continued)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our repoit on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on owr audit and on the consideration of repoits of the
other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries were audited by other auditors, as
noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we repoit, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the repoits of the other auditors.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements read with the matter referred to in the
Emphasis of Matter section above, comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
a subsidiary company, incorporated in India as on 01 April 2021 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repoit in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of owr information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the repoits of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

i

1v.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021
on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 36(B) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts during the year ended 31 March 2021.

There are no amounts which are required to be transfeired to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India during the year ended
31 March 2021.

The disclosures in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been
made in the financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2021.
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s report under Section 197(16):
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the provision of Section 197

is not applicable to the Group.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231W/W- 100024

Digitally signed by

ARPAN ARPAN SHANTILAL JAIN

SHANTILAL JAIN Date: 2021.06.24
18:18:45 405'30

Arpan Jain

Partner

Membership number: 125710
UDIN: 21125710AAAABG3403

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021



B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of KFin
Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2021

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Repoit on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal
controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safegnarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the intermal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of infernal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of infemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231W/W- 100024

Digitally signed by
ARPAN ARPAN SHANTILAL JAIN

SHANTILAL JAIN Date:2021.06.24

18:19:13 +05'30"

Arpan Jain

Partner

Membership number: 125710
UDIN: 21125710AAAABG3403

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amonnts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Asat Asat
Particulars Note 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
I. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 285251 344745
Right-of-use assets i 3,368.79 3,653.06
Goodwill 4 5245544 50,147.59
Other intangible assets 5 428062 280346
Intangible assets under development 5 25115 8.30
Financial assets
(1) Loans 7 457.15 450.68
(i) Other non-current financial assets 8 63.23 8851
Deferred tax assets (net) 0 - 430.50
MNon-current tax assets 10 3,395.66 3,300.67
Other non-current assets 11 21847 3643
Total non-cwrrent assets 67,343.02 73,51565
(2) Cwrrent assets
Financial assets
(1) Investments 12 0400.02 1.354.38
(1i) Trade receivables 13 10,260.21 7.,88392
(i1i) Cashand cash equivalents 14 2,202.60 1,166.16
(1v) Bank balances other than cashand cash equivalents 15 54.34 615.63
(v) Loans 18 36.20 43468
(wi) Other current financial assets 17 1.971.01 1,720.28
Other current assets 18 040.52 708.39
Total current assets 25045.80 13,591 44
TOTAL ASSETS 02,388.82 87.107.09
IL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
Equity share capital 19 15,084.36 15,084.36
Other equity 20 19,556.04 1587337
Total equity 34,640.40 40957.73
(2) Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) B orrowings 21 10,388.97 3433117
(i) Lease liabilities i 2,626.44 2,816.00
Provisions 22 749.27 517.19
Deferred tax liabilities 12,495 81 -
T otal non-current liabilities 45 .260.49 37,664 36
(3) Cwrrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Trade payables
- Total dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 23 30.50 1.99
- Total dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 23 244040 204768
(1i) Lease liakilities i 1,012.37 06432
(i) Other current financial latilities 24 725562 3,856.96
Other current liabilities 25 1,313.34 1,160.78
Provisions 26 305.80 35082
Current tax liabilities 27 120.81 0345
Total current liabilities 1248793 848500
Total equity 57,748.42 4614936
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 02 388.82 8710709
Significant accounting policies 1&2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Income
I Revenue from operations 28 4811442 44 987 09
I. Other ncome 29 505.34 53975
OI. Total Income (I+II) 48,619.76 45,526.84
IV. Expenses
Employee benefits expense 30 18,860.56 19,398.31
Fmance cost 31 5,195.41 5,330.26
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 9,798.91 9,221.13
Other expenses 33 3,014.30 972633
Total expenses (IV) 41,869.18 43,676.03
V. Profit before tax (IIT - IV) 6,750.58 1,850.81
VI. Tax expense 35
Current tax 237.09 2749
Deferred tax expenses 12,964 35 1,370.29
13,201.44 1,398.38
VIL (Loss)/ profit for the year (V-VI) (6,450.86) 452.43
VII. Other comprehensive income
A. Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 47.57 (162.05)
Income tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans 35 (11.97) 4255
B. Items that will be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (23.67) 57.59
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VIII) 11.93 (68.91)
IX. Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) (6,438.93) 383.52
X. Earnings per equity share (face value of INR 10 each, fully paid-up) 34
Basic (4.28) 028
Diluted (4.28) 0.28
Significant accounting policies 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly kmown as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity share capital and other equity

Particulars Equity share Other equity Other comprehensive incane Total other
capital Securities Statutory | Capital reserve Capital Debenture Retained Sharebased | Foreign currency | Remeasurement of equity
preanium Reserve redemption redemption earnings payment [translation reserve| defined benefit
reserve reserve reserve obligation

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2019 16,583.14 3430252 36.80 1.00 - 750.00 185.64 - (26.72) 5192 3539116
Created dunng the year (Fefer Note 19 and 20) - - - - 1,498.78 - - - - - 1,498.78
Utilised towards buy back of equity shares and creation of - (11,128.47) - - - - - - - - (11,128.47)
Capital redemption reserve (Refer Mote 19 and 20)

Share based payments (Refer MNote 48) - - - - - - - 168.10 - - 168.10
Profit for the year - - - - - - 45243 - - - 45243
Buy-back of equity shares (Refer Note 19) (1,498.78) - - - - - - - - - -
Taxes paid on buy back of equity shares - (439.72) - - - - - - - - (439.72)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) - (126.50) (126.50)
Foreign currency translation reserve - - - - - - - - 57.59 57.59
Balance as at 31 March 2020 15,084.36 22,82433 36.80 1.00 1,498.78 750.00 638.07| 168.10 30.87| (74.58) 25,873.37
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2020 15,084.36 22,824.33 36.80 1.00 1498.78 750.00 638.07| 168.10 3087 (74.58) 25,873.37
Loss for the year - - - - - - (6,450.86) - - - (6,450.38)
Share based payments (Refer MNote 48) - - - - - - - 121.60 - - 121.60
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax) - - - - - - - - - 35.60 35.60
Foreign currency translation reserve - - - - - - - - (23.67) - (23.67)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 15,084.36 22,82433 36.80 1.00 1,498.78 750.00 (5,812.79) 280.70 7.20 (38.08) 19,556.04
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fnanmal statements
As per our Report of even date attached
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Chartered Accountants KFin Technologies Private Limited
ICAI Finn Registration Mo 116231 W/W-100024 CIN: U72400TG2017PTC117649

ARPAN Digitally signed by VISHWANAT pigitaly signed by VENKATA VIVEK ALPANA  Digitly signed

ARPAN SHANTILAL JAIN HAN VSHWANATHAN SATYA NAGA by ALPANA
SHANTILAL Mt 202, 06,24 MAVILA | MAVLANAR SREEKANTH NARAYAN UTTAM  uTTAMKUNDU
- B DRI 1.06.24 : Date: 2021.06.24

JAIN 18:26:57 +05'30" NAIR 15:59:57 +0530° NADELLA MATHUR Lz KUNDU 1504:28 40530
Arpan Jain Vishwanathan M Nair Sreelanth Nadella Vivek Narayan Mathur Alpana Uttam Kundu
Partner Chairman Whole time Director & Chief Executive Officer

Membership No.: 125710

Flace: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021

DIN: 02284165

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 24 June 2021

DIN: 08659728

Flace: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021

Chief Financial Officer

Membership No

Flace: Mumbai

o ADE9454

Date: 24 June 2021

Company Secretary
Membership No.: F10191

Flace: Thane
Date: 24 June 2021




KFin Teclmobgies Private Limited (formerly lmown as Karvy Fintech Private Limited )
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(All amormis are in INR lakhs, 1mless ofherwise stafed)

Particulars

Forthe year ended
31 March 2021

Forthe yearended
31 March 2020

A. Cash flows from op erating activities
Netp wfitbefore tax
Adjustm ent for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Amortisation expense on right of use asset
(Profify/ 1oss on sale of property, plant and equipm ent
Interestincome on deposits
Dividend income from current inwvestments
Unwinding of discount on deposits
Liabilities no longer required written back
Income on derecognition of ROU and lease lability
Rent concessionincom e
Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (net)
Interest ex pense
Allowance for credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets
Credit impaired trade receivabl es written-off
Share based payment
Operating p wfit before working capital changes

Working capitaladjustments:

Increase in trade receivables

Increasedin other current financial assets

Decrease/ (Increase) in loans

Increase in other non- current financial assets
Increase decrease in other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other current financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase in current provisions

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid (including tax deducted at sowrce)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flw from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and ecquipment, goodwill and intangible assets
(including capital andintangible work-in-progress, capital advances and creditors)
Acuisition of business (Refer Note 45)
Fix ed deposits redeemed’ (placed) with banks
(Inve stm ents in)/ proceeds from redemption of mutual funds
Interestincome
Dividend income from mutual funds
Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Lease liabilities
Buy-back (cancellation) of equity shares, includes taxes paid
Fepayment of instalments of debentures
Interest paid on debentures
Net cash used in financing activities ( C )

D. Netincrease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the begnning of the year
Foreign exchange effect on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

E. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalentswith the consolidated baknce sheet (Refer Note 14)

Cash onhand
Balance with banks:
(D) in cwrrent accounts

6,750.58 185081
8,691 77 8,378 56
1,107.14 342 57

(9.86) (13.01)
(19.95) (110 66)
(199 03) (32219
(24.57) (1585
- (36.53)
(854) -
(118.03) -
47 00 (3544
5,105 41 532474
3002 436 60
3844 -
121 60 163 10
21 661.67 16,517.70
(2,61369) (373.06)
(179.78) (10422
207 (133.97)
(004) 029)
(32417 (364 86)
42132 (119.61)
133238 (2,178.79)
152 56 (119.28)
22563 2405
20,677.95 13,148 57
(23672 (3,004.93)
039123 10,143.64
(2,970 22) (748 84)
- (2,653.35)
536.61 2,471.00
(8,136 .54 9,799 75
1995 11066
199 03 32219
(10301.17) 9301 41
(A,177.77) ©11.03)
- (11,568.19)
(3,20000) (1,600 00)
(4,562.18) (6,525 04)
(8,939.95) (20,604.26)
1,150.11 (1,15921)
1,166.16 226778
(2367 57.50
2202 60 116616
206 390
2,200.54 1,162.26
220260 1,166.16



KFin Teclmobgies Private Limited (formerly lmown as Karvy Fintech Private Limited )
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
(All amormis are in INR lakhs, 1mless ofherwise stafed)

Notes
1) The abowve Cash Flow Statement has been preparedunder the 'Indivect Method as set out inthe Accounting Standard (IND AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statements".

Cash comprises cash on hand Curent Accounts and deposits with banks Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original matunity of tlree months or less from the date of
acquisition), i ghly liquid investm ents that are readily convertible into lmown amounts of cash and which are subject to ins gnificant risk of changes invalue.

2) Refer Note 21 for reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets anising from financing activities.

As per ow Report of even date attached
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EFin T echnologies Private Limited (formerly known as Kar vy Fintech Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

3 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Computers and Furniture and Office Plant and Vehicles Total Capital
improvements  other related fixtures equipment  Machinery worl-in-

assets progress
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 1,599.34 1,955.31 196.76 376.40 70.82 118.90 4,317.53 35.61
Accusition through business combinations (Fefer Mote 44) 29838 324 9.17 0.26 - 311.05 -
Additions 233 545.07 1.50 34.80 1.61 15.00 621.29 -
Eeclassifications™ (0.31) (82.33) 13.69 (31.16) 0.34 - (99.77) -
Disposals - (1.54) - (0.96) - (20.19) (2269 -
Transfers to property, plant and equipm ent - - - - - - - (35.61)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operatons 0.27 0.33 002 0.54 - - 116 -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,622.61 2,715.22 215.21 388.79 73.03 113.71 5,128.57 -
Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,622.61 2,715.22 215.21 388.79 73.03 11371 5,128.57 -
Additions 156.94 432,10 - 40.16 - 54.89 684.09 -
Disposals - - (1.23) (3.66) (1.61) (9047 (96.97) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operatons 0.03 0.12 - (0.26) - - (0.11) -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,779.58 3,147.44 213.98 425.03 71.42 78.13 5,715.58 -
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2019 35.36 262.58 12.26 69.12 238 10.20 491.90 -
Depreciation for the year 35230 68255 3632 131.59 764 3159 1,241.99 -
Eeclassification™ (21.60) 0.10 (26.47) 0.33 - 47.64) -
Disposals - (0.29) - (0.32) - (4.83) (544) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operatons 0.17 0.12 001 0.01 - - 0.31 -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 487.83 923.36 48.69 173.93 10.35 36.96 1681.12 -
Balance as at 1 April 2020 487.83 923.36 48.69 17393 10.35 36.96 1,681.12 -
Depreciation for the year 370.35 T16.56 3417 8272 754 12,69 1,224.03 -
Disposals - - (0.53) (3.00) (1.29)  (37.21) (42.03) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operatons 0.05 0.02 - (0.12) - - (0.05) -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 858.23 1,639.94 82.33 253.53 16.60 12.44 2863.07 -
As at 31 March 2021 921.35 1,507.50 131.65 171.50 54.82 65.69 2,852.51 -
As at 31 March 2020 1,134.78 1,791.86 166.52 214.86 62.68 76.75 344745 -

*unng FY 19-20, the managem ent has reclassified certain assets between vanous asset categones to ensure consistent classificaton.

Note:

Eefer note 21 for the details of property, plant and equipment that has been pledged as secunty



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

4 Goodwill
On Business On Total
Combination  consolidation

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 66.940.98 1,258.47 68,199.45
Acquisitions through business combinations (Refer Note 44) 136.01 - 136.01
Balance as at 31 March 2020 67,076.99 1,258 47 68,335.46
Balance as at 1 April 2020 67,076.99 1,258.47 68,335.46
Additions - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 67,076.99 1,258 47 68,335.46
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2019 2477.26 - 2,477.26
Amortisation for the year 6,710.61 - 6,710.61
Balance as at 31 March 2020 9,187.87 - 9,187.87
Balance as at 1 April 2020 9,187.87 - 9,187.87
Amortisation for the year 6,692.15 - 6,692.15
Balance as at 31 March 2021 15,880.02 - 15,880.02
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2021 51,196.97 1,258.47 52,455.44
At 31 March 2020 57,889.12 1,258.47 59,147.59
Other intangible assets

Computer Customer Total Intangible

Software relationships assets under

development

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 863.45 - 863.45 0.95
Acquisitions through business combinations (Refer Note 44) 16.51 2,189.78 2,206.29 -
Reclassifications* 99.77 - 99.77 -
Additions 258.29 - 258.29 110.45
Transfer to intangible assets - - - (103.10)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0.05 - 0.05 -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,238.07 2,189.78 3.427.85 8.30
Balance as at 1 April 2020 1,238.07 2,189.78 3,42785 8.30
Additions 2,162.74 - 2.162.74 479.93
Transfer to intangible assets - - - (237.08)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0.02 - 0.02 -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,400.83 2,189.78 5,590.61 251.15
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2019 60.77 - 60.77 -
Amortisation for the year 255.76 170.20 425.96 -
Reclassifications* 47.64 - 47.64 -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0.02 - 0.02 -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 364.19 170.20 53439 -
Balance as at 1 April 2020 364.19 170.20 534.39 -
Amortisation for the year 338.11 437.48 775.59 -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 0.01 - 0.01 -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 70231 607.68 1,309.99 -
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2021 2,698.52 1,582.10 4,280.62 251.15
At 31 March 2020 873.88 2,019.58 2,803.46 8.30

*During FY 19-20, the management has reclassified certain assets between various asset categories to ensure consistent classification.



KFin Techmologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lalkhs, unless otherwise stated)

6 Leases

A Transition Note
InMarch 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian A ccounting
Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, notifying Ind A5 116 ‘Leases’ and amendments to certain Ind AS. The Standard/ amendments are applicable to the Company
with effect fom 01 April 2019

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind A5 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective
method and has measured the Right of Use Asset at an amount equal to the Lease Liability adjusted for accruals and prepayments recognised in the balance sheet
immmediately before the date of initial application.

Consequently, the Company recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset at
its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the date of transition (i e. 1 Apnl 2019).

The Group has taleen various premises on lease for undertaleing its business of financial services

B Following are the changes in the carrying values of right of use assets:

Particulars Category of ROU
Assets
Premises

Balance as at 1 April 2019 280241
Prepayments 60.89
Additions 1,538.35
Deletions -

Ezchange difference on translation of foreign operation 5.01
Balance as at 31 March 2020 4,497.56
Balance as at 01 April 2020 4,407 56
Additions 000.58
Prepaymens 2351
Deletions (280.84)
Ezchange difference on translation of foreign operation 497
Balance as at 31 March 2021 5,225.84

Accumulated amortisation

Agmortisation for the year 84257
Ezchange difference on translation of foreign operation 1.93
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 844.50
Balance as at 01 April 2020 844.50
Agmortisation for the year 1,107.14
Ezchange difference on translation of foreign operation (0.82)
Deletions (9370
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,857.05
Carrying amounts -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 __ 3368.79
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3,653.06

The aggregate depreciation expense for the year on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

C The following is the rental expense recorded for short-term leases, variable leases and low value leases.

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Short- tenn lease expense 508.09 507.76

Low value lease expense - -
Variable lease expense - -
Total 59809 507.76

D Followingare the changes in the lease liabilities:

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Opening Balance 3,780.32 2,802.41
Additions 09058 1,538.35
Ezchange differences on translation of foreign operations (3.08) 308
Finance cost accrued during the year 363.62 256.61
Deletions (195.92) -

Payment of lease liabilities (1,177.97) (911.03)
Fent concession (118.03) -

Closing balance 3,638.82 3,780.32
Current lease liabilities 1,012.37 064 .32

MNon-curent lease liabilities 2.626.44 2.816.00



KFin Techmologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lalkhs, unless otherwise stated)

6 Leases (continued)

E The following are the amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Depreciation on Right-of-use assets
Interest expenses

F The following is the cash outflow on leases:

1,107.14 842,57
363.62 256.61
1,470.76 1,099.18

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Payment of lease liabilities 814.15 654.42
Interest on lease liabilities 363.62 256.61
Total cash outflow on leases 1,177.77 011.03

G The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities oflease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Less than 1 year 1,31558 1,232.72
1 to 5 years 2.556.38 2.877.81
Over 5 years 548.59 446.53

The Company does not face a significant lquidity risle with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as

and when they fall due.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly lmown as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10

11

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non-current loans
Eental deposits 45715 450.68
457.15 450.68
The Group’s exposure to credit nsks are disclesedin MNote 41
Break up of security details
(a) Loans considered good - Secured - -
(b) Loans considered good - Unsecured 457.15 450.68
(c) Loans which have sigmificant increase in credit nsk - -
(d) Loans - credit impatred - -
Total 457.15 450.68
Allowance for creditloss - -
Total Loans 457.15 450.68
Other non-current financial assets
Electncity deposits 5266 5263
Telephone deposits 1.05 1.04
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from balance sheet date)® 9.52 3484
63.23 88.51

*represents fixed deposits amounting to INE. 9.52 (31 March 2020 INE. 34 84) which 15 not freely remissible because of contractual restnichons.

The Group’s exposure to credit risks are disclosed in Note 41

There are no debts due to Company by Directors either indiwdually, severally or jointly with another person, by firms or private companies in which any

director 15 a partner or director or member.

Deferr ed tax (liability)/ assets (net)

Deferred tax assets

Prowision for employee benefits and certain other liabilities

Prowision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and certain other financial assets
Carry forward losses

Others

Total deferred tax assets

Deferr ed taxliabilities

Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and other intangible assets
Others

Total deferred taxliabilities

Deferr ed tax (liability)/ assets (net)

Non-current tax assets

Advance mcome-tax including tax deducted at source

(net of provision for tax INE 4,643.00, 31 March 2020: INE. 782 58)
Other non-current assets

Capital advances
Prepayments

304.79 276.65
377.35 354.75
. 3,114.07
78.90 415.77
761.04 4,161.24
(12,890.59) (3.464.87)
(366.26) (215.92)
(13,256.85) (3,680.74)
(12,495.81) 480.50
3,395.66 3,309.67
3,395.66 3.309.67
3.99 .
214.48 36.43
218.47 36.43
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Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Investments

Investments in equity instruments - quoted - at FVTPL
1,294,489 (31 March 2020: Mil) ecquity shares of Petronet LING Limited INE. 10 each fully paid 2,908.07 -

2,908.07 -

Investments in mutual funds - quoted - at FVTPL

63,611 (31 March 2020: 12,128) units of DSF Blackrock Liquidity Fund - Eegular Plan -Daily Dividend 636.71 121.39
53,014 (31 March 2020: 22,310) units of L&T Liquid Fund - Regular Liquid Daily Dividend Eeinvestment 536.38 22715
114,164 (31 March 2020: 8,387) units of TATA Liquid Fund Eegular Plan - Daly Dividend 1,143.38 34.00
92,549 (31 March 2020: 8,193) units of Kotak Liquid Fegular Plan Daily Dividend 1,131.70 100.18
93,156 (31 March 2020: 11,603) units of HDFC Ligquid Fund-Fegular Flan Daily Dividend Eeinvestm ent 950.02 11833
1,027,309 (31 March 2020: 193,041) units of ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend 1,028.83 193.33
TRl (31 March 2020: 23957) uwts of Franklin India Liquid Fund - Super Institutional Plan, Daily Dividend - 23557
111,271 (31 March 2020: 27,097) units of SBI Liquid Fund - Regular Daily Dividend 1,155.83 270.43

6,582.85 1,354.38

9,490.92 1,354.38
Aggregate amount of quoted current investm ents and market value thereof 9,490.92 1,354 38
Aggregate market value of quoted current investments 9,490.92 1,354 38

The Holding Company has held certain shares of its customer as a trustee. The Holding Company 15 10 process of transferring these shares to the relevant
account based of the instruction to be recetved from respective customers.

Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good)

Trade receivables 11,703.40 9.175.24
Less: Allowance for credit loss (1,443.19) (1,251.37)
10,260.21 7,883.92

Break up of security details
(a) Trade receivables considered good - secured - -

(b) Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 8,546.04 6,927.45
(c) Trade receivables wlich have significant increase in credit nsk 2,178.13 1,530.65
(d) Trade receivables - credit impaired 975923 T17.15
Total 11,703.40 9,175.24
Alowance for creditloss (1,443.19) (1,251.37)
Total trade receivables 10,260.21 7.883.92

—————

Movements in the provision for credit impaired trade receivables are as follows:

Cpening balance 1,281.32 30472
Balance transferred from loss allowance from retention money (Refer Note 17) 118.08 -
Prowision for loss allowance 33.79 486.60
Closing balance 1,443.19 1,291.32

The Group’s exposure to credit and currency nisks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Mote 41

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 2.06 3.90
Balance with banks: - -
(1) in current accounts 2,290.54 1,162.26

2,292.60 1,166.16

The Group’s exposure to credit nsk are disclosed in MNote 41,
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17

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance in deposit accounts (having eriginal matunty of more than 3 moenths but less than 12 5434 61563
months from reporting date)®
54.34 615.63
*Includes fixed deposits amounting to IVE. 46,13 (31 MMarch 2020 INE. 271.64) which 15 not freely remissible because of contractual restrichions
The Group’s exposure to credit risks are disclosed in Note 41
Current loans
Eent deposit 932 822
Loans to employees 26.88 3446
36.20 43.68
Break up of security details
(a) Loans considered good - Secured - -
(b) Loans considered good - Unsecured 36.20 43 68
(c) Loans which have sigmificant increase in Credit Risk - -
(d) Loans - credit impared - -
Total current loans 36.20 43.68

The Group’s exposure to credit nsk are disclosed in Mote 41

There are no debts due to Group by Directors either individually, severally or jointly with ancther person, by firms or private companies in which any

director 15 a partner or director or member

Other current financial assets

Unsecured, Considered good
Eetention money receivable
Contract assets - unbilled revenue
Stamp duty receivables

Cther recetvables

Cthers

Unsecured, Considered doubtful
Eetention money receivable
Other recervables

Less: Allowance for credit loss
Eetention money receivable
Cther recetvables

Movements in allowance for credit loss of other current financial assets are as follows:

Cpening balance

Balance transferred to Allowance for creditloss on trade recetvables (Befer Mote 13)
Allowance for credit loss created dunng the year

Closing balance

The Company’s exposure to credit nsks are disclosed in MNote 41,

Other current assets

Advances to vendors for supply of goods/ services
Balance with government authenties

Prepaid expenses

Advances to employees

. 724.09
798.98 947.93
985.18 .
145.51 .
41.34 57.26
1,971.01 1,729.28
. 118.08

56.13 .
56.13 118.08
. (118.08)

(56.13) .
(56.13) (118.08)
1,971.01 1,729.28
118.08 118.08
(118.08) .
56.13 .
56.13 118.08
236.96 157.49
135.81 268.92
516.30 31047
5145 61.51
940.52 798.39
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19 Share capital

h.

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Authorised

176,000,000 (previcus year : 176,000,000) equity shares of Es. 10 each 17,600.00 17,600.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
150,843,583 (previcus year : 165,831,429) equity shares of Es. 10 each, fully paid-up 15,084 36 15,084 36

15,084.36 15,084.36

Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Helding Company has a single class equity shares having a par value of Es. 10 per equity share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends
and in the Holding Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to tume. In the event of liquidation of the Holding
Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recerve the residual assets of the Holding Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in
proportion to the number of equity shares held.

One of the shareholders of the Holding Company has been granted call options which can be exercised upon meeting vanous performance and other parameters as defined
in the Shareholders Agreement Considenng that these are dertvatives on the Group's own equity, there 15 neo accounting necessary in respect of these call options.

Employee Stock options:
The Group has granted certain stock options to their employees, the detals of which are included in MNote 48,

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period:

Particulars No. of shares Am ount
Asat1 April 2019 16,58,31,429 16,583.14
Shares 1ssued during the year - -
Buy back of ecuity shares during the year® (BEefer MNote 20) 1,49 87 846 1,498 78
As at 31 March 2020 15,08,43,583 15,084.36
Shares 1ssued during the year - -
Asat 31 March 2021 15,08,43,583 15,084.36

* The Board of Directors and shareholders of the Holding Company, vide their meetings held on 27 September 2019 and 30 September 2019 respectively, have approved
the buy back of 14,987, 846 equity shares of the Company at a price of INE. 7425 per equity share (including share premivm of INE. 64 .25 per equity share). The buy
back process was completed by the Holding Company in October 2019 Accordingly, the Helding Company has extinguished 14,987 846 equity shares for an aggregate
purchase price of INE 11,128 48 lakhs The aggregate face value of the equity shares bought back was INE 1,498 78 lakhs Accordingly, the Helding Company has
reduced share capital by INE 1,498 78 lakhs and the balance amount of INE 962970 lakhs has been debited to Secunities Premium. As per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Holding Company has created a Capital Fedemption Feserve (CEE) equal to INE. 1,498 78 lakhs The CEE has been created out of the balance
in the Securities Premium. The buy back tax amounting to INE. 43972 lakhs paid by the Helding Company has alse been debited to Securities Premium.

Details of shares held by Holding Company

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 Asat3] March 2020

Number of Shares Percentage Number of Shares Percentage
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up, held by:
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd 12,55,80,400 83.25% 12,55,80,400 83.25%
T otal 12,55,80,400 83.25% 12,55,80,400 83.25%

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 Asat3] March 2020

Number of Shares Percentage Number of Shares Percentage
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up, held by:
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd 12,55,80,400 83.25% 12,55,80,400 83.25%
Compar Estates and Agencies Pvt Ltd 1,84,14,296 12.21% 1,84,14,296 12.21%
T otal 14,3994 696 95.46% 14,3994 696 95.46%

Dunng the five year ended on 31 March 2021, no shares were allotted as fully pard up pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.
The Holding Company has not allotted any shares as fully paid by way of bonus shares dunng the five year period ended 31 March 2021 (31 MMarch 2020 Mil).
Sharesreserved for issue under Option: For details of shares reserved for 1ssue under Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Group, Fefer Mote 48,

Dunng the five year ended on 31 March 2021, the Helding Company has bought back 14,987,846 ecquity shares under Buy-back Plan 2015
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. Note Asat As at
Particubars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
O ther equity
Capitalreseive a
Balance at the begimming of the year 100 1.00
Addition dwing the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 1.00 1.00
Securities p remium b
Balance at the begiming of the year 22,82433 34,302 .52
Less: Utilised tow ar ds buy back of equity shares and creation of C apital redemption reserve (Refer Note 19) - (11,128.47)
Less: Texes paid on buy back of shares (Refer Note 19) - (439.72y
Balance at the end of the year 22,82433 2282433
Debenture redemp tion reseive (DRR) c
Balance at the begimming of the year 75000 75000
Add: Transfer from swplus inprofit and loss - -
Balance at the end of the year 750.00 750.00
Retained earnings d
Balance at the begiming of the year 63807 18564
Add: (Loss)/ Profit for the year (6,450.86) 452.43
Balance at the end of the year (5,812.7 638.07
Statutory reserve e
Balance at the begiming of the year 36.80 356.80
Add: Transfer duing the year - -

36.80 36.80
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Other comprehensive income) f
Balance at the begiming of the year (74.58) 51092
Add: Profit’ (loss) for the year 35.60 (126.50)
(38.98) (74.58)
Foreign Currency Translation reseive g
Balance at the begiming of the year 3087 (26.72)
Add: (Loss)/ Profit for the year (23.67) 57.59
7.20 3087
Share based payment reserve
Balance at the begiming of the year h 168.10 -
Add: Charge for the year 121.60 168.10
Balance at the end of the year 289.70 168.10
Capital redemp tion reserve i
Balance at the begiming of the year 1,49878 -
Add: Transferyed duing the year (Refer Note 19) - 1,408 78
1,498.78 1,498.78
Total other equity (ath+eHl+e+fHg+thti) 19,556.04 2587337

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Capital reseive
Reserve createdwas on cancellation of ecuity shares pursuant to Scheme of amalgamati on approved by National C ompany Law Tribunal duwing previous year.

Securities p remium

The amount received in excess of face value of the ecuity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. It can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
to issue boms shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentures, write- off equity related expenses like underwriting costs ete. Dwing the previous year, the Group has
utilised aportion of amount for buy back of shares (including taxes paid) and creation of capital redemptionreserve.

Debenture redemp tion reseive

According to Section 71 of the Companies Act 2013, where a Group issues debentures, it is required to create a debentwe redemption reserve for the redemption of such debentures. The
Central Govertment on 16 August 2019 has amended the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 to exclude listed companies having privately placed debentures from the
requirement of meantaning DER. Accordingly, the Group has not transferred any amount to DRR for the year ended 31 March 2021,

Retained eamings
Fetained samings represents the net profits after all distibutions and transfers to other reserves.

Statutory Reserve

Under the provision of the Balwain Commercial Companies Law, an amount equivalent to 10% of the subsiciary's profit for the year before appropriation is required to be transferred to a non
distributable reserve account up to a minimum of 50% of the issued share capital. The Group decided to discontinue such transfer since the ressrve has alreadyreached 50% of the paid up
dhare capital

Remeasurement of defimed benefit plans

Femeasurement of defined benefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19, Employee B enefits:

(d) actuarial gains and losses

(4) the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

() any change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit li ability (assef)
(d) tax effect of the above adjustments

Share-based payment reserve
The Holding Company has established various equity-settled share based payments plans for certain categories of employees of the Group. Refer Note 43 for further details on these plans.

Foreign currency transhtion resewve
Exchange differences ansing on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative
amountisreclassified to profit or loss when the net investmentis disposed- off.

Capital redemp tion reserve
Represents reserve created for cancellation of 14,987,846 equity shares bought back under buy back plan (Fefer Note 19).
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Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Non-current borrowings
MNon-convertible Debentures (secured) 3458897 37.531.17
Less: Current matunties of long term debt (Fefer note 24) (5,200.00) (3,200.00)
29,388.97 34,331.17

Dunng the FY 18-19, the Group had issued 4,000 non-convertible debentures (MCDs) of INE. 1,000,000 each to Nomura Singapore Limited and Standard
Chartered Bank , Singapore for an amount of INE. 40,000 lakhs Transaction cests amounting to INE 1,198.69 lakhs had been netted off aganst the
amount of Debentures. The NCDs are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange, India with effect from 29 November 2018 The NCDs are repayable in 10

half yearly wnstalments commencing from 30 September 2019 to 16 MNovember 2023 and camy an interest rate of 11.5% per annum due half yearly

beginning from 31 March 2020,

Particulars Non-current Current Accrued interest Total
borrowings borrowings (Refer Note 24)

Net debt as at 01 April 2019 38,886.71 - 1,713.97 40,600.68

Loan drawls (in cash)/ interest accrued dunng the year - - 5,061.04 5,061.04

Loan repayments/ interest payment during the year (1n cash) (1,600.00) - (6,517.95) (8,117.95)

Amortisation as per effective interest rate 244 46 - (244 .46) (0.00)

Net debt as at 31 March 2020 37,531.17 - 12.60 37,543.77

Net debt as at 1 April 2020 37,531.17 - 12.60 37,543.77

Interest accrued dunng the year - - 4.831.79 4.831.79

Loan repayments/ interest payment during the year (1n cash) (3,200.00) - (4,562.17) (7,962.17)

Amortisation as per effective interest rate 257 80 - (257 80) -

Net debt as at 31 March 2021 34,588.97 - 24.42 34,613.39

Security

The debentures are secured by

(1) afirstranlang exclusive charge by way of hypothecaton on the Account Assets under the IPA Deed of Hypothecation,

(11) a first rankang charge by way of hypothecation on all the Group Assets under the Group Deed of Hypothecation

Non-current provisions

FProvision for emplovee benefits

Gratuity 613.47 391.12

Compensated absences 13580 126.07

749.27 517.19

Fefer Mote 39(11) for disclosure related to employee benefits.

Trade payables

Total dues of micro enterprises and small enterpnises * 30.50 199

Total dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpnses 2.440.49 2.047.68
247099 2,049.67

*F.efer INote 38 for disclosure relating to Micro enterprises and small enterpnses

For detals regarding trade payables due to related parties, Befer Iote 40.

Other current financial liabilities

Current matunties of long term debt (Fefer Mote 21) 520000 3,200.00

Interest accrued and net due on noen-convertible debentures (Fefer Mete 21) 2442 12,60

Securnity deposit payable 3287 3201

Employee payables 22214 170.88

Capital creditors 139.87 8525

Cther liabilities 1,636.32 347.22
7,255.62 3,856.96

The Group’s exposure to laquidity nsks related to above financial liabilities 15 disclosed in Mote 41,

Other current liabilities

Contract liabilities (Advance from customers) 290.63 261.05

Statutory dues payable 891.32 805.16

Contract liabilities (Uneamed income) 131.39 94.57
1,313.34 1,160.78
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Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

26 Current provisions

FProvision for emplovee benefits:

Gratuity 17.09 112.29
Compensated absences 28871 24753
305.80 359.82

Eefer Mote 39 for disclosure related to provisions for employee benefits.

27 Current tax liability (net)

Provision for taxah on 12981 9345
(ITet of advance tax INE. 5,937.32; 31 March 2020: IME. 5,937.32)

129.81 9345
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from operations
Sale of services 46,351.99 42,101.38
Total (A) 46,351.99 42,101.38
Other operating revenues
Recoverable expenses 1,762.43 2,885.71
Total (B) 1,762.43 2,885.71
Total (A+B) 48,114.42 44,987.09
*Refer Note 49
Other income
Interest income from :
- Bank deposits (carried at amortised cost) 19.95 110.66
- Unwinding of discount on deposits 24.57 1585
- Income-tax refund 8197 -
Dividend income from investment in mutual funds 199.03 32219
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 9.86 13.01
Liabilities no longer required written back - 36.53
Foreign exchange gain (net) - 3544
Income on derecognition of ROU and lease liability 8.84 -
Rent concession 118.03 -
Miscellaneous income 43.09 6.07
50534 539.75
Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 17,011.30 17.417.89
Contribution to provident and other funds [Refer Note 39(i)] 1,399.11 1,292.99
Share based payment expenses (Refer Note 48) 121.60 168.10
Staff welfare expenses 328.55 51933
18.860.56 1939831
Finance cost
Interest on debentures (at amortised cost) 4,831.79 5,068.13
Unwinding of interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 6) 363.62 256.61
Other interest costs - 5.52
519541 533026
Depreciation and amortisation exp ense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1,224.03 1,241.99
Amortisation on goodwill 6,692.15 6,710.61
Amortisation on intangible assets 775.59 425.96
Amortisation of right of use asset (Refer Note 6) 1,107.14 842.57
9.798.91 9221.13
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
33 Other expenses
Power and fuel 486.49 600.13
Rent 598.09 507.76
Repairs and maintenance - Others 11222 146.15
Rates and taxes 2519 49.70
Legal and professional fee * 2,078.22 1,422.39
Consultancy 733.10 85755
Office maintenance 371.14 45913
Security services 10947 124.10
Computer and software maintenance 662.31 177.66
Donations 0.00 0.00
Corporate social responsibility** 33.52 27.19
Allowance for credit loss on trade receivables and other financial assets 8092 486.60
Credit impaired trade receivables written-off 38.44 -
Printing and stationery 475.10 1,006.95
Postage, courier and commmumication 1,778.47 2,692.94
Travelling and conveyance 12797 678.69
Shared services cost 18.79 221.14
Insurance 43.05 43.79
Staff recruitment 39.19 8132
Sales promotion and advertisement 40.82 85.88
Depository charges 227 711
Claims paid 767 727
Water charges 929 19.66
Fair value loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss, net 72.08 -
Bank charges 512 421
Foreign exchange loss (net) 47.09 0.13
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net - 0.27
Miscellaneous expenses 928 18.61
8,014.30 972633
* Payment to auditors (included in legal and professional expenses above)
As auditor
Statutory audit 27.00 26.00
Limited review 4.00 4.00
Certification 2.00 7.50
Others 9.00 3.00
Out of pocket expenses 1.00 2.89
43.00 43.39
*% Corporate social responsibility
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Holding Company during the year 33.07 2461
b) Amount spent during the year (in cash) :
1) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 33.52 27.19
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

34 Earning per share (EPS)

(Loss)/ profit attributable to equity sharcholders (A) (6,450.86) 452.43
Shares

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 15,08,43,583 16,58,31.429
Add: Equity shares issued during the year - -
Less: Shares cancelled during the year - (1,49,87.846)
Number of shares at the end of the year 15,08 43,583 15,08,43,583
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (B) 15,08,43,583 15,87,68,663
Effect of potential equity shares on employee stock option outstanding 71,069 80375
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS (C) 15,09,14,652 15,88.49,038
Basic EPS - par value of INR 10 per share (A/B) (in INR) (4.28) 0.28
Diluted EPS - par value of INR 10 per share (A/C) (in INR) (4.28) * 0.28

* Since the Group has losses in the current year, the Dilutive EPS is considered to be Basic EPS on account of anti-dilutive effect.
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35 Income tax

A. Amoumts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Current tax expense
Current year 237.09 2749
237.09 2749

Deferred tax charge
Change inrecognised temporary differences 12,064.35 1,370.89
12,964.35 1370.89
Total tax expense 13,201.44 13098.38

B. A recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Particular For the year ended 31 March 2021 For the year ended 31 March 2020
Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense)/ Net of tax
income Income

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 47.57 (11.97) 35.60 (169.05) 4255 (126.50)
47.57 1197) 35.60 (169 05) 4255 (12650)

C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Enacted tax rate in India*
Tax using the Holding Company’s domestic tax rate

Tax effect of:

Impact of tax exempt income

Impact of clange in tax rate

Impact of change in Finance Act, 2021**
Permanent differences

Reversal of Minitmun alternative credit entitlement™
Impact of differencial tax rate

Others

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

675058 1,850 81
25.168% 25.168%
1,698 .00 465.81
- (80.78)

- 42005

11,1240 -

377.20 13258

- 271.55

(6.90) -
(60.25) 170.27
13,201.44 1398.38

*The Taxzation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 ("Ordinance’) was promulgated on 20 September 2019, The Ordinance has amended the Income Tax Act, 1961 and Finance Act, 2019 to inter-
alia provide an option to domestic companies to pay income tax at a reduced tax of 22 percent plus applicable surcharge and cess with certain conditions to be met. The Holding Company and fora
subsidiary has opted for this amendment and taxz rate is calculated @ 22 plus applicable surcharge and cess and accordingly unused tax credit (MAT credit entitlement) of INR 271 55asat 31 March

2019 has been charged to the statemernt of profit and loss account as the Holding C ompany is no longer entitled to it.

** The Finance Act, 2021 has introduced anamendment to Section 32 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, whereby goodwill of a business will not be considered as a depreciable asset and depreciation on
goodwill will not be allowed as deductible expenditure effective April 1, 2020, In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes, the Company has recognised one time tax expense as
the outcome on the difference between Goodwill as per the books of account and its updated tax base of Mil resulting from the aforementioned amendment.

D. Movement in deferred taxbalances

Asat Recognised in Recognised in Recognised in Asat
1 April 2020 Statement of profit Other Comprehensive Other equity 31 March 2021
and loss accoumt Income

Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and other intangible assets (3,464.82) (942577) - - (12,8905
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and certain other 35475 2260 - - 37735
financial assets

Provision for employee benefits and certain other liabilities 276.65 4011 (11.97) - 30479
Carry forward losses 3,114.07 (3,114.07) - - -
Others 100.85 (487.21) - - (287.36)
Net deferred tax assets 480.50 (1296435) 11.97) - (1249581)

Asat Recognised in Recognised in Recognised in Asat
1 April 2019 Statement of profit Other Comprehensive Other equity 31 March 2020
and loss accoumt Income

Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill and other intangible assets (1,926.49) (1,538.33) - - (3464.82)
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables and certain other 32246 3220 - - 35475
financial assets

Provision for employee benefits and certain other liabilities 50427 (360.17) 4255 - 276.65
Carry forward losses 233845 T75.62 - - 3,114.07
Minitmun altemate tax credit 271.55 (271.55) - - -
Others 208.6 (8.75) - - 100 85
Net deferred tax assets 1808.84 (1,370 .89) 4255 - 480 50

E. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of a subsidiary whose logses amounted to INR 3.06 lakhs that can be carried-forward against future tazable income. These losses can be carnied-forward as below:

Particular

Losses with expiration (8 years)
Losses without expiration date

Asat

31 March 2021
0.77

Asat
31 March 2020
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36

37

Commitments, contingent liabilities amd contingent assets

Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
A. Commitments
Capital commitmentsas on balance sheet date 306.19 -
B. Contingent liabilities Asat Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
(a) Income-tax matters 08.56 67.50
(b) Service tax matters™ 02046 02046

* During the firandal year 2011-12, the Karvy Computershare Private Linited (hereinafter referred to as the " Transferor Company™) had received an order from the C omumissioner
of the Customs, Central Excise and Service Tax under Sedion 73(1) of the Finance Act, 1994 demanding service tax of Rs. 1,146.11 lakhs on reimbursement of expenses and
peralty and interest thereon, pertaining to period from 10 September 2004 to 31 January 2007, The Service tax on Regstrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent services was
introduced vide Finance Act 2006 and the notification 15/2006 dated 25 April 2006 with effed from 1 May 2006. The rles for determination of value of tazable service was
notified vide MNotification No 12/2006 dated 19 April 2006, wherein Rule 5 prescribes for the inclusion of expenditure or cost incwrred in the course of providing "taxable service",
hence such inclusion was prescribed only for the "taszable service" which in this case, 15 applicable with effect from 1 May 2006. The Transferor Company, by way of abundant
caution, lad deposited an amount of Rs. 216.65 laldis and interest thereon, pertaining to period from 1 May 2006 to 31 Jamwary 2007. The Transferor Company preferred an appeal
to the Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT), Bangalore and obtained stay order on the above order and the matter is pending disposal. The Group las
evaluated the claim and based on its evaluation, the Management is confident that the demand is not tenable and the possibility of any future financial impact is remote. As per the
above mentioned notification, the Service Tax on Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent was made applicable only with effect from 1 May 2006.

(c) In addition to the above, the Group isa party to certain pending cases with regulatory authorities relating to the initial public offerings that have taleen place in earlier years. These
cases are pending at various levels of legal disposition. In the assessment of the management and as legally advised, these matters are unlikely to have a material impact on the
Consolidated financial statements of the Group.

() The Hom'ble Supreme Court of India (“SC™) by their order dated 28 February 2019, i the case of Surya Roshani Limited & others w/s EPFO, set out the principles based on
which allowances paid to the employees should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution. The Holding Company
Ias started complying with this prospectively fom the month of March 2019. In respect of the past period there are significant implementation and interpretative challenges that the
management is facing and is awaiting for clarity to emerge in this regard, pending which, this matter has been disclosed under the contingent liability section in the consolidated
finandal statements. Theimpact of the same is not ascertainable.

(&) During the year, while perfonning reconciliation of shares held in an Escrow Accourt of a Client, the Holding Comparry identified that certain shares were transferred (in 2011
and 2020) from the said Escrow Account without aty authorisation from the Client and without knowledge of the Holding Company. On further inguiry, it was identified that the
Depository Participant ('DP”) of the Client transferred the shares to its own Demat account and to a Third Party’s Demat accowt through an off-market transaction. The Holding
Company has sought clarification/ details through legal notices to the parties involved to verify if the DP and Third Party are valid owners of the shares. Further, the Holding
Company has intimated this incident to the Client, the DP and SEBI The Holding Company has not received any response from these parties. The Holding Compary also engaged
an independent expert to camry out comprehensive review including reconciliation of Escrow Accownts related to other clients where Demat accowt is beng maintained with the
aforesaid DP to identify differences, if any, in the shareholding compared to Berpos. Based on the above review, no significant deviations' findings were identified. As per
management’s assessment, supported by legal consultation, the Holding Compary believes that it does not have any obligations/ liability due to aforesaid transfer of shares.

(f) The Group is party to certain cases relating to customer complaints which are at various levels of resolution and litigations. The management is confident of resolution of these
cases in its favour and does not expect any matenal impact on the consolidated financial statements.

(g) In September 2018, the Holding Company has recsived show-cause notice from PFRDA letter alleging the Holding Company for undertalang regulatory activity of Point of
Presence (POP) — Service establishment and serviced UTI POP without aty approval from PFRDA to ad in that capacity. Dunng the year, the Holding Company has submitted its
responses to PFRDA and all the hearing are completed. Management believes that the possible impact of the aforesaid notice 15 not expected to have material impact on the
consolidated financial statement of the Group.

The Group is contesting the above mentioned demands and the Management believe that its position will likely be upheld i the appellate process and accordingly no expense has
been accrued in the Group financial statements for the demand mised/ show cause notice recetved as the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse
effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Segment information:
For the year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars Registry services | Data processing Pension fund Total Unallocable Total

SeIvices solutions reportable

SecInents

Segment revenue
Extermal revenues 43,645.03 4,201.82 267.57 48,114.42 - 48,114.42
-Intersegment revenues - - - - - -
Total segment revernme 43,645.03 4,201.82 267.57 48,114 42 - 48,114 42
Segment results 13,988.62 2,112.19 (353.68) 15,747.13 - 15,74713
Unallocated
(a) Unallocable expenses (4,306.48) (4,306.48)
(b) Finance cost (5,195.41) (5,195.41)
(c) Other income 505.34 505.34
Profit before tax 6,75058
Less: Taxes 13,201.44

Loss after tax (6,450.86)
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37 Segment information (continued)

Asat 31 March 2021

Particulars Registry services | Data processing Pension fund Total Unallocable Total
services solutions
Segment assets 48,108.63 6,505.25 270.34 74,074.22 17,414.60 02,388.82
Segment liabilities 4,812.32 1,027.32 42.35 5,881.99 51,866.43 57,748.42
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Particulars Registry services | Data processing Pension fund Total Unallocable Total
SeIvices solutions reportable
sezinents
Segment revenue
Extermal revenues 41,234.41 3,617.66 135.02 44,087.00 - 44,087.00
-Intersegment revenues - - - - - -
Total segment revernme 41,234 41 3.617.66 135.02 4498709 - 4498709
Segment results 10,051.76 G44.62 (480.71) 10,215.67 - 10,215.67
Unallocated
(a) Unallocable expenses (3,574.35) (3,574.35)
(b) Finance cost (5,330.26) (5,330.26)
(c) Other income 53975 53975
Profit before tax 1,85081
Less: Taxes 1,308 38
Profit after tax 45243
Asat 31 March 2020
Particulars Registry services | Data processing Pension fund Total Unallocable Total
services solutions
Segment assets 49,886.57 7.723.34 133.66 0,263.52 87,107.00
Segment liabilities 3,010.77 1,037.69 30.61 41,170.29 46,149.36

(a) The Group is engaged in three business segments: Registry services, data processing services and pension fund solutions. Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind
AS 108 - 'Opemting Segments', the Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Group's perfonmance and allocates resources based on an amelysis of various performance
indicators by business segments. Accordingly, mformation has been presented along these business segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the firancial

(b) Segment result represents the profit before interest and tax earned by each segment without allocation of cenfral administrative costs and other income.

(c) Asallowed under Ind AS 108- “Opemating Segments”, the segment information disclosed above is based on the consolidated financial statements.

38 Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the MSMED Act'') based on the information available with the Group

The Management has identified enterprises wiich have provided goods and services to the Group and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined
under the MSMED Act Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises asat 31 March 2021 has been made in the consolidated financial statements
based on information received and available with the Group. Further in the view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the

provisions of the MSMED Actis not expected to bematerial. The Group has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said MSMED Act.

Particulars

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year.
Interest due therson ramaining outstanding as at the end of the year.
The amowt of nterest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act.

The amowt of the payments made to micro and siall suppliers beyond the appointed date during each accounting year

For the year ended

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day

during the peniod) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.
The amownt of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, witil such date when the interest dues aboveare
adually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

31 March 2021
30.50

Note: The above infonmation has been detenmined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of infonmation available with the Group.

For the year ended
31 March 2020

1.99
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39 Employee benefits

The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit contribution in India.

(D) Defined contrbution plans:
Em; & State Insurance
The Group makes contribution towards Employee state insurance for its employees. The Group's contribution to the Employees State Insurance is deposited with the govermment.
Provident fund:
The Group makes contribution towards provident fund for employees. The Group’s contribution to the Employees' Provident Fund is deposited with the G overnment under the Employeed
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, The contribution paid under the plan by the Group is at the rate specified under the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellanzous
Provisions Act, 1952,
During the year, the Group has recognised following amounts in the Statement of Profit and L oss (included innote 30 Employee benefits expense):
Particulars Forthe year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Contribution to provident fund 1,03520 1,002.40
Contribution to employee state insurance 15594 178.81
Defined Contribution Plan - foreign subsidianes 3317 2356
(ii) Defined b enefit plan:
The Group makes anmal confribution to a gratuity fund administer ed by trustees and managed by Life Inswance Corporation of India (LIC). Every employee is enfitled to a benefit equivalent
to fifteen days salarylast crawn for each com pleted year of service in line with the P ayment of Gratuity Act 1972, The same is payable at the ime of separation from the Group or retirement
whichever is earlier.
A. Based on the actuarial valuation obtainedin thisrespect, the following table sets out the status of the grahuity plan and the amounts recogrised in the Group’ s financial statements as at balance
sheet date:
Forthe year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Net defined benefit liability 630.56 503.41
Current (Fefer Note 26) 17.09 112.29
NonCurent (Refer Note 22) 613.47 391.12
B. Movementin net defined b enefit liab ility/ (asset)
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability andits components:
Asat 31 Maxch 2021 Asat3] March 2020
Particulars Defined benefit  Fairvalue of plan Netdefined benefit  Defined benefit Fairvalie of phnassets Netdefined benefit
ob liga tion assets liah ility/ (asset) ob liga tion liahility/ (asset)
Balance as at beginning of the year 1,40576 (902 35) 503.41 1,001.77 (82021 271.55
Included in consolid ated statement of profit
or bboss
Current service cost 146 42 - 146.42 15461 - 154.61
Interest cost 90.17 (61.88) 2829 7005 (66.87) 318
23659 (61.88) 174.71 224.66 (66 87) 157.79
Included in Other comprehensi e income
Femeaswement loss/ (gain)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from:
- financial assumptions (5563 560 (50.02) 176.26 - 176.26
on plan assets - 2.46 2.46 - 721 (7.21)
(5562) 8.06 (47 56) 176.26 (7.21) 169 .05
Others
Amount transfery ed pursuant to business - - - - (9498 (94.98)
combination (Fefer Note 45)
Benefits paid (197.71) 197.71 - (36.93) 86.03 -
(197.71) 197.7 - (86.93) (8.05) (94 98)
Balance as at end of the year 1.389.02 (758.46) 630.56 1,405.76 (902.35) 503.41
C. Phnassets
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Inwvestment with Life Insurance C orporation of India 100% 100%

a,

E=1

On an annual basis, an asset-liability matching study is done by the Group whereby the Group contributes the net increass in the actuarial liability to the plan manager (insurer) in order to
manage the liability risk.

. Actuarial assump tions

Economic assump tions

The principal assumptions are the discount rate, expected rate of retumn on plan assets and salary growth rate. Financial and demograplic valuation assumptions are as follows:

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Discount rate (p.a.) 6.30% 6.90%
Salaryincrease (p.a) 400% 400%
Expected rate of retin on plan assets 300% 3.00%
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39 Employee benefits (continued)

D. Actuarial assump tions (continued )
b) Demographic assump tions

As at As at

31 Marxch 2021 31 March 2020

i) Fetirement age (years) 58 years 58 years
i) Mortality table IALM (2006-08) TALM (2006-08)
iif) Withdrawal rates (p.a) 1.00% 1.00%

E. Sensitiity analysis

Feasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the

amounts shown below.

As at 31 Maxch 2021 Asat31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (11799 13638 (11634 13462
Futwe salary growth (1% movem ent) 169.78 (146.03) 167.60 (14427
Mortality rate (1% movem enf) 1409 (2.62) (9847 (265
Aftrition rate (1% movemenf) 80.75 (99.21) 02.59 (102 .60y
F. Expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted gratuity benefit is as follw s

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Duration of defined benefitpayments
Less thanl year - 0402
Between2 - 5 years 24049 21006
Between5- 10 years 36841 34172
Orver 10 years 771.12 75095
Total 1,389.02 1.405.75

The weighted average curation of the defined benefit plan obligation as at 31 March2021: 11 85 years (31 March2020: 11.70 years)
Expected contribution to the post employee benefit plan during the next financial yearis expected to be INE. 173.92 lakhs.

. Discount rate: The discount rate is based onthe prevailingmarket yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Expected rate of retwrn on phn assets: This is based on the expectation of the average long-term rate of retwn expected on investments of the fund duning the estimated term of the
obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, semionity, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

Other bng-term emp byee benefits:

The Group provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the Group which can be carried forward to future years. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within
twelve months after the end of the periodin which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilised whally within twelve months after the end of such period the
benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. Duning the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has incwred an expense on compensated absences amounting to INE 146.92 lakhs (31
March 2020: INE 191 31 lakhg). The Group determines the expense for compensated absences basis the actuarial valuation of the present value of the obligation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method.

40 Rehted parties

. Namesofrehted party and nature of rel tionship

i Holding Group :
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd

ii. Key Management personnel (KMP)

a) V Ganesh , Chief Ex ecutive Officer and Managing Director (up to 12 June 2020)
1) Venkata Satya Sreclkanth N adella, Chief Executive Officer and Whale ime Director (w.e.£12 June 2020)
¢) Kaushik Mazumdar, Independent Director

d) Sonu Halan Bhasin, Independent Director

) Sandeep Achyut Naik, Director

f) Vishrwanathan Mavila N air, Director

g Shantamu Rastog, Director

H) Vishesh Tayal, Divector (w.e.f 24 Mearch 2020 and upto 26 May 2020)

1) Prashant 3 aran, Independent Divector (w.e.f 26 May 2020)

1 C Parthasarathy, Director (up to 23 November 2019)

¥) Rajath Sood, Director (up to 16 March 2020)

iii. KMP and their relatives (upto 23 M ovember 2019)
d) Fajat Parthasaratly
L) Adhiraj P arthasarathy

# . Enterprises where KMP exercise significant influence (Upto 23 November 2019)
d) KarvyStock Broking Limited

L) KavyData Management Services Limited

¢) Compar Estates and Agencies Private Limited

d) Parthasar atlyy C omancuy HUF

v. Post-employment benefitp hn
) Karvy Fintech Private Limited Employees Group Gratuity Assuwance scheme
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40 Relhted parties (continued)

B. Transactions with the rehted parties

Particulars

i) Holding Group
General Athntic Singap ore Fund Pte Ltd

Forthe year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Buy back of equity shares (including tax es) - 0,270.21
ii) Enterprises contiolled ox jointly contiolled by KMP
Karvy Stock Broking Limited
Purchase of securities - 41 94
Sale of securities - 163.79
Fee from investor services - (7.98)
Feimbursement of expenses - 10.66
Karvy Data Management Sewvices Limited
Fent expenses - 168.53
Professional charges - 1732
Fee from investor services - (5.87)
Feimbursement of expenses - (12.81)
ComparEstates and Agencies Private Limited
Buy back of equity shares (including tax es) - 1,67499
Parthasarathy Comandur HUF
Buy back of equity shares (including tax es) - 180.74
iif) Key Management Personnel*
Shott-term employee benefits
- Femuneration paid 42625 25001
- Incentives/B oms paid 147 51 711.52
- Professional fee paid - 161.01
- Buy back of ecuity shares (including taxes) - 14962
Share-based payment 11562 121.15
#) Rehtives of KMP
Buy back of equity shares (including tax es) - 20262

*The managerial persormel are covered by the Group's gratuity policy and are eligible for leave encashment along with other employees of the Group. The proportionate amount of gratuity and
leawve encashment pertaining to the managenial personnel has not beenincluded inthe aforem entioned disclosures as these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Group as a whale.

. Rehted partybaknces

Particulars

i) Ente1prises controlled or jointly controlled by KMP
Karvy Stock Broking Limited *

As at

31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Trade payables - 092
Karvy Data Management Sewvices Limited *

Trade payables - 629.28
*These parties are considered asrelated parties up to 23 November 2019.

ii) Key Management Personnel

Incentive payable - 10000
Other liabilities - 16.14

All yelated party transactions entered duwing the year were in ordinary cowrse of business and are on arm's length basis.
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41 Fimanwial instruments — Fair vahues and xisk mara gement
I. Fair value measurem ants
A. Fnanal instruments by category

The following table shows the carrymg amomts and fair wahes of fmancial assets and fmancial lisbilities, mchiding thedr levels i the fair vahe hisrarduy. B does not dwhide fhe fair vahe mformation for fiancial assets and
financial Habilitie s ot measured st fair wahie if the canyig amomt is & reasonable approxamation of fair vahe.

As at 31 Maxch 2021 Carrying ameunt Fair vahue
Fair value threugh Fair vahe fhaough Amertised cost Total Levell Level 2 Levd 3 Total
profit and loss wiher ¢ ompr ehensive
i eme

Fimauial assets
Hem-current assets
Loans - - 437.15 437.15
Other non- ourrent financial assets - - 63.23 63.23
Current asseis
Cuarent frve shnents 0.400.92 - 949002 290807 658285 - 0.400.92
Trade recefmbles - - 10 260.21 10 260.21 - - -
Cash and cash e quivalents - - 220260 220260
Bark balances other than cash and cash e quivalent - - 5434 5434
Loans - - 36.20 36.20
Other cwrrent fmancial assets - - 197101 197101

49002 - 1513474 24 625 66 2,008 07 6,582 85 - 49002
Barrowings - - 34 53897 34 53897
Lease liabilities - - 3p3eeEl 3p3eeEl
Trade payables - - 2147099 2147099
Other cwrrent f mancial liabilitie s - - 2p55.62 2p55.62

42 754 39 42 754 39
As at 31 Maxch 2020 L arxying amount Fair vahe
Fair vahe fhaough Fair vahe faough Amertised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Levd 3 Total
profit and loss wiher ¢ ompr ehensive
i eme

Fimauial assets
Hem-current assets
Loans - - 430.68 430.68
Other non- ourrent financial assets - - g8.51 g8.51
Current asseis
Cuarent frve shnents 135438 - 135438 - 135438 - 135438
Trade recefmbles - TpEI02 TpEI02 - -
Cash and cash e quivalents - - 1]166.16 1]166.16
Bank balances other than cash sd cash e quivalent - - 615.63 615.63
Current loans - - 4362 4362
Other cwrrent fmancial assets - - 172028 172028

135438 - 11 977 86 1333224 - 135438 - 135438
Hon- cunrert borrow ings - - 3753117 3753117
Lease liabilities - - 378032 378032
Trade payables - - 104967 104967
Other fimanc ial liabilities - - 6356.96 6356.96

4401512 4401512

B. Fair vale hierarchy
Thi section explams the judgments and estimates made i detenmming the fair vahes of the fmancial msouoments that are:
(a)recognised and measumred at fair vahie and
(b)meanmed at amortised cost and for which fair wahies are disclosed o the financial statements .

To provide an mdi ation about the reliability of the dputs used i determining fad wvahie, the Group has classified its fmancil mstoments mito three lewels presoibed wder the ndian Accomting Standard 113, An explanation of
each level follows underne ath the table.
Lewell:Levell hierarchy mchides financial mstnoments measired usig quoted prices

Lewel 2: The fair value of financial mstuments that are not traded o an active market (for example, traded bonds, owver-the coumter derfvatives) is determined usig vahation te chnigues which maxdmise the use of cbsermble market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fad wvahie an mstument are obserwble the Mstument is Dchided o lewel 2.

Lewel3: If ome or more of the significant dguts is notbased on observable market data , the mstnoment is inchided i level 3.
There are 1o transfers between lewel 1 and lewel 2 during the year.
Vahuation process

The finance departmert of the Group performs the wahtion of fiancial assets and liabilities recquired for fmancial reporting puiposes, mchiding kwel 3 far vahies. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer.
Discussions of vahiation processes and results are held betwwe en the finance controller and the finance team st least once every quarter.

€. Fair value of finanuial assets and Babilities meanwed at amertised cost
As at 31 Maxch 2021 As at 31 Maxch 2020
Carrying armoumt Fair vahue Carrying am ot Fair value

Fimauial assets
Loans 40335 40335 404 36 404 38
Other non curent financ ial assets 63.23 63.23 8851 g8.51
Trade recefmbles 10 260.21 10 260.21 728302 728302
Cash and cash e quivalents 229260 229260 1,166 16 1,166.16
Bark balances other than cash and cash e quivalent 5434 5434 61563 615.63
Other cwrrent fmancial assets 1971.01 1971.01 1,720 28 1,720.28
1513474 1513474 11977 86 11,977 86
Barrowings 34 53897 34 53897 3753117 3753117
Trade payables 147009 147009 1040 57 104967
Lease liabilities 35388l 35388l 378032 378032
Other cvmrent financ ial labilitie s 205562 205562 G636 08 G56.08
42 754 30 42 754 30 44015 12 4401512

The carryig amonts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital oreditors, cash and cash equivalents and other payable for capital goods sre considered to be the same as the i fair vahies due to their short-term nabare .
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41 Fimanwial instruments — Fair vahues amd xisk: moaoe gernend (contime d)

O Fimwialrisk managenent

-

Risk mamageanent fr am ework

The Holding Group’s Board of D rectors has owverall responsibility for the establishoment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework . The Board of D irectors has constinted sn Audit Commmitte e which is re sponsible for
monitermg the Group’s risk managemert policies. The Group s 1k policies are blished to ident £y and anakse fie risks faced by the Group, to set sppropriate risk limits and controls and to monitar risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularlyto reflect changes i market conditions and the Group s actiities. The Group, hrough its raming and management standards and procedures, aims
tomamtain a disciplined and constuctive comrol 1 i which all empl mderstand the I roles smd obligations.

The Group has exposme to the following risks arising from fmancial mstomerts:
1) Credit risk ;

by Liquid ity risk; and

) Market risk

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if & customer or couterparty to a financial mstmment fails to meet its contractual obligations resaltimng & fmancial loss to the Group. Credit risk encomp asses both the direct risk
of default and the risk of deterioration of oedit worthiness as well a5 concentration risks. Credit risk arises princ ipally from trade receivables  adwvances, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents and dep osits with banks .

a. Leams
I comsists of seowity deposit. The seowity deposit pertains to rent deposit given to lessors. The Group does not expect a1y losses from ron-performance by these coumter-parties. It also cansists of loans given to employees far which
the Group does not expect a1y losses as the said loans are only given to confimed employees of the organisation.

b. Trade rec eivables
The Grovp s exponme to deditrisk is of hence d mamdy by the dudividual characteristics of each customer. Howewer , management also considers the factors that may ffhience fhe credit risk of its customer base , i hiding the default
risk of the mdusty and comby iwhich customers operate.

The Group establishes an allowance for fmpamert that represents its expected oedit losses onrespect of trade and other receivables. The managemert uses a sinplified approach for the pupose of compitation of expected credit loss
for trade receivables. An impaiment analysis is performed at each reporting date.

The management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed ndividually for oedibworthiness before the standard payments and delivery terms and canditions are offered. The average credit period
provided to customers is sroumnd 40 days. The Group review mchides external ratings , customer's credit worthiness, if they are availabk ,and o some cases bark references.

A default on a financial asset is when coumterparty fails to make payments within 365 days wien they fall due.

The mustomer base of the Group comprises of various corporate, state governmmerts and mmmual fimd houses all having s oand financ ialcondition and nene of these balances are credit inpaired . An fnpainment analysis is perfoomed at
each reporting date on veoice wWise rece frables balances.

Cash and «ash equivalents and deposits with hanks
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are held with bards which hawve high credit rating. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have low oeditrisk based on the extemal credit ratings of the counterp arties.

Retention money rec eivable
Dnring FY" 2019-20, the Group had retention money receivable from the state gowvernuments pertaming to the services rendered by the Compary towards e- governance projects. The same has been transferred to trade receimables i FY
2020-21 basis the terms of the comtract. The Company foresees no aedit risk pertaming to those receivables as the same are sovereign backed but assesses the same for loss i time vahie of money.

Tvestments in equity instruwmnent of ofleer «ampandes and muhel funds
The oeditrisk for the e stments i equity msomment of other companies and mamalfmds is considered asnegligible as the counter parties are reputable Companies and mutal fimd agencie s with high external oedit ratings.

Fimnial assets for whidh loss allowar e is meanwed using lifetime expected credit losses

Particulars Asat Asat

31 Maxch 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Trade recefmbles 10,260 21 728302
PFetention money rece frable - 724.00

Dwring the year, the Group has made no write-offs of trade receivables as disclosed M Mote 33 as it does not expect to recefwe fiture cash flows or recoveries from collection of recefvables previously written off. The Group's
management also pursue all 1egal options for re cowery of dues, wherever necessary, based on its iternal assessmernt.

Fefer note 13 and 17 for Rec one iliation of loss allowance provision for Trade receivables and Retention money rece frable.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encomter difficulty m meeting the obligations associated with its financial labilities that are settled by delivering cash or snother fivancial asset. The Group’s spproach to managmg
liquidity is to ensume, as far as possible, that it will hawve sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities wihen they are due under both normal sd stressed conditions  withoat fonring wmac ceptable losses or risk g damage to the Group’s
Teputation.

Prudent liguidity risk manageament inp lies maitaming sufficient cash ad mardetable securities and the cash flows generated from operations to meet obligations when due andto close out market positions. Due to the dynamic
natre of the mderlymg businesses, the Group's treanny mamtams flexibility i fimd g by mainta nin g svailability wder commited credit lnes.

Ianagement monitors rollig forecasts of the Group’s liguidity position ¢ omprising cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out i accordance with practice and mits set by the Group.
B addition, the Group s liquidity mana gement policy mwolbves projecting cash flows o major corencies and considering fhe Ewvel of liguid assets necessaryto meet these , monitoring balance sheet liquidiy ratios agamst ftemaland
extemalre gulatory requirements and mamtaming debt financ g plans. As at 31 March 2021, the Group has a net current assets of INR 12,557 88 lakhs (31 March 2020: INE 5 160 44 lakhs)

Maturities of financial Habilities
The following are the ramaming condractial matoritie s of financ ial liabilities at the reporting date . The smowds are gross and mdiscourted, and exchade comtrachial Dterest payments and exchide the fmpact of netting agreements .

[Particulars Caarying aom ot Cantrachal « ash Aows
as at Total Upto 1 year Betweenl - 2 Between 2 - 5 More than §
31 Maxrch 2021 Years Years yeaxr
Nem-derivative financial Habilities
Trade payables 2147099 2147099 147099 - - -
Borrowings (e hiding curert maturity of long-term debt and interest acoued) 3451330 44 385.70 032408 11,406.63 2355400 -
Other financ ial liabilitie s (excchid g cwnrent matr ity of long-term debt snd fterest accmed) 2p31.20 2031.20 2031.20 - - -
Total 39115 58 48 BE7.89 1382627 11 406 63 2365499 -
*The contractual Cash flows e hade s intere st obligation on borrow ngs
Particulars Caarying armownt Cendractual «ash flows
as at Total Uptol yer Between 1 -1 Betwea 2 - 5 Mere than §
31 Maxch 2020 years years Yeaxr
Nem-derivative financial Habilities
Trade payables 104967 104967 1040 57 - - -
Borrowings (e hiding curert maturity of long-term debt and interest acoued) 3754377 4741204 7,773.00 10,405.95 2023200 -
Other financ ial liabilitie s (excchid g cwnrent matr ity of long-term debt snd fterest accmed) §44.36 §44.36 G44 .36 -

Total 40 237 80 5010697 10 468 02 10 406 95 29,232 00 -
*The contractual Cash flows e hade s intere st obligation on borrow ngs
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41 Fimanwial instruments — Fair vahues amd xisk: moaoe gernend (contime d)

iii. M ket risk
IMarket risk is the risk that changes o market prices — such as foreign exchange rates and fterest rates —will affect the Group s Revernie from op erations or the value of its holdings of financial mstuments. The objctie of maket
risk management is to manage and control marketrisk exposure s within acceptablk parameters while optimisig the retom.

Tterest rate risk
The Grovp does not hawe any borowigs with wariable rates. Group has all of its borowmgs atfixed rate. The Group has issued Non corvertible borrowings at ficed mterestrate.

Exposure fo interest rate risk
The fterest rate profile of the Group’s fuerest-bearmg financial stoments a5 reported o the management of the Group is as follows:
Asat Asat
31 Maxch 2021 31 Maxch 2020
Fixed-rate insouments

Financial assets 63.86 31832
Financial liabilities 3451339 37543717
G sh flow sensitvizy analysis for variable-ra e i

There are 110 variable rate borrowmngs of the Group. Hence ,change o vterest rates would not hawe an impact on cash flows of the Group

Fair value sensitivity analy sis for fived-re
The Grovp does not account for ay fise d-rate financial assets or financial lisbilities at fad wahie hrough profit or loss. Therefore, a change o dnterest rates atthe reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cunr ency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign cumrency risk on certam transactions that are denominated i a cwTency other than entity’s fimctional cmrency, hence exposme to exchange rate fhacmations arises.

Exposure fo currency risk

The aummary quantitative data aboutthe Group's unhedged exposure to significart curencyrisk in foreign aurency and domestic anrency asreported to the management of the Growp is as follows:

Fimuial assets As at 31 Maxch 2021 Asat 31 Mardh 2020
Amomntin FC_ Amomt in INK Amamt in FC__ Amoamt in INK

Trade receivables:

usD 130 0543 0.40 71528
CAD 022 1207 0.66 3535
AUD 221 12201 051 2358
GBEP 013 1318 029 2753

Sznsitivity analy sis

Ar bl possible e kening) of the IME agamst all other cwnrencies at year-end would have affected the measmrement of financial istoments denominated i 2 foreign oorency and affected equiy and profit or
los s for the year by the ameurts shown below . This analysis assmnes that all other wariables , in particular interest rates, remain canstant.
Particulars Profit ar loss Equity (et of tax)

n Weakend Str i Wealkeni
For the year ended 31 March 2021
USD (1% movement) (0.95) 0.05 @I 071
CAD (5% movement) (0.65) 0.65 (049) 049
AUD (1% movement) (1.23) 123 [CLE 0.02
GBP (10% movement) (13m) 132 (099) 0.9

For the year ended 31 March 2020

USD (1% movement) (7.15) 7.15 (535) 535
CAD (5% movement) (177 L7 (132) 132
AUD (1% movement) (0.24) 0.24 (018) 0.18
GBP (10% movement) (2.75) 275 (206) 2.06

41  Capital managem ent
The Grovp's objectives wien managmg capital are to
1) mfe guard the ir ability to continue a5 & goig concem so that i can contie to provide retum for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders: and
b)maftain an optimal cap ital shuchmre to reduce the cost of capital.
o) ensmre compliance with regulstory mindmmmn networth required to be maitamed i accordance wih SEBI guidelimes.
B order to mantam or adjust the capital stucture, the Group may adjist the amomt of dividends paid to shareholders, renomn capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell to reduce delbt.

Consistent with others i the fwhisty, the Group moniors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Met debt total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and aorent equity o of other companies and i i mmatal fimds) divided by total % quity” (as shown o the balance sheet, exchiding Capital reserve,
Capital redemption reserve , D ebentire re demption reserve, Srare based payment reserve and Satatory reserwe). The gesring ratios were as follows:

Particulars 31 Maxrc¢h2021 31 Maxch 2020
Het debt 2252087 3502313
Total e quity 3206412 38,503.05
et debt to equity Tatio T1.20%% 90 D6%
Debt covenants

Tnder fhe temms of fhe debentmres agreement ,the Group istequired to comply with the followmg financial covenants:
4) D SCRA not less than 1.1 times during the tenre of the debentures.

b)) Maxdommnm Het Debt/ EBITD A not to exceed 3.75 times.

The Group has complied with these covenants as at reporting period.

Futher,the SEBI (Registrarsto an Issue and Share Transfer Agents), Pules and Regualations, 1993 require the Holding Company to maintain a minimm ret worth of INE 50 lakhs at all times. Sachnet worth is computed based on a
formrmla given mthe SEBI guidelines as per which Fet worth = Share capital + Free reserves and sirphis - debit balance mthe P&L - Preliminary expenses not written off - itangible assets - Deferred Tax assets. For computing this
net worth, the carymg vahe of goodwill amomtimg to MR 51 62560 lakdis that has avisen on accont of the tusiess combinations is not decducted by the management. This is consistent with the methodology followed by the
Holding Company in the submissions made earlier to SEBI and is based on legal adwice obtained by the Holding Compary. Basis such compatation, the Holding Company is o comp hance with the min fmmm net worth oriteria asper
sforementioned SEBI guidelines.
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Impairment test of goodw ill

Agat 31 March 2021, the Group is carrying goodwill aggregating to IINR. 52,455 44 lakhs (31 March 2020 : INR 509,147.50 lalchs) referred to in Mote 4, 44 and 45, For the peniod ended 31 March
2021, the goodwill impaimment has been assessed at the Group level. The recoverable amount of the Goodwill has been determined as per value in use method using discounted cash flows.
Management has tested goodwill for impainnent even though there are no indicators of impainment.

The values assigned to the key assuwnptions represent management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been assigned based on historical data both from external and
internal sources.

The projections cover a period of five years, as the Group believes this to be the most appropriate timescale over which to review and consider annual performances before applying a fized terminal
value multiple to the final year cash flows. The growth rates used to estimate future perfonmance are based on the conservative estimates from past perfonmance
The Group has performed sensitivity analysis around the base assumptions and have concluded that no reasonable changes in key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the CGU to be

less than the carrying value.

The following growth and discount ates have been considered for the purpose of the impainment testing:

Particulars Asat Asat

31March2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate 14% 16%
Terminal value rate 5% 5%
Budgeted EB ITDA growth rate for various revenue stream 26.6% to 35.9% 5% - 20%

- The discount rateis a post-tax measure estinated based on the historical industry average weighted-average cost of capital.

- The cash flow projections include specific estimates for five years and a tenminal growth rate thereafter. The terminal growth rate has been determined based on management’s estimate of the long-
term compound annual EBITDA growth mate, consistent with the assunptions that a market participant would make.

-Budgeted EB ITDA has been estinmated taldng into account past experience and expected growth in the next five years.

Based on the test performed, no impairment has beenidentified.

During the previous year, the Holding Company entered into a "Business Transfer Agreement” (B TA") dated 7th August 2019 with Sundaram Fund Services Limited (formerly known as 'Sundaram
BMP Paribas Fund Services Limited' ('SBF3") to acquire the business of Registrar to an issue and share transfer agent for securities (including mutual fund units), back office and find accounting
services to alternative investment funds or private equity clients of SBFS on a slump sale basis. The business purchase was effective from 11 November 2019, Such business combination has been
accounted for by the company in accordance with IndAS 103 as follows:

a) all assets and liabilities pertaining to business transferred to the Holding Company have been recorded at their fair values asat 1 1 November 2019,

b) Certain assets not recorded by SBFS such as customer contracts have been recorded by the compary at their fair values,

c) the purchase consideration has been recorded at fair value; and

d) the difference between the purchase consideration and the net book value of assets as per (a) and (b) above has been recorded as Goodwill.

The details of the same are given in the table below:

Particulars Amount
Purchase consideration (A) 265335
Fair value of identifiable assets and liab ilities acquired

Assets

Property, plant and equipment 311.05
Intangible assets

a) Customer contracts 2.180.78
b) Computer so ftware 16.51
Total assets (B) 2517.34

Total liabilities (C) -
Net assets (D=B-C) 2517.34
Goodwill (A-D) 136.01

The goodwill 15 attributable mainly to the strong customer base and the synergies expected to be achieved from integrating the target into the Group’s existing Standard business.

Measurement of fair values
Thevaluation tecluigues used for measuning the fair value of material assets acquired were as follows.

Assets acquired Valuation techniq ue
Property, plant and equipment and computer so ftware Cost teclmigue: The valuation model considers depreciated replacement cost when approptiate.
Customer contracts Income based approach method: This typically aims to capture the fiture earnings of a potential of an intangible and are used to

estimate the value based on projected future cash flows over the assets economic life. This method considers the discounted estimated
income from the customer contracts that transferred. The resulting net cash flows arealso termed as multi period excess earnings. The
nulti-period excess earnings method considers the present value of net cash flows expected to be generated by excluding any cash
flows related to contributory assets. The cash mflows and owtflows arein general derived from projected financial information.

The fair value of assets and liabilities have been computed by a third party valuer vide their report dated 15 May 2020.

Pursuant to the BTA, 190 employees has been transferred from SBFS to the Holding Company. Accordingly, compensated absences aggregating to INR 28 48 lakhs and gratuity Hability INR il (net
of fund value of assets transferred — INR 04,98 lalchs) has been transferred to the Group. The net impact on Goodwill 15 Nil as these latilities are adjusted against the purchase consideration.

The business rationale of this business combination was to enable the Group to increase the marlet share through new customers.

Theacquired business contributed revenues of INR 1,055.04 lakhs and profit before tax of INR 167,35 lakhs to the Group for the period 11 November 2019 to 31 March 2020. If the acquisitions had
occurred on 1 April 2019, pro-fonma revenue and pro fit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2020 would have been INR 46,4 64.05 lakhsand IINR 2,200.46 lakhs respectively.
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The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in their meeting held on 2 August 2017 approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation between Kavy Consultants
Limited (KCL), Karvy Computershare Pnvate Limited (ECPL), the Company and their respective shareholders under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Scheme").
The Scheme has been approved by the Nahonal Company Law Tribunal vide their order dated 23 October 2018 which has been filed with the Registrar of Compames on 17 November 2018,
Therefore the Scheme has become effective on 17 November 2018,

As per the Scheme, the RTA undertaking' of KCL (as explained below) and KCPL were anaganated into the Company with effect from 17 November 2013, the detals of wlich are given
below:

Amalgamation of the 'RTA undertaking' of KCL into the Group

In the Scheme, the 'RTA undertalang' of KCL 15 defined as the assets and liabihties relating to the Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA) business of ECL incduding the mvestment held by
KCL (50% equity stalee) in KCPL In accordance with the Scheme, thus RTA Undertalang of KECL has been amalgamated wnto the Group wath effect fom 17 November 2018 in consideration
of 1ssue 0f 110,000,015 equity shares of INR 10 each of the Group to the shareholders of KCL (as per the share swap ratio approved in the Scheme).

As specified i the Scheme tlus amalgamation has accounted for in accordance with the Purchase method of accountng as per Accountng Standard 14 - on “Accountng for
Amalgamations’. Accordingly:

a) all assets and liabilities of the RTA Undertalang of KCL incduding the investment held by ECL in KCPL have been recorded at their emisting book values as at November 16, 2018 (as
certified by the independent auditors of ECL),

b) the consideration, beng the face value of the sad equity shares 1ssued by the Group to the shareholders of KCL has been recorded at par value, and

c) the difference between a) and b) above amounting to [NE 10,937.50 lakhs has been recorded as Goodwall.

Amalgamation of KCPL into the Group

On 17th November 2013, the Group acqured a 50% stale in KECPL from an exsting shareholder. The remaning 50% stalee in KCPL got vested in the Group on 17th November 2018 upon
the RTA Undertaking of KCL getting amalgamated into the Group. Accordingly, on 17th November 2018, ECPL became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company. However, the
amalgamation of KCPLinto the Group also became effective on the same day, and hence, KCPL got merged into KFPL on 1 7th November 2013,

As specified in the Scheme, the Group has accounted for the amalgamation as follows:

a) all assets and liabihties of KECPL have been recorded at their existing book values as at November 16, 2018,

b) the difference between the cost of investment in KCPL as appearing in the books of KFPL and the net book value of assets as per &) above amounting to INR 56,003.47 lakhs has been
recorded as Goodwall.

As per the Scheme, the cumulative goodwill ansing on the transaction amounting to INF 66,940,938 lakhs 15 being anortised over apenod of 10 years. Goodwill generated on this transaction
largely represents the value of the businesses acqured by the Group as reduced by the book values ofthe assets and liabilities ofthe acquired businesses.
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Impactof COVID-19

The Group has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these consolidated financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, Heuudity and
going concemn assumphon, recoverable values of its financial and nonfinancial assets. The Group has camied out this assessment based on avealable internal and external sowrces of
information upto the date of approval of thes: consolidated financial statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these consolidated financial statements and
expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements owing to the natwe and dwation of COVID-19.

7 Transfer pricing

The Holding C ompany has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Sections 92-02F of the
Income-tax Act, 1951, Since the law recuires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporansous in nature, the Holding Company is in the process of updating the
documentation for the domestic and international transactions entered into with the assocated enterprises during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by 30
Nowvember 2021, as recuited by law. The Management is of the opinion that its domestic and infernational transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any
impact onthe consolidated financial statements, particulaly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for tax ation

Share Based Payments

The shareholders of the Holding Company vide their meeting held on 31 July 2019 hawve authorised the Board of Directors to introcuce, offer and provide share-based incentives to eligitle
employees of the Group under KFPL Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 ('ESOF Plan 2019"). Subsequently, the Board and Nomination and Remuneration C ommittee (NRC) of the Holding
C ompary have notified three schemes under the ESOP Plan 2019. The maximum munber of shares that the Holding C ompany can issue under the ESOP Plan 2019 are 9,593,839 ecuity
shares. Subsecuently 2,500,000 options cancelled by the Halding C ompary with approval taken in EGM held on 20th October 2020. The revised mumber of Ecuity shared under ESOP plan
2019 are 7,093,839 ecuity shares as at 31 March 2021, The options under these schemes vest tothe employees based on various performance and other parameters. As at 31 March 2021, the
Holding Company has granted 2,671,991 (nefy [31 March 2020: 2,735,038 (nef)] options to eligible employees as identified by the NRC. These options vests between a minimum of 1 to 3.65
years from the date of grant.

Descrip tion of share b ased payment air

Particulrs Scheme A Scheme B Scheme C

Date of Grant 8-Aug-19 8-Aug-19 8-Aug 19
13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jarr 20
8-Sept-20 8-Sept-20 8-Sept-20
29-Dec-20 29-Dec-20 29-Dec-20

Number of options in pool 28,37,536 21,328,152 21,28,152

Total munber of options granted 1,066,691 (31 March| 800,019 (31 March 2020: | 800,018 (31 March

2020: 1,004,016) 820,511) 2020: 820,511)

Exercise period 7 wears from the date of listing of shares on the stock exchange for
continuing employee or deceased employee and a period of 3 years from

the date of listing of shares on the stock ex change for ex-employees

Vesting concition Time based wvesting]Achievement of| Achievement of non-
condition performance condition and|market bassd

non-maket based condition |condition
Vesting period 15% - end of year 1]|50% or 100% on|100% on
15% - end of year 2|achievement  of  target|achievement of|
35%- end of year 3|specified in the scheme orfcondition specified in

35% - end of year 4{100% nonrmarket based|the scheme or 100%
conclition on non-market based
conclition
Exercise price 70 36 70 36 70.36
0198 0198 01.98
110.00 110.00 110.00

Measurement of fair vahies
The fair value of the options granted duing the period and the inputs used in the measurement of the grant-date fair values of the ecuity-settled share based payment plans measured based on
the Black 3 choles valuation model are as follows:

Particulars Asat As at
31 Maxch 2021 31 March 2020
Scl A Scl B Scl C Scl A Scl B Scl C

Date of grant 8-Augl9 8-Augl9 8-Aug19 08-Aug-19 08-Aug 19 08- Aug-19

13-Janr20 13-Janr20 13-Jan-20 13-Jan-20 13-Jarr 20 13-Jan-20
8-Sept-20 8-Sept-20 8-Sept-20
29-Dec20 29-Dec20 29-Dec-20

Fair Value of option (InINE) 3357/33.52  3357/3352 3357/33.52 3357/3352 3357/33.52 3357/3352
3578 3578 3578

Exercise price 7036 7036 70 36 7036 7036 70.36
0198 0198 0198
11000 11000 110.00

Risk free interest rate 647%/688% 6.47%/6.88% 6.47%/6 88% 6.47%/6 88% 6.47%/ 6.88% 6.47%/6 88%
6.40% 6.40% 6.40%

Femaining contractual life 7/3 years 713 years 7/ 3 years 7/ 3 years 7/3 years 7/ 3 years

Expectedlife of share options (years) 815772 years 8.15/7.72 years 8.15/7 .72 years 8.15/7.72 years 815772 years 8.15/7.72 years
7.06 years 7.06 years 7.06 years

Expected vol atility (wei ghted average volatility %) 14.61%/13.96% 14.61%/ 1461%/13.96% 1461%/13.96% 14.61%/13.96% 1461%/1396%
16.16% 13.06% 16.16%

Expected dividend vields (%) - - - - - -

The expectedlife of the share options is based on cwrrent expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise pattemns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumpti on that
the historical volatility over a period similar to thelife of the options is indicative of futwe trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome. The average remaining contractual 1ife for
the stock options outstandingis7 .06 years post lock in period of 3.5 years and average life of 3.5 years from the date of lising (31 March 2020: 8.15 years post lock in period of 465 years
and average life of 3.5 years from the date of listing).
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C Reconciliation of share options
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Numb er of options Number of op tions

asat as at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Outstanding at beginning of the year 27,35,038 -
Granted cuning the year 18,15,586 30,14,698
Forfeited during the year (18,83,396) (2,79,660)
Exercised duing the year - -
Outstanding at end of the year 26,656,728 27,35,038

Exercigable at the end of the vear - -

During the curent year ended March 31, 2021, the Holding Compaty has granted 1,815,586 options under ESOP Plan 2019 to eligible employees as identified by the N omination and
Femuneration C ommittee (NRC).

Revenue from contract with custo mers
Type of Sewvice Timing of recognition Forthe yearended For the year ended
31 Maxch 2021 31 March 2020
Fee from registrars and investor ssrvices Ower the period 41,393 33 36,909.50
Fee from registrars to the issue services Ower the period 480 31 1,440.58
Income from data processing Ower the period 420182 3,616.28
Income from pension fund solutions Ower the period 267 .53 13502
Fecoverable expenses Ower the period 1,762 .43 2,885.71
Total 48,114 42 44 987.00
Contract balances:
Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade receivables, net 10,260 21 7,883092
Contract assets - unbilled reverme 798 98 94793
Fetention money receivables, net - 72409
Contract labilities (Uneamedincom &) 13139 0457

Duing the year ended 31 March 2021, INR 947 93 of unbilled revenue will be reclassified to trade receivables upon billing to customers.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally onterms of payment of 40 days.

Reconciliation of revenue with contractp rice

Particulars Forthe yearended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Contract price 47,315 44 4423074

Less: Adjustments for price concessions - (200.58)

Add: Unbilled revermie 708 08 04793

Revenue from op erations 48,114.42 44,987.09

During the year, the Holding C ompary vide letter dated 02 March 2021 submitted to Central D epository Services Limited (CSDL) and National Depository Services Limited (NSDL), has
surrendered its license for operating as a D epositor Participant (DF) as it does not plan to launchthe DP operations due to change in the business plans/ strategy

On 23 March 2021, KFin Service Private Limited (hereinafter referred as "KFin Services") has entered info an agreement to invest in Artivatic Data Labs Private Limited by subsciibing to
3,511 number of equity shares of INE. 1 eachfully paid-up and 31,599 C ompul sy Convertible Preference Shares having a face value of INE. 1 for a total consideration of INE 750.00 lakhs,
collectively comprising of 17% holding of Artivatic Data Labs Private Limited The sforesaid amount is plammed to be invested in two Tranches, of which first tranche is completed in the
month of April 2021,

The acquisition is proposed to be funded by way of E quity infusion by the Holding C ompary.
All of the aforementioned transactions are sulyject to conditions precedent and applicable approvals, as deemed necessary.
EFin Services has incwred an amount of INE. 47 40 towards transaction costs which are attributable to the accuisition of financial asset. As at 31 March 2021, this is considered as prepaid

EXPENSES.

Subsecuent to the balance sheet date, the shareholders of the Holding Company have executed an agreement to terminate the amendsd and restated shareholder agreement dated 28 May
2021. The Holding C ompany has also entered into a subscription agreem ent with a shareholder for subscription to redeemalle preference shares. B oth these agreements shall come into effect
at a futwe date depending on the happening or non-happening of certain future wncertain events.

The Indian P arliament has approved the Code on Social S ecunity, 2020 wihich would impact the contibutions by the Group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity The effective date from
which the changes are applicable 15 yet to be notified and the nules for quantifying the financial impact are yet to be framed Inview of this, impact if any, of the change will be assessed and
accounted in the period of notifi cation of the relevant provisions.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly kmown as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued )
(All amounts are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

£4. Additional information p ursuant to paragraph 2 of Division II of Schedule III to the Comp anies Act 2013- 'General instructions for the prep aration of consolidated financial statements

As at 31 March 2021

Name of the entity Net assets Share in profit or boss Share in other comprehensive Share in total comp rehensive income
(total assets minus total liabilities) income
As %o of Amount As % of Amount As %of Amount As % of consolidated Amount
consolidated net consolidated consolidated total comp rehensive
assets profit or bss 0cCI income
Parent
[ Fin T eclmologies Private Limited 99.18% 34,356 44 10435% (6,731.40) 100% 1193 10436% (6,719.47)
Subsidiary in India
[ Fin Services Private Limited -001% (2.08) 0.03% 214 - - 0.03% 214
Foreign subsidiaries
K Fin T echnologies (Bahrair) W.L L. 1.00% 34609 -2.10% 13521 - - -2.10% 13521
K Fin T echnologies (Malaysia) SDN BHD 183% 63305 -1.41% 9105 - - -1.41% 9105
[Adjustment arising out of ¢ onsolidation -200% (693.12) -087% 56.42 - - -088% 56.42
Total 100%%o| 34,640.40 100%%o| (6,450 .86) 100%%0| 1193 100%%o| (6,438.93)
As at 31 March 2020
Name of the entity Net assets Share in profit or boss Share in other comprehensive Share in total comp rehensive income
(total assets minus total liabilities) income
As %o of Amount As % of Amount As %of Amount As % of consolidated Amount
consolidated net consolidated consolidated total comp rehensive
assets profit or boss ocCI income
Parent
[ Fin T eclmologies Private Limited 9993% 40,930 64 12083% 58738 100.00% (G891 13519% 51847
Subsidiary in India
[ Fin Services Private Limited 0.00% o008 001% (092) 001% (0.92)
Foreign subsidiaries
K Fin T echnologies (Bahrair) W.L L. 0.62% 25298 1.70% 7.67 - - 2.00% 767
K Fin T echnologies (Malaysia) SDN BHD 126% 51463 13.63% 61 .66 - - 16.08% 61 .66
[Adjustment arising out of ¢ onsolidation -181% (740.60) -4495% (203 36) - - -5302% (203.36)
Total 100%%o| 40,957.73 100%%o| 45243 100%%0| (68.91) 100%%o| 38352
Asper our Report of even date attached
for BSR & AssociatesLLP for and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants KFin Technologies Private Limited
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024 CIN: U72400TG2017PTC117649 VENKATA
g lly sigrad by Digitally signed by
ARPAN Digitally signed by ARPAN VISHWANATHA e g:::am_f‘_‘" VIVEK ALPANA i i
e L 7 " N MAVILA NAIR S 202 0624 60343 MADELLA NARAYAN UTIAm '&,ﬂw
SHANTILAL JAIN cetez0210621 18255705350 MATHUR : KUNDU ~ Siaiioss
Arpan Jain Vishwanathan M Nai Sreelkanth Nadella Vivek Narayan Mathur Alpana Uttam Kundu
FPartner Chairman Whole fime Director & Chigf Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24 June 2021
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KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

1. Reporting entity

KFin Technologies Private Limited ("the Holding Company™) (formerly known as Karvy Fintech
Private Limited) was incorporated on 08 June 2017 at Hyderabad, India. The Holding Company’s
registered office is at Karvy Selenium, Tower B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally Hyderabad, Rangareddi Telangana 500032. The Holding Company together with its
subsidiaries as set out below are collectively referred to as “the Group”. The Group is engaged in
providing service of Registrar to the Public Issue of Securities, Registrar to the Securities Transfers,
and back office operations to mutual fund houses and data processing activities.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by adopting uniform accounting policies between
the group companies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented
in the same manner as the Company's standalone financial statements.

These Consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other

relevant provisions of the Act.

These Consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June
2021.

Subsidiaries considered in the Consolidated financial statements:

Entity Country of Holding

incorporation (%0)
KFin Technologies (Bahrain) W.L.L.
(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Bahrain) WLL Bahrain 100
KFin Technologies (Malaysia) SDN. BHD
(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Malaysia) SDN. BHD. Malaysia 100
KFin Services Private Limited India 100

B. Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR”), which is the Holding
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise
stated.

C. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis except for the following items:

* Defined benefit liability/(assets): fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligation
*  Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value or amortised value



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

C. Basis of measurement (continued)
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received from sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either —

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Group.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole-
* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

For changes that have occurred between levels in the hierarchy during the year the Company re-assesses
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

D. Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these Consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation
of the Consolidated financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised prospectively.

a) Judgements

Information about the judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated financial statements have been given below:
* Note N -revenue recognition
* Note Q - classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the
assets the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

D. Use of judgments and estimates (continued)

b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the Consolidated financial statements for every period ended is included below:

Employee benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans and the present value of the obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ
from actual developments in the future. These includes the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates However, any changes in these assumptions may have impact
on the reported amount of obligation and expenses. (Refer note M).

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. The Group establishes provisions, based
on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of assessment by the tax authorities of the
jurisdiction in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such
as experience of previous tax assessment and differing interpretations of tax laws by the taxable
entity and the responsible tax authority. The Group assesses the probability for litigation and
subsequent cash outflow with respect to taxes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. (Refer note R)

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after estimating the asset’s expected useful
life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The depreciation method, useful lives and
residual values of Group’s assets are estimated by Management at the time the asset is acquired and
reviewed during each financial year. (Refer note H, I and J)

Impairment of financial assets

Analysis of historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and
current economic trends. Ifthe financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances
may be required. (Refer note Q)

Provisions and contingencies
Assessments undertaken in recognizing the provisions and contingencies have been made as per the
best judgment of the management based on the current available information. (Refer note P).

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques including
the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgments isrequired in establishing fair
values. The judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. (Refer note Q).

Impairment of non-financial assets: Key assumptions for discount rate, growth rate, etc.

The determination of recoverable amounts of the CGUs assessed in the annual impairment test
requires the Group to estimate their fair value net of disposal costs as well as their value-in-use.
The assessment of value-in-use requires assumptions to be made with respect to the operating cash
flows of the CGUs as well as the discount rates. (Refer note K)



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

E. Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the
group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset.

Non-controlling interests in the results are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

F. Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non-current

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets are classified as non-cuirent assets.
A liability is treated as current when:

* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

G. Leases
i. Asalessee

As a lessee, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases — i.e. these
leases are on-balance sheet. The Group decided to apply recognition exemptions to short-term leases.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A confract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116. At inception or on
reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the
leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

a. Fixed payments including in-substance fixed payments

b. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

c. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of
machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the balance sheet and lease liabilities in
‘Financial liabilities’ in the Balance sheet.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

G. Leases (continued)
ii. As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life
of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term as part of ‘other income’.

H. Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable
cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as a separate item (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit and loss.

Capital work-in-progress

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work-in-
progress. Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date are disclosed as other non-current assets.

Subsequent Measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Group.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

H. Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation

The Group provides depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, other than vehicles and leasehold
improvements based on the useful life specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The depreciation is provided under straight-line method. The management based on the actual usage
of vehicles has provided depreciation at the estimated useful life of 5 years as against the useful life
of 8 years as specified under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of the lease or the estimated useful
life of the assets, whichever is lower.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes
that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets.

Asset category Estimated useful
life (years)

Plant and machinery 5-15
Electrical installations 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3
Office equipment 5
Vehicles 5

I. Intangible assets

Intangible Assets acquired separately are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
loss, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful lives from
the date they are available for use based on the expected pattern of economic benefits of the asset.
Intangible asset is amortised on straight line basis

Asset category Estimated useful life (Years)
Computer software 3-10
Customer relationships 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted if appropriate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

J. Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions of businesses is reported separately from intangible assets.

i) As stated inthe approved scheme of amalgamation and arrangement approved by National Company
Law Tribunal, Hyderabad goodwill is being amortised over period of 10 years (Refer Note 44).
Further this Goodwill is also tested for impairment at each reporting period and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

ii) Goodwill generated through Business Transfer Agreement (Refer Note 45) is tested for annual
impairment at each reporting period and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

K. Impairment of non—financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication on impairment. If any
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates the
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a Cash generating unit (CGU) (or an individual asset) is the higher of its
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment loss in respect of assets is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

L. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded by the Group at the exchange rates prevailing at the date
when the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date of initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis in the statement of profit and loss.
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M. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service providedby the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

The Holding Group makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to
Government administered provident fund scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme. KFin
Technologies (Bahrain) W.L L. (formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Bahrain) W.L.L) contributes to the
pension scheme for Bahraini nationals administered by the General Organisation for Social Insurance
in the Kingdom of Bahrain. The Group's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

A defined confribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
confributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

Gratuity

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. The contributions made to the fund are recognised as plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation as reduced by fair value of plan assets is recognised in the Balance Sheet. Re-measurements
are recognised in the other comprehensive income, net of tax in the year in which they arise.

When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. Net interest expense (income) on the net
defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined
liability (asset), to the net defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into
account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
occurs.

The expatriate employees of the Subsidiary are paid leaving indemnity in accordance with the
provisions of the Bahrain Labour Law for private sector 2012, based on length of service and final
salary. Provision for this, which is unfunded, and which represent a defined benefit plan - Employee
contribution has been made by calculating the notional liability had all employees left at the reporting
date. The provision is classified as a non-current liability in the statement of financial position.
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M. Employee benefits (continued)

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as at the Balance Sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets, if any out
of which the obligations are expected to be settled. The cost of providing benefits is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and L oss in the period in which
they occur.

N. Revenue

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts
with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs. Revenue is
recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services. The effect on
adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue from registry and related services and communication services is recognised on the basis of
services rendered to customers, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the contracts entered
into by the Group with each customer provided, the revenue is reliably determinable, and no significant
uncertainty exist regarding the collection.

Income from pension fund solutions represents services which are recognised as per the terms of the
contract with customers, when such related services are rendered.

Revenue from data processing services is recognised based on the services rendered, in accordance with
the terms of the contract, either on a time cost basis or on the basis of number of enumerations processed.

Recoverable expenses represent expenses incurred to related to service performed and are recognised
on the basis of billing to customers, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreements
entered into by the Group with each customer.

Work-in-progress (unbilled revenue) represents revenue from services rendered, recognised based on
services performed in advance of billing based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the agreements
with the customers.

Income from interest on deposits and interest-bearing securities is recognised on a time proportion basis
considering the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate.

Dividends are recognised in statement of profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group,
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

0. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services rendered in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost, less provision for expected credit loss.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

P. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable (“more likely than not™) that it is required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date,
considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Consolidated financial statements but disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the Group
from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision for an onerous contract is measured at the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established,
the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Q. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign currency forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the host confract, etc.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group initially recognise financial assets on the date on which they are originated. The Group
recognises the financial assets on the trade date, which is the date on which the Group becomes a party

to the contractual provision of the instrument.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset except assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Classifications and subsequent measurement

Classifications

The Group classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value
depending on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a

portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

Q. Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that
it would not meet this condition.

Debt instrument at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at Fair value though profit and loss (FVTPL):

a) it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if both of the following conditions are met:

a) it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income is recognised basis EIR
method and the losses arising from ECL impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as
FVO(], is classified as at FVTPL.

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

Q. Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

e abreach of contract;

e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
¢ the disappearance of an active market for security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

Q. Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the consolidated balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Classification and subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains and losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains and losses are not subsequently transferred to profit
and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

Q. Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).

R. Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differencesto the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

R. Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where the group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

S. Segment reporting

Operating segments arereported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The Board of directors of the Group have been identified as being the Chief operating decision maker
by the management of the Group. Refer note 37 for segment information presented.

T. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash
with original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash and
deposits with banks and interest accrued on deposits.

U. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities
of the Group are segregated.

V. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit after tax for “the year and the
weighted average number of shares outsta.ndln0 during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potentlal equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed to be converted as of the beginning
of the year, unless they have been issued at a later date.



KFin Technologies Private Limited (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

W. Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of
Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the
assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. The cost of acquisition also
includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values on
the date of acquisition. Transaction cost that the Group incurs in connection with business combination
such as finders fees, legal fees, due diligence and other professional fees are charged to equity.

In case of business combinations taking under scheme of amalgamation approved by Courts in India,
the accounting treatment as specified in the court order is followed for recording such business
combination.

X. Employee Stock option plan (ESOP)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in ‘Share based payment’ reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Y. Recent accounting pronouncements

On 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended
Schedule I1I of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, I and IIT of Schedule III
and are applicable from 01 April 2021. Key amendments relating to Division II which relate to
companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:
- Lease liabilities shouldbe separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished
as current or non-current.

- Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share
capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period

- Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

- Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress
and intangible asset under development

- If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

- Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement” such as compliance with approved
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable
property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and
crypto or virtual currency specified under the head “additional information’ in the notes forming part of
the consolidated financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Group will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required
by law.



KrINT:CH

Inspired By Passion. Dniven By Technalt

BOARD'’S REPORT

To

The Members,

KFin Technologies Private Limited,

(formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited),
Selenium, Tower B,

Plot No.31 & 32 Financial District,

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,

Hyderabad, Telangana- 500032 India.

Your Company's Directors hereby present the 04" Annual Report of your Company,
along with the audited financial statements and the auditors' report thereon, for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021.

I. Financial Performance

The standalone and consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021, forming part of this Annual Report, have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Summary of the financial performance of your Company and its subsidiaries for
the financial year 2020-21 as presented in the statement of Profit and Loss
Account, including other comprehensive income, as part of audited financial
statement. A summary is being presented here in below:

(Amount in Rs Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated

FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 | FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21
Revenue from 44,058 47,179 44,987 48,114
operations
Other Income 764 469 540 505
Total Income 44,822 47,648 45,527 48,620
Employee Expenses 18,740 18,359 19,398 18,861
Other Expenses 9,584 7,866 9,726 8,014
Depreciation and 9,216 9,791 9,221 9,799
Amortisation
Finance Cost 5,324 5,191 5,330 5,195
Total Expenses 42,824 41,207 43,676 41,869
Profit Before Tax 1,957 6,441 1,851 6,751
Tax -1,370 -13,172 -1,398 -13,201
Profit After Tax 587 -6,731 452 -6,450
Other Comprehensive -127 36 -69 12
Income
Total Comprehensive 461 -6,695 383 -6,438
Income

KFin Techﬂologles Prwate lelted

marly known a vy Fintech Privat
Registered & Corporate Office
Selenium Bullding, Tower-B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India, 500032,
Ph: +91 40 6716 2222, 7961 1000 | https://www.kfintech.com | CIN : U72400TG2017PTC117649
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e Statement of Company’s Affairs:

» Amendment in the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement: Amendment of
certain provisions of the shareholders’ agreement dated 3¢ August, 2017

entered into between the Company and its shareholders. The said amendment
to the shareholder’s agreement was brought in by executing a supplemental
shareholder’s agreement on 3rd April, 2020.

> Amendment in the Articles of Association of the Company: The entire
Articles of Association of the Company was restated due to the amendment of
Shareholders” Agreement. The said alteration was approved by the members in
its Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 34 April, 2020.

> Alteration of the objects clause of the Memorandum of Association: The
objects clause of the Memorandum of Association was amended by inserting

the clauses pertaining to_the insurance repository business and other connected
activities. The said amendment was approved by the members in its Extra-

ordinary General Meeting held on 3t April, 2020.

> Initiating proceedings under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016:
There details pertaining to the said point have been provided under the head
“Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year along with their status as at the
end of the financial year” of this report.

e Dividend:

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors has not declared

any dividend.
e Transfer to Reserves:

During the financial year under review, the Directors do not propose to transfer
any amount to reserves.

e Subsidiary Companies:

Your directors wish to inform you that as on March 31, 2021, the Company has
three wholly owned subsidiaries, namely, (i) KFin Technologies (Bahrain) WLL,
(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Bahrain) WLL, Bahrain) (ii) KFin
Technologies (Malaysia) Sendirian Berhad, Malaysia (Formerly known as Karvy
Fintech Malaysia) Sendirian Berhad) and (iii) KFin Services Private Limited.

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors reviewed the
affairs of the subsidiaries. In accord ance with section 129(3) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Company has prepared its consolidated financial statements and the

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Karvy Fintech Private Limited")
Registered & Corporate Office
Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serllingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India, 500032,
Ph: +91 40 6716 2222, 7961 1000 | https://www.kfintech.com | CIN : U72400TG2017PTC117649
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same forms part of the Annual Report of the Company. Further details of the
subsidiaries and highlights of performance of subsidiary companies and their
contribution to the overall performance of the Company are attached with this
Report as Annexure-1.

The salient features of the subsidiaries are provided in Form AOC-1 and the same
is attached herewith as Annexure-II.

e Name of the Companies which have become or ceased to be its subsidiaries,
joint ventures/ associate companies during the year:

During the financial year under review no companies have ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company. Further the Company does not have any Joint
Venture or Associate Company.

e Share Capital:

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company as at March 31, 2021 stood at
INR 150,84,35,830 (Rupees One Hundred Fifty Crore Eighty-Four Lakhs Thirty-
Five Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty) consisting of 15,08,43,583 full paid up
equity shares of INR 10 each. During the year under review, the Company has not
issued shares with differential voting rights and sweat equity shares.

e Details of Employee Stock Options Scheme:

The members of the Company at the General Meeting held on 31¢t July, 2019 had
approved a KFPL Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 toward granting 95,93,839 units
(Ninety five lakh ninety three thousand eight hundred thirty nine only) equivalent to
95,93,839 (Ninety five lakh ninety three thousand eight hundred thirty nine only) equity
shares. The Company had then notified the following schemes under the aforementioned
plan:

e KFPL Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 - Scheme A
¢ KFPL Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 — Scheme B
¢ KFPL Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 — Scheme C

Further, pursuant to the name change of the Company from Karvy Fintech Private
Limited to KFin Technologies Private Limited, the names of existing ESOP Plan and
ESOP schemes were also changed by the members of the Company at their Extraordinary
general meeting held on 20t October, 2020 as under:

Particulars Original names New names

ESOP Plan Karvy Fintech Private Limited | KFin Technologies Private
(‘KFPL") Limited ('KFin")
KFPL Employee Stock Option | KFin Employee Stock Option

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Karvy Fintech Private Limited")
Registered & Corporate Office
Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serllingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India, 500032,
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Plan 2019 - Scheme A
(“Scheme”)

(Notified under Clause 4 of the
KFPL Employee Stock Option

Plan 2019 (“Plan”)

Inspired By Passion. Dnven By Technology.
Plan 2019 Plan 2020
ESOP - Scheme A | KFPL Employees Stock Option | KFin ~ Employees  Stock

Option Plan 2020 - Scheme A
(“Scheme”)

(Notified under Clause 4 of
the KFin Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 (“Plan”)

ESOP - Scheme B

KFPL Employees Stock Option
Plan 2019 -
(“Scheme”)
(Notified under Clause 4 of the
KFPL Employee Stock Option
Plan 2019 (“Plan”)

Scheme B

KFin  Employees  Stock
Option Plan 2020 - Scheme B
(“Scheme”)

(Notified under Clause 4 of
the KFin Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 (“Plan”)

ESOP - Scheme C

KFPL Employees Stock Option
Plan 2019 -
(“Scheme”)
(Notified under Clause 4 of the
KFPL Employee Stock Option
Plan 2019 (“Plan”)

Scheme C

KFin  Employees  Stock
Option Plan 2020 - Scheme C
(“Scheme”)

(Notified under Clause 4 of
the KFin Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 (“Plan”)

Further, on the recommendation of NRC and Board for the future options, the excess
25,00,000 options were extinguished/reduced/cancelled from the ESOP pool by the
members of the Company at their Extraordinary general meeting held on 20%* October, 2020,

in order to increase the diluted EPS of the Company and the overall value per share.

I. Following are the details of the KFin Employees Stock Option Plan 2020 - Scheme A":

Sr. No. Particulars Description
a) Options granted 10,66,691
(08t August, 2019, 13% January, 2020, 08® September,
2020 and 29t December, 2020)-Net off forfeited shares
b) Options vested
Vesting date-08.08.2020 1,56,346
Vesting date-07.08.2020 7,757
c) Options exercised N.A.
d) the total number of shares arising as a result of N.A.
exercise of option;
e) options lapsed N.A.
f) the exercise price
For 1:t Grant Rs. 70.36/ - per option
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For 204 Grant Rs. 70.36/ - per option
For 3+4 Grant Rs. 91.98/ - per option
For 4t» Grant Rs. 110/ - per option
g2) variation of terms of options N.A.
h) money realized by exercise of options N.A.
i) total number of options in force 4427111

(Balance in pool available for grant as on 31.03.2021 for all
Sclietnes-A,B and C )
i) employee wise details of options granted to;-

i. Key managerial personnel 2,79,280
(As per section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 Wihole
time Director/CEO, CFO and Company Secretary were
considered ns KMP)

ii. Any other employee who receives a grant of options N.A.

in any one year of option amounting to five percent or
more of options granted during that year.

iii. Identified employees who were granted option, N.A.
during any one year, equal to or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding
warrants and conversions) of the company at the time

of grant;

KFin Technologles Prwate Limited

{Farmerly know *Karvy Fintech Private Limited")
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II. Following are the details of the KFin Employees Stock Option Plan 2020 - Scheme B":

Sr. No. Particulars Description
a) Options granted 8,00,019
(08t August, 2019, 13% January, 2020, 08® September,
2020 and 29t December, 2020)- Net off forfeited shares
b) Options vested N.A.
c) Options exercised N.A.
d) the total number of shares arising as a result of N.A.
exercise of option;
e) options lapsed N.A.
f) the exercise price
For 1:t Grant Rs. 70.36/ - per option
For 204 Grant Rs. 70.36/ - per option
For 3+4 Grant Rs. 91.98/ - per option
For 4t» Grant Rs. 110/ - per option
g2) variation of terms of options N.A.
h) money realized by exercise of options N.A.
i) total number of options in force 4427111
(Balance in pool available for grant as on 31.03.2021 for all
Schiemes-A,B and C )
i) employee wise details of options granted to;-
i Key managerial personnel 2,09,460
(As per section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013 Whole
time Director/CEO, CFO and Company Secretary were
considered ns KMP)
ii. Any other employee who receives a grant of options N.A.
in any one year of option amounting to five percent or
more of options granted during that year.
iii. Identified employees who were granted option, N.A.
during any one year, equal to or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding
warrants and conversions) of the company at the time
of grant;

III. Following are the details of the KFin Employees Stock Option Plan 2020 - Scheme C”:

Sr. No.

Particulars

Description

a)

Options granted
(08  August, 2019, 13% January, 2020, 08t
September, 2020 and 29t December, 2020)- Net

off forfeited shares

8,00,019

Selenium Bullding,
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b) Options vested N.A.
c) Options exercised N.A.
d) the total number of shares arising as a result of N.A.
exercise of option;
e) options lapsed N.A.
f) the exercise price
For 1+t Grant Rs. 70.36/- per option
For 204 Grant Rs. 70.36/- per option
For 3+d Grant Rs. 91.98/- per option
For 4t» Grant Rs. 110/ - per option
2) variation of terms of options N.A.
h) money realized by exercise of options N.A.
i) total number of options in force 4427111
(Balance in pool available for graut as on 31.03.2021
for all Scliemes-A,B and C )
i) employee wise details of options granted to;-
i Key managerial personnel 2,09,460
(As per section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013
Whole time Director/CEO, CFO and Company
Secretary were considered as KMP)
ii. Any other employee who receives a grant of N.A.
options in any one year of option amounting to
tive percent or more of options granted during
that year.
ili. | Identitied employees who were granted option, N.A.
during any one year, equal to or exceeding one
percent of the issued capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and conversions) of the
company at the time of grant;

e Listing of Debentures:

During the financial year 2020-21, your company has not issued any fully or
partly convertible or non-convertible debentures.

The outstanding amount of non-convertible debentures is INR 352 Crores

The details of the debenture trustee are as follows:

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited Asian Building, Ground floor, 17, R Kamani
Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400001; Tel: +91 0224080 7000; Fax: 022 63311776,
Contact Person: Mr. Vaibhav Palande.

KFin Technologies Private Limited

(Formarly known as "Karvy Fintech Private Limited")
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Credit Rating:

Your Company has obtained credit rating from ICRA Limited for its Non-
Convertible Debentures, which are as under:

Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-convertible Debentires—[[CRA] AA-.

Particulars of loans, Advances, Guarantees and Investments:

Pursuant to Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013, the disclosure on particulars
relating to loans, advances, guarantees and investments are provided as part of
the financial statements.

Deposits:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no
amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as
on the date of the balance sheet.

Risk Management Policy:

Your company had developed and implemented Enterprise Risk Management
Policy including identification of key risk elements which may threaten the
existence of the Company. The implementation is periodically reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Board. During the year under review, in view of the
renewed compliance focus in the company and the increased volume of
transaction in the company, the Audit Committee has constituted its sub-
committee namely “Sub-committee for Operational Risk and Compliance” for
further institutionalizing risk and compliance management across business lines
and organisational functions of the company.

e Events Subsequent to the Date of the Financial Statements:

Your company has made an investment in KFin Services Private Limited (wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) on 6™ April 2021 towards the right issue
opened by KFin Services Private Limited on 6t April 2021 (date of opening the
rights issue). The investment made amounted to Rs. 4,50,00,000/-(Rupees Four
Crores fifty Lakhs only)

During the year under review, the Company had filed an Application/Petition
before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bengaluru Bench at
Bengaluru ("Hon’ble Tribunal’) under Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 against ITI Limited for non-payment of Rs. 10,87,43,944 due towards
the Company for the services rendered by the Company. The said
Application/Petition was listed before the Hon'ble Tribunal for hearing on 2nd

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Karvy Fintech Private Limited")
Registered & Corporate Office
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March, 2021, 12 March, 2021 and 9™ April, 2021. As on the present date, ITI
Limited had agreed to settle the dues of the Company and paid the first two
instalments towards settlement on 8t April, 2021 and 07t May, 2021 respectively
aggregating to Rs. 4,50,00,000.

Apart from above, there were no material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company between the end of financial year 315t March,
2021 and the date of this report.

e Change in the nature of business:

During the Financial year 2020-2021 the company has not changed its nature of
business. However during the financial year under review your company altered
the Object clause of Memorandum of Association and inserted clause (5) to (7) in
Clause 3(a) of object clause, inserted clause (5) to (12) in Clause 3(b) of object
clause by passing Special resolution in an Extra-ordinary general meeting dated
03 April, 2020 towards expanding its business to act as an insurance repository
of e-insurance policies issued by insurers, whether life insurers or general
insurers, and to undertake their changes, modifications and revisions based on
such requests by policyholders, in accordance with rules and regulations as may
be prescribed by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority's (IRDA)
and, to implement any other short/long term projects that fortify the vision of
IRDA including consulting, development and support activities. However, the
Company has not taken up or commenced any such business activity.

IV. Business
e Overview of Operations - Particulars and Developments/ Outlook:

a. Your Company has been consistently delivering best in class service to its
clients with SLA adherence of more than 99% across business units.

b. Your company adapted the new way of working very swiftly amidst an
unprecedented global pandemic and were able to seamlessly deliver to our
clients with zero disruptions.

c. New digital assets such as KboltGo, RWAP, eAGM and Whatsapp based
transactions were launched and multilingual option in the investor App was
introduced to enhance investor experience backed by tech enabled initiatives
to create delight in client servicing and reporting. Your Company continued
to increase digital participation in the marketplace to handle large
transaction volumes which also supported our clients and the investor

community in a big way during the ongoing pandemic.

d. Your Company has been able to deliver on the operations as well as
capitalize on the Mutual Fund AAUM growth of its portfolio AMCs.

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formarly known as "Karvy Fintech Private Limited")
Registered & Corporate Office
Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serllingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India, 500032,
Ph: +91 40 6716 2222, 7961 1000 | https://www.kfintech.com | CIN : U72400TG2017PTC117649



K-INTZCH

Inspired By Passion. Dniven By Technology.

Average AUM per folio under equity witnessed a healthy growth year on
year.

e. The AIF and Corporate Registry businesses continue to grow, and your
Company is well placed in these businesses to leverage the benefits of
growth.

f. New clients and subscribers were acquired in NPS including our first win of
a State Government.

g. Expansion and investments in Southeast Asian / ASEAN markets continue
to do well and your Company is growing its engagement with clients for
future business growth.

e Acquisitions, Investments and Divestments:

Your Company has invested Rs. 4,00,00,000/- in InsurTech startup, Artivatic.ai
through its wholly owned subsidiary company - Kfin Services Private Limited.
This partnership will help KFintech venture into the Insurtech space as the firm
looks to diversify beyond offering Registry services to Mutual Funds, Corporate,
Pensions amongst other asset classes. Artivatic.ai will utilise the funding to
broaden the product portfolio, explore new business horizons and expand its
footprint across India and South East Asia with the help of KFintech.

V. Governance and Ethics

e Corporate Governance:
Your Company believes in adopting best practices of corporate governance,
which form the core values of your Company. These guiding principles are also
articulated through the Company's code of business conduct, Corporate

Governance guidelines, charter of various sub-committees and disclosure policy.

Board of Directors

e Board's Composition and Independence:

Your Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board for its
success. As on March 31, 2021, the Board comprised of One Executive Director
and Seven Non-Executive Directors including three Independent Directors one of
whom is Woman Director.

e Number of Meetings of the Board:

The Board met Nine times during the financial year 2020-21, namely, on 034 April
2020, 02nd June 2020, 12 June 2020, 19™ August 2020, 09" September 2020, 22nd

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Karvy Fintech Private Limited")
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October 2020, 06th November 2020, 26t November 2020 and 05th March 2021. The
maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

At each of the Board meetings held during the financial year 2020-21, all the
Directors as of that date were present at the meeting either in person or through
video conference.

e Appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Following appointments were made during the year under report:

- Mr. Prashant Saran was appointed as Additional Director (Non-Executive
Independent Director) with effect from May 26, 2020. Later his appointment
was regularised in the 034 Annual General Meeting held on July 06, 2020

- Mr. Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella was appointed as Additional
Director (Whole-Time Director and Chief Executive Officer) with effect from

June 12, 2020. Later his appointment was regularised in the 03¢ Annual
General Meeting held on July 06, 2020.

- Mr. Srinivas Peddada was appointed as Additional Director with effect from
July 02, 2020. His office as an Additional Director ceased as on the date of 3rd
Annual General Meeting. Later he was again appointed as Additional Director
of the Company with effect from July 07, 2020.

- Ms. Alpana Uttam Kundu was appointed as Company Secretary with effect
from August 19, 2020.

e Retirements and Resignations:

- Mr. Ganesh Venkatachalam resigned as Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from June 12, 2020.

- Mr. Vishesh Tayal, Additional Director of the Company resigned from the
Board with effect from July 1, 2020.

- The office of Mr. Srinivas Peddada as the Additional Director of the Company
ceased with effect from July 06, 2020.

e Committees of the Board:

The Company's Board has, following committees:
1. Audit Committee:

Audit Committee was constituted on February 5, 2019. During the financial
year 2020-21 the committee met six times namely on 0274 June 2020, 07t

KFin Technologies Private Limited
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September 2020, 2274 October 2020, 034 November 2020, 26" November 2020
and 02nrd March 2021.

2. IT Strategy Committee:

IT Strategy Committee was constituted on February 5, 2019. During the
financial year 2020-21 the committee met five times namely on 24" April 2020,
02nd June 2020, 07t September 2020, 03¢ November 2020 and 02n4 March 2021.

3. Business Development and Strategy Committee:

The Pricing and M & A Committee was constituted on February 21, 2019.
However, the Committee has been renamed as Business Development and
Strategy Committee on 215t September, 2020. During the financial year 2020-21
the committee met four times namely on 0274 June 2020, 08t September 2020,
03rd November 2020 and 02nd March 2021.

4., Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on February 5,
2019. During the financial year 2020-21 the committee met six times namely on
027d June 2020, 12™ June, 2020 19™ August 2020, 08" September 2020, 04™
November 2020 and 03¢ March 2021.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted on February 5,
2019. During the financial year 2020-21 the committee met four times namely
on 027 June 2020, 08™ September 2020, 04" November 2020 and 03¢ March
2021.

Composition/members of the Committees as on the end of the financial year
31%t March, 2021 is presented below:

S. No Names of Audit IT Strategy | Business | Nomination Corporate
Directors Committee Committee | Developm and Social
entand | Remuneratio | Responsibilit
Strategy | n Committee | y Committee
Committe
e
1. | Kaushik Chairperson Member* - Member -
Mazumdar
2. | Sandeep Achyut - - - Member Member
Naik
3. | Vishwanathan - - Member - -
Mavila Nair
4. | Sonu Halan Member - - Chairperson | Chairperson
KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as "Karvy Fintech Private Limited")
Registered & Corporate Office
selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangana, India, 500032,
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Bhasin

5. | Shantanu Member -* Chairpers - -
Rastogi on

6. | Venkata Satya - Member Member - -
Naga Sreekanth
Nadella

7. | Prashant Saran Member - - - Member

8. | Srinivas - Chairperson* | Member* - -
Peddada

* The Board of Directors through resolution by circulation (CR-26 for 2020/2021) has
reconstituted IT Strategy Committee and Business Development & Strategy
Committee.

e Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiatives:

The Board of Directors had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Board with effect from February 05, 2019 in line with the
provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014

As per approved CSR Policy, the Committee monitors the implementation of the
framework of the CSR Policy and recommends the amount to be spent on CSR
activities.

The CSR Policy of the Company can be accessed on the website of the Company
and weblink of the same is

https:/ / www.kfintech.com/wpcontent/uploads /2021 /03/KFintech_Corporate-
Social-ResponsibiltiesPolicy.pdf

The annual report on CSR initiatives, in the form prescribed by The Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, is attached to
this report, as Annexure-III.

e Policy on Director's appointment and remuneration:

The policy of the Company on directors' appointment and remuneration,
including the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other matters, as required under sub-section (3) of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is in place. The remuneration paid to the
Directors is as per the terms laid out in the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The Remuneration Policy of the Company can be accessed on the website of the
Company and weblink of the same is

https:/ / www.kfintech.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/KFintech-
Remuneration-Policy-1. pdf

KFin Technologies Private Limited
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e Opinion of the Board on the Independent Directors:

According to the Board the Independent Director appointed during the year
possesses qualifications such as integrity, expertise and experience (including the

proficiency).
e Declaration by Independent Directors:

The Company has received necessary declaration from each of the Independent
Directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that he / she meets
the criteria of independence laid down in section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

e Directors' responsibility statement:
The Board hereby confirm that:

- in preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31st
2021, the applicable Indian Accounting Standards have been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

- they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

- they have taken proper and sufficient care towards the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

- they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

- they have laid down internal financial controls, which are adequate and are
operating effectively;

- they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

e Annual Return:

As required, pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, every company
shall place a copy of the annual return on the website of the company, if any, and
the web-link of such annual return shall be disclosed in this report.

Since the Company has a website, annual return shall be placed on the website of
the company and the web link of the same is

KFin Technologies Private Limited
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The particulars of employees pursuant to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial) Rules 2014 are given in the
Annexure-1V.

e Related Party Transactions:

The particulars of Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties, pursuant
to Section 188 and Form No AOC 2, are furnished in Annexure V and attached
with this report.

The disclosure pursuant to Regulation 53(f) r/w Part A of Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
from time to time are furnished in Annexure VI and attached with this report.

e Payment of Remuneration to Directors:

e Managerial Remuneration:

Sr. Requirements Disclosure
No.

I The ratio of the remuneration of | During the year, remuneration is
each director to the median | paid to Mr. V. Ganesh till 12th June
remuneration of the employees for [ 2020 and to Mr Sreekanth Nadella
the financial year from 12th June 2020 to 3lst March

2021. Ratio of his remuneration to
the median remuneration of the
employees is 1 : 90. Ratio of his
remuneration to the average
remuneration of the employees is 1 :
56

IT The percentage increase in | Managing Director & CEO- Nil
remuneration of each director,
CEO, CFO and CS in the financial
year

I1I The percentage increase in the | 48%
median remuneration of
employees in the financial year

IV The number of permanent |There were 4873 permanent
employees on the rolls of the [ employees as on March 31, 2021
Company.

A% Average percentile increase | Not Applicable
already made in the salaries of
employees  other than the

KFin Technologies Private Limited
. R;:gistemd & {.:or’porate Office I
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Sr. Requirements Disclosure

managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison
with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out
if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration;

VI Affirmation that the remuneration | The Company affirms remuneration
is as per the remuneration policy is as per the Remuneration Policy of
of the Company. the Company

e Board Evaluation:

The Board evaluation framework has been designed in compliance with the
requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and in consonance with Guidance
Note on Board Evaluation issued by SEBI in January 2017. During the year, the
Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board’s
committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act. Based
on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the
Board laid down the criteria for evaluation. This exercise was carried out through
a structured questionnaire prepared separately for the Board, Committees,
Chairperson of the Board and individual Directors. The questionnaires were
uploaded at the online tool for the Board members to carry out the Evaluation for
the financial year ending 31st March 2021.

The Company has received all the evaluation reports on 30th April, 2021. All the
evaluation reports were further submitted to the Chairperson of the Board. The
evaluation report of the Chairperson of the Board was submitted to the
Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

As an outcome of the evaluation, it was noted that the Board as a whole has a
composition that is diverse in experience and perspective and fosters lively and
constructive debates. The discussion quality is robust, well intended and leads to
clear direction and decision.

It was noted that the Board Committees functions professionally and smoothly
and besides the Board Committee’s terms of reference as mandated by law,
important issues are bought up and discussed in the respective Board
Committees.

VI. Internal Financial Controls and Audit

e Internal financial control and its adequacy:

KFin Technologies Private Limited
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The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fraud, error
reporting mechanisms, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

a) Your Directors, report that your Company has adequate internal controls
commensurate with its size and nature of operations. There are suitable
monitoring procedures in place to provide reasonable assurance for accuracy
and timely reporting of the financial information and compliance with the
statutory requirements. There are proper policies, guidelines and delegation of
power issued for compliance across the Company.

b) For the purpose of ensuring accuracy in the preparation of the financials, your
Company has implemented various checks and balances like periodic
reconciliation of major accounts, review of accounts, obtaining confirmation of
various balances and proper approval mechanism. There is proper
reconciliation of the transactions captured to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of the transaction posted in financial accounting. In order to
ensure robust internal control systems, regular internal audits are conducted by
the central internal audit division.

c) Your Company has documented all major processes in the area of revenue,
expenses, bank transactions, payments, statutory compliances and period end
financial accounting processes. Your company is continuously putting its
efforts to align the processes and controls with the best practices in the

industry.

The Audit Committee of the Board and the Board of Directors, periodically
review the important matters and finding of the internal audit division and
monitor the compliance of the internal controls system.

e Statutory Auditors:

Your directors inform that M/s BS R & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants,
having ICAI firm registration no. 116231W/W-100024, were appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company from financial year 2019-20 till financial year
2022-23 and that they shall hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held for financial year 2022-23.

e Audit Reports:

The Auditors' Report for the financial year 2020-21 does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Auditors' Report is enclosed
with the financial statements in this Annual Report.
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Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Statutory Awuditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit
Committee during the year under review.

e Secretarial Audit and Secretarial Auditor's Report:

As required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed M/S D V Rao & Associates, Practicing Company
secretary, as Secretarial Auditor of the company for the financial year 2020-21. The
Report of the Secretarial Audit in Form MR-3 for the financial year ended March
31, 2021 is enclosed as Annexure VII to this Report. There are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor in his report.

e Secretarial Standards:

Your company has followed the secretarial standards with respect to General and
Board meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
approved as such by the Central Government, pursuant to Section 118(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

VII. Other Disclosures

e Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning
& Outgo:

A. Conservation of Energy:
The Company uses electric energy for its equipment such as air conditioners,

computer terminals, lighting and utilities in the work premises. All possible
measures have been taken to conserve energy.

(i) |the steps taken or impact on |Company's operation does not
conservation of energy consume significant amount of
energy.

(ii) | the steps taken by the company for | Not applicable, in view of
utilizing alternate sources of energy. | comments in clause (i)

(iii) | the capital investment on energy | Not applicable, in view of
conservation equipment's comments in clause (i)

B. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation: Not Applicable

(i) | the effort made towards technology absorption Not applicable

(ii) | the benefits derived like product improvement cost | Not applicable
reduction  product development or import
substitution
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(iii) | in case of imported technology (important during the | Not applicable
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)

(a) the details of technology imported

(b) the year of import;

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has
not taken place, and the reasons thereof

(iv) | the expenditure incurred on Research and | Not applicable
Development

C. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo: (In lakhs)

FY 2020-2021 FY 2019-2020
Inflow 5,908 4,224
Outflows 120 125.99

e Contribution to the 'Go-green' initiative:

In its commitment to help the environment, during the year, your company has
taken all necessary steps to reduce the usage of paper in the office. Your company,
in many areas, has made necessary changes in the existing processes to move
further towards a paperless work environment.

e Education, training and quality assessment:

Your directors wish to inform you that your Company has been continuing
training programs for overall development of the employees. New schemes have
been introduced to recognize and reward the best talent.

e Details of significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in
future:

No significant and material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts
or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in
future.

e Vigil Mechanism:

Your Company has adopted a Whistle-blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) as a
channel for receiving and redressing complaints from employees and Directors, as
per the provisions of Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Under
this policy, your Company encourages its employees to report any reporting of
fraudulent financial or other information to the stakeholders, and any conduct
that results in violation of the Company's code of conduct, to the management (on
an anonymous basis, if employees so desire). Further, your Company has
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prohibited discrimination, retaliation or harassment of any kind against any
employees who, based on the employee's reasonable belief that such conduct or
practice have occurred or are occurring, reports that information or participates in
the investigation. The Policy is appropriately communicated within the Company
across all levels. The said policy has been placed on the website of the Company.

e The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

Pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, (“the Act”) every organization
to include in their Annual Report the number of cases filed and their disposal
under the Act.

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free
workplace for every individual working in premises through various
interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to create and
provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment.

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) pursuant to the Act to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. The constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) is as
follows:

The Company has in place a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of
Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the requirements of the Act.

The Policy has set forth the guidelines on the redressal and enquiry process that is
to be followed by complainants and the ICC, whilst dealing with issues related to
sexual harassment at the workplace towards any women employees. All women
employees (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) are covered under this
policy. All employees are treated with dignity, with a view to maintain a work
environment free of sexual harassment whether physical, verbal or psychological.

As required under the Act, the following is the summary of sexual harassment
during the financial year 2020-21:

KFin Technologies Private Limited
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S. No. | Particulars Remarks
Number of sexual harassment complaints
1. . . NIL
received in a year.
5 Number of complaints disposed off during the NIL
year.
3. Number of cases pending for more than 90 NIL
days.
1.0ne Virtual
Session  for  the
committee members
2.Created eLearning
Number of awareness programs or workshops | Module for POSH,
4. | against sexual harassment conducted during We made it
the year. mandatory for all
the new joined & All
employees. 2139
Employees have
already completed
the course
5 Nature of action taken by the employer or NIL
" | district officer with respect to the cases.

e Maintenance of cost accounts and records as specified by the Central
Government:

The Company does not fall under the category of Sec 148(1) of Companies Act,
2013 and hence such disclosure and maintenance of cost accounts/cost records is
not applicable.

e Details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year along with their status as at the end
of the financial year:

During the year under review, the Company had filed an Application/Petition
before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bengaluru Bench at
Bengaluru (‘Hon’ble Tribunal’) under Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 against ITI Limited for non-payment of Rs. 10,87,43,944 due towards
the Company for the services rendered by the Company. The said
Application/Petition was listed before the Hon’ble Tribunal for hearing on 2nd
March, 2021, 12t March, 2021 and 9% April, 2021. As on the present date, ITI
Limited had agreed to settle the dues of the Company and paid the first two
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instalments towards settlement on 8t April, 2021 and 07t May, 2021 respectively
aggregating to Rs. 4,50,00,000/ -.

e Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-
time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or
Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof:

No such instance has occurred during the financial 2020-2021.
¢ Acknowledgements:

Your Directors wish to express their immense gratitude to the Company's
bankers, managers, vendors, clients and investors for their co-operation and for
the confidence reposed in the Company and look forward to their continued
support. Your Directors place on record their deep sense of appreciation and
gratitude to the employees at all levels, and more specifically, to the senior
management team of the Company for their unstinted support, during the year
under review. Your Directors further express their gratitude to the Central,
various State Governments and Government agencies for imposing faith in the
Company and awarding various projects.
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Annexure - 1

Highlights of performance of subsidiary companies and their contribution to
the overall performance of the Company

A. KFin Technologies (Bahrain) WLL, Bahrain
(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech (Bahrain) WLL, Bahrain):

KFin Technologies (Bahrain) WLL, Bahrain (“KFintech Bahrain”) (Formerly known as
Karvy Fintech (Bahrain) WLL) was incorporated in the Kingdom of Bahrain. KFintech
Bahrain is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from November 17,
2018.

KFintech Bahrain is registrar and paying agent for several issuer companies in Bahrain.
The company also managed few Fund Accounting and Administration mandates.

Financial highlights of KFintech Bahrain is given below:

Amountin Rs Lakh Amountin Rs Lakh

Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21

I. Revenue from operations 448.08 419.42
II. Other income 28.33 36.22
I11. Total Income (I+1II) 476.40 455.64
IV. Expenses

Employee benefits expense 389.23 251.25
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24.44 24.95
Other expenses 55.05 44.23
Total expenses (IV) 468.72 320.43
V. Profit before tax ( III-IV) 7.68 135.21
VI. Tax expense: - -
VII. Profit for the year / period ( V-VI) 7.68 135.21

B. KFin Technologies (Malaysia) Sendirian Berhad (formerly known as Karvy Fintech
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia):

KFin Technologies (Malaysia) Sendirian Berhad (“KFintech Malaysia”)(formerly
known as Karvy Fintech (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia) was incorporated in the
Malaysia. KFintech Malaysia became the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
with effect from November 17, 2018.

KFin Technologies Private Limited
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KFintech Malaysia is principally engaged in the business of carrying out transfer
agency, back office services outsourced by market intermediaries and fund managers.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the
financial year.

Financial highlights of KFintech Malaysia is given below:

Amount in Rs Lakh
Amount in Rs Lakh
Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21
L. Revenue from operations 1120.99 1609.31
II. Other income 2.18 -
II1. Total Income (I+II) 1,123.17 1609.31
IV. Expenses
Employee benefits expense 272.53 250.67
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34.09 34.14
Other expenses 726.50 1,204.29
Total expenses (IV) 1033.12 1489.10
V. Profit before tax ( III-IV) 90.04 120.21
VI. Tax expense: 28.41 29.16
VII. Profit for the year / period ( V-VI) 61.63 91.05

C. KFin Services Private Limited:

KFin Services Private Limited was incorporated on 6t January 2020 to provide various
services including services of KYC registration agency and other consultancy and
advisory related services. The first financial year of the company is ended 31st March
2021. KFin Services Private Limited is yet to commence its business and its Financial
highlights are as follows:

Amount in Rs Lakh
For the period from
06.01.2020 to 31.03.2021
I. Revenue from operations -
II. Other income -
I11. Total Income (I+1I1I) -

IV. Expenses

Employee benefits expense -
Depreciation and amortisation expense =
Other expenses 3.06

Particulars

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Karvy Fintech Private Limited
Registered & Corporate Office
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Total expenses (IV) 3.06
V. Profit before tax (III-IV) (3.06)
VI. Tax expense: =
VII. Profit for the year/ period ( V-VI) (3.06)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KFin Technologies Private Limited
(formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Digtally g by VENKATA SATYANAGA SSEEKANTH
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Annexure 11

FORM NO. AOC1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/
Associate companies/ Joint Ventures.

Part "A": Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with
amounts in Rs. Lakhs)

SI. No. 1
Name of the subsidiary KFin Technologies(Bahrain) WLL
(formerly known as Karvy Fintech
(Bahrain)) WLL
Reporting period for the subsidiary April'20-March’21

concerned, if different from the holding
company's reporting period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as Currency- BHD

on the last date of the relevant financial Exchange Rate P&IL-197.16
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. Exchange Rate BS-194.59
Share capital 76.99

Reserves & surplus 556.06

Total assets 759.27

Total Liabilities 126.22
Investments -

Turnover 419.42

Profit before taxation 135.21

Provision for taxation -

Profit after taxation -

Proposed Dividend -
% of shareholding 100%
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S1. No. 2
Name of the subsidiary KFin Technologies (Malaysia)
Sendirian Berhad (formerly known as
Karvy Fintech (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.,
Malaysia)
Reporting period for the subsidiary April'20-March'21
concerned, if different from the holding
company's reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as Currency- MYR
on the last date of the relevant financial Exchange Rate P&L-17.81
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. Exchange Rate BS-17.66
Share capital 166.06
Reserves & surplus 180.03
Total assets 501.12
Total Liabilities 155.03
Investments =
Turnover 1,609.31
Profit before taxation 120.21
Provision for taxation 29.16
Profit after taxation 91.05
Proposed Dividend =
% of shareholding 100%
S1. No. 3
Name of the subsidiary KFin Services Private Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary | For the period from 06.01.2020 to
concerned, if different from the holding 31.03.2021
company's reporting period

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as INR
on the last date of the relevant financial
year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

Share capital 1.00
Reserves & surplus (3.06)
Total assets 56.44
Total Liabilities 58.50
Investments -

Turnover -

Profit before taxation (3.06)

KFin Technologles Prlvate lelted
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Provision for taxation -
Profit after taxation (3.06)
Proposed Dividend -
% of shareholding 100%

Note: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

a) Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: KFin Services

Private Limited

b) Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year:

Nil
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KFin Technologies Private Limited
(formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
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Vishwanathan Mavila Nair Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Director & Chairman of the Board Whole time Director & CEO
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2021

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

KFin Technologies Private Limited ("KFintech’ or ‘the Company’) has developed a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (hereinafter to be referred as ‘CSR
Policy’) in alignment with its objective, principles and values, for delineating its
responsibility as a socially and environmentally responsible corporate citizen. The
Policy lays down the principles and mechanisms for undertaking various
programs in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

It is the Company's philosophy, firm belief and intent to effectively implement
CSR and make a positive difference to society. It recognizes that it cannot do it all;
so that if there are choices to be made, bias will be towards doing fewer projects
with better outcomes and good impact and will focus initiatives on communities
in which the Company lives, operates and particularly forming community whose

development is the basic mission of the Company

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SL. Name of Director ignation / Number of Number of
No. ature of meetings of CSR jmeetings of CSR
irectorship Committee  held [Committee
during the year ttended  during
the year
1.| Sonu Halan Independent + 4
Bhasin Director
2.| Sandeep AchyutNominee 4 4
Naik Director
3.| *Prashant Saran |[Independent 3 3
Director
4.| *Ganesh ging 1 1
Venkatachalam [Director & CEO

*Mr. Prashant Saran was appointed as Additional (Independent) Director of the Company on
26" May, 2020 and was appointed as the member of the CSR Committee on 2" July, 2020.
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“*Mr. Ganesh Venkatachalam had resigned from the post of Managing Director and CEO of
the Company and from the CSR Committee with effect from 12% June, 2020.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. :

https:/ / www kfintech.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/03/KFintech Corporate-Social-Responsibilties-
Policy.pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not
Applicable

'Ul

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

SL. No. [Financial Amount available for set- ount required to be set-off
Year off from preceding ffor the financial year, if any (in
financial years (in Rs) )
1 «
2
3
Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 1,654.00 lakhs

a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs.
33.07 Lakhs

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years.: Nil

¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) : 33.07 Lakhs
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78
a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent | Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
for the Financial Year. | Total Amount transferred to Unspent | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
(in Rs.) CSR Account as per section 135(6) Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount | Date of transfer Name of | Amount Date of transfer
the Fund
33.39 Lakhs Nil - - Nil -
b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable
1 2 |3 + 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Sl Na [ltem | Local | Location of | Proj | Amount | Amount Amount Mode of | Mode of
No me (from | area the project | ect |allocate |spent in | transferred to | Implementati | Implement
of the list (Yes/ dur | d for the | the current | Unspent CSR |on - Direct | ation -
the |of No) atio | project | financial | Account for | (Yes/No) Through
Pr |activitie n (inRs.) |Year (in | the project as Implement
oje in Rs.) per  Section ing
ct hedul 135(6) (in Rs.) Agency
VII tqg Na |CSR
the Act me | Registr
ation
numbe
Stat | Dist =
e rict
1
Total]
KFin Techhologies Private Limited i%p
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¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

K-INTZCH

Inspired By Passion. Driven By Technology.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SI. | Name of the |Item from the | Local | Location of the project | Amount Mode of Mode of
No | Project list of | area spent for the | Impleme [mplementation -
activities in | (Yes/ project (in | ntation - Through
Schedule VII | No) Rs.) Direct Implementing
to the Act (Yes/No) |Agency
Name [CSR
State District Registrati
on
number,
1 Finance Promoting No Andhra | Tirupati, 4,27,134.82 - -
Education Employment Pradesh | Chittoor Yes
Programmes/ | Enhancing District
Advance Vocational Guntur 96,763.64 Yes - -
Finance Skills (Clause YSR Kadappa | 1,24,648.00 | Yes - -
Education II of Vijaywada, |1,32,033.40 | Yes - -
Programmes Schedule VII) Krishna
District
Visakhapatna | 1,15,047.00 | Yes - -
m
No Bihar Patna 1,27,887.28 | Yes - -
No Gujarat | Ahemdabad | 1,39,556.58 | Yes - -
Baroda 1,24,488.00 | Yes - -
No Jharkha | Dhanbad 1,40,74246 | Yes - -
nd
No Jamshedpur, | 78,068.82 Yes - -

Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No- 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddi, Telangan
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East
Singhbhum
No Ranchi 88,602.78 Yes -
No Mahara | Solapur 37,494.78 Yes -
shtra
No Madhya | Indore 1,73,585.00 | Yes -
Pradesh | Bhopal 1,18,325,00 | Yes -
No Punjab | Ludhiana 1,13,388.00 | Yes -
Jhalandar 1,34,283.00 | Yes -
Amritsar 1,21,630.00 | Yes -
No Punjab | Chandigarh |1,29,674.24 | Yes -
and
Haryan
a
Yes | Telanga | Hyderabad 1,79,953.00 | Yes -
na
No Uttar Gorakhpur 1,06,747.00 | Yes -
Pradesh
Kanpur, 1,45,862.00 | Yes -
Kanpur
Nagar
District
Lucknow 1,42,384.00 | Yes -
Varanasi 1,70,378.16 | Yes -
No West Durgapur, 1,20,579.00 | Yes -
Bengal | Paschim
Bardhaman

KFin Technologies Private Limited
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2 Educare Promoting Yes | Telanga | Hyderabad | 50,000 No Abhaya DIT(E/H
projects Education na Foundat [YD/80G/
(Clause II of ion 79(3)/08-
Schedule VII) 09
Total 33,39,255.96

d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable

e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable

f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 33.39 Lakhs
g) Excess amount for set off, if any

SL Particular Amount (in Lakhs.)
No
i, Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs. 33.07 Lakhs
ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 33.39 Lakhs
iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 0.32 Lakhs
iv. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the | Nil
previous financial years, if any
V. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Rs. 0.32 Lakhs
KFin Technologies Private Limited v
(Form 15 Karvy Fintech Private Limited")

Registered & Corporate Office 9
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8.
a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil
Sl. | Preceding |Amount transferred | Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified under Amount
No | Financial to Unspent CSR |spent in the Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any. remaining to
Year. Account under | reporting Name of the Fund |Amount (in Date  of pe spent in
section 135 (6) (in | Financial Rs). transfer.  succeeding
Rs.) Year (in Rs.). financial
ears. (in Rs.)
1
Total

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Nil

1 2 3 + 5 6 7 8
SIL Project ID Name of the | Project Total amount | Amount spent | Cumulative | Status of
No Project duration | allocated for the | on the project | amount spent | the project
project (in Rs.) in the | at the end of | -
reporting reporting Completed
Financial Year | Financial /Ongoing
(in Rs) Year. (in Rs.)
1
Total

KFin Technologies Private Limited \7 ,,,
(Formerly known as “Karvy Fintech Private Limited”) A
Registered & Corporate Office
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9. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset
so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year : Nil

(asset-wise details).

a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such
capital asset is registered, their address etc.

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset).

10. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

,&/'f/“’(/

Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
ersgn - CSR Committee) ole Time Director & CEO)

: 02872234 DIN: 08659728

Date- 25\ os\ 202 Date- 25\03'\ 202

Place- New Delhi Place- Hyderabad

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Karvy Fintech Private Limited”)
Registered & Corporate Office
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Annexure to the Report of Board of Directors for the year ended 31st March 2021

Statement of Employees pursuant to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Annexure IV

Whether relative of
Nature of 0 q
. Date of % of equity any Director or
Remuneration employment, Last
. . . e L. . commencemen shares held Manager of the
S.No Name Age Designation Received (contractual or Qualifications | Experience employment . .
. t of in the Company and if so,
(FY 2020-21) otherwise) held .
employment company | name of such Director
or Manager

Mr. Sreekanth Nadella Venkata Satya Karvy

1 N ) y 43 Whole-time Director & CEO 1,81,11,705 Permanent CA 20 28/06/2018 | Computershare Nil No
282 Pyt Litd

2 Mr. Vivek Narayan Mathur 55 Chief Financial Officer 1,12,14,996 Permanent CA 30 23/01/2020 |Bajaj Capital Ltd Nil No

3 Mr. Lakshminarayanan Kalyanam 46 Chief Operating Officer 1,00,14,996 Permanent CA 24 12/03/2020 |J.P. Morgan Indig Nil No
Karvy

4 Mr. Bhushan Maideo 50 Vice President 84,24,935 Permanent CA 28 14/11/2016 | Computershare Nil No
Pvt Ltd

5 Mr. P M Parameswaran 54 General Manager 63,54,867 Permanent MBA 27 30/09/2019 CAMS Nil No

6 Mr. Dasaraiahgari Dinakar Reddy 45 General Manager 63,46,377 Permanent CA 22 13/05/2019 P Street Syntel PV Nil No

7 Mr. Kallol Biswas 45 General Manager 57,75,354 Permanent MBA 19 05/03/2019 Cognizant Nil No
Karvy

8 Mr. Giridhar G 57 Chief Business Development Offi 54,24,455 Permanent BA 32 23/07/2004 | Computershare Nil No
Pvt Ltd

9 Mr. Sathish Kumar Nuggu 46 Vice President 53,92,217 Permanent B.E/B.Tech 23 01/12/2020 |irtusa Corporatig Nil No
Karvy

10 |Mr. Mario Sylvester Roche 44 Vice President 53,00,471 Permanent B.Com 21 10/04/2017 Computershare Nil No

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
VENKATA e o
Digitally signed by SATYA NAGA feows zisi(.f"“‘“" F—

V|SHWANATHA VISHWANATHAN MAVILA
NAIR

N MAVILA NAIR Date:2021.06.24 17:0034

+05'30"
MV Nair
Chairman of the Board

DIN:02284165

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.06.2021

2210 21826647CFO92647
AGOB223128750FGEFBAEDDF 674507

SREEKANTH
NADELLA

NADE
Date:2021.05.24161338405%0

Venkata Satyanaga Sreekanth Nadella

IDVGADAEOFBE2BBA2CATCEA
SDIED2ADSBAEEAF81631C5
ENKATA SATYA NAGA SREEKANTH

Whole-time Director & CEO
DIN: 08659728

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24.06.2021
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Annexure V
FORM NO. AOC -2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
Company with the related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third proviso
thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

S. Name of | Nature | Duration | Salient Justificatio | Date(s) of | Amoun | Date on
No | related of of features of | n for | approval |t which
party and | contract | contracts | contracts/ |entering | by the | Paid as| resolution
nature of | / / arrangeme | into such | Board advance,| was
relations | arrange- | arrangem | nt/transact | contract/ if any passed in
hip ments/ |ent/ ion, arrangem general
transacti | transactio | including | ent/transa meeting
on ns value, if | ction u/s 188(1)
any

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Sr. | Name of | Nature  of | Duration of | Salient features of | Date(s) of | Amount
No |related party | contract/ contracts/ contracts/ approval by | Paid as
and nature of | arrange- arrangement | arrangement/tra | the Board advance, if
relationship ments/ / nsaction, any
transaction | transactions | including value,
if any
1 | KFin Back-office | Perpetual As per the Master | 17" November _
Technologies | Processing service 2018
(Malaysia) charges Agreement
Sendirian entered between
Berhad, KFin and KFin
Wholly Technologies
owned (Malaysia)
Subsidiary

KFin Technologies Private Limited

Registered & Corporate Office
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KFin Technologies Private Limited
(formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Digitally signed by VENKATA SATYA NAGA SREEKANTH

Digitally signed by O o-KENTECHNOLOGES YT 7D, 0
VISHWANATHA VISHWANATHAN MAVILA VENKATA SATYA ""m“’mmm“
NAR NAGASREEKANTPIEE S
N RV ILA e e s NADELLA i

Vishwanathan Mavila Nair Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Director & Chairman of the Board Whole time Director & CEO
DIN: 02284165 DIN: 08659728

Place: Mumbai Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24.06.2021 Date: 24.06.2021

KFin Technologies Private Limited
(Formerly known as “Karvy Fintech Private Limited”)
Registered & Corporate Office
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Annexure VI

Related Party Disclosure

[Pursuant to Regulation 53(f) r/w Part A of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing obligations
and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015]

Sr. | In the accounts of Disclosures of amounts at the year end Remarks
No and the maximum amount of loans/
advances/ Investments outstanding
during the year.

1 | KFin Technologies | Loans and advances in the nature of NIL
Private Limited loans to subsidiaries by name and
(Holding Company) amount.

Loans and advances in the nature of NIL
loans to associates by name and
amount.

Loans and advances in the nature of NIL
loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested by name and
amount.

2 | KFin Technologies | Investments by the loanee in the shares NIL
Private Limited of parent company and subsidiary
(Holding Company) company, when the company has made
a loan or advance in the nature of loan.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
KFin Technologies Private Limited
(formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)

Digitally signed by VENKATA SATYA
MAVILANAR /S, ey
Vishwanathan Mavila Nair Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella
Director & Chairman of Board Whole time Director & CEO
DIN: 02284165 DIN: 08659728
Place: Mumbai Place: Hyderabad
Date: 24.06.2021 Date: 24.06.2021

KFin Technologies Private Limited

Registered & Corporate Office
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FORM NO. MR-3
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2021

To
The Members
M/s. KFIN TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited)
Hyderabad.

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. KFIN TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly Karvy Fintech Private Limited) [CIN: U72400TG2017PTC117649] (hereinafter
called ‘the Company’) for the year ended 315t March, 2021. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided me reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 315t March, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2021 according to the
provisions/clauses of:

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment;

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act) -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosu
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (applicable to the extent of issue of Debt securities)

D V RAO & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES Page 10f 4
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b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

¢. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the company during the year under

review);

e. TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations,
2014 (Not applicable to the company during the year under review);

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable to the company during the year under review); and

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(Not applicable to the company during the year under review).

6) The following other laws, rules and regulations as may be specifically applicable to the
company:

a. The Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (Central Recordkeeping
Agency) Regulations, 2015,

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a. Secretarial Standards issued and amended by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;

b. Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines and standards etc., mentioned above,

I further report that

a. The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

KTPL | Secretarial Audit Report | 2020-21 Page 2 of 4




b.  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting,

. Alldecisions at the Board meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes
of the meetings of the Board of Directors.

Based on the review of periodic compliance reports submitted to the Board of Directors,

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the Company has the following specific
events/actions:

a. The company has altered the articles of association of the company by a special resolution
approved at the Extra-ordinary general meeting held on 03/04/2020.

b. The company has altered the objects clause of Memorandum of Association of the company
by a special resolution approved at the Extraordinary general meeting held on 03/04/2020
and confirmed by the Registrar of Companies on 24/04/2020.

¢. Mr. Prashant Saran was appointed as Independent Director of the company w.e.f
26/05/2020.

d. Mr Venkata Satya Naga Sreekanth Nadella was appointed as Whole-time Director & CEQ of
the company w.e.f. 12/06/2020.

e. The Board of Directors of the company has approved ESOP grants to eligible employees for
the financial year 2020-21,

For D V Rao & Associates
Company Secretaries

Date: 22/04/2021 ) CS Vasudeva Rao Devaki
Place: Hyderabad Practicing Company Secretary
FCS # 8888; COP # 12123

UDIN: FO08888C000159654

This Report is to be read with our letter which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral
part of this report.

KTPL | Secretarial Audit Report | 2020-21 Page 3 of 4



To

‘Annexure-A’

The Members,
M/s. KFIN TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Hyderabad

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

ra

Date: 22/04/2021
Place: Hyderabad

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.
I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. |
believe that the process and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.
[ have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The compliance by the Company of the applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax
laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been reviewed by
me since the same have been subject to review by statutory auditors and other
professionals.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Under the situation of Covid-19 pandemic prevailing during certain part of audit period,

the audit for that part of the period was conducted with the verification of all the
documents, records and other information electronically as provided by the management.

For D V Rao & Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Vasudeva Rao Devaki
Practicing Company Secretary
FCS # B888; COP # 12123
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